H-Girace 3? YL 9

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED
ENHERFRAE
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(REBAMELZHIRLE)

(Stock Code: 1347)
(B4 X5% - 1347)

2016

ANNUAL REPORT

FERSE




Definitions

Key Financials

Letter to Shareholders

Corporate Information

Directors and Senior Management Team
Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Corporate Social Responsibility
Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary

CONTENTS

© oo N

11
17
27
54
155
163
164
165
167
168
170
252



In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below.

“Annual General Meeting”
or “AGM”

“Board”

“CEC”

“China” or “the PRC”

“Company” or “our Company”

“Company Secretary”

“Director(s)”

“EPS”

“Executive Director(s)”

“Grace Cayman”

“Grace Shanghai”

“Group”

“HHGrace”

“HHNEC”

an annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 11 May 2017 at 2:00 p.m.
at the Island Shangri-la Hong Kong, Pacific Place, Supreme Court, Hong Kong;

the board of Directors of the Company;

China Electronics Corporation (F Bl & F {5 8 E ¥ & B R 2 &), a company
incorporated in the PRC in May 1989 and a substantial shareholder of Huahong
Group;

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context otherwise requires,
references in this annual report to (“China”) and the (“PRC”) do not include Taiwan,
the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong;

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 21 January 2005 and, except where the context otherwise
requires, all of its subsidiaries, or where the context refers to the time before it
became the holding company of its present subsidiaries, its present subsidiaries;

the company secretary of the Company;
the director(s) of the Company;

earnings per share;

the executive director(s) of our Company;

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation, an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 October 1999 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/87 1 EE8ER
[R/27]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 20 December 2000 and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company;

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where the context so requires, in respect
of the period before our Company became the holding company of our present
subsidiaries (or became such associated companies of our Company), the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);

Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation (/828 7 )
FERERLEATR N R]), a company incorporated in the PRC on 24 January 2013 and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;

Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd. (E/SZ¥EWINECEFHBR AR, a
company incorporated in the PRC on 17 July 1997 and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company;

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED



MHK$H
“Hong Kong”

“Huahong Group”

“Huahong Real Estate”

“Huahong Technology
Development”

“Independent Non-Executive
Director(s)”

“INESA”

“Listing Rules”

“Merger”

“NEC”

“Non-Executive Director(s)”

“QST”

“RMB”

“SAIL”

“SFC”

“SFO”

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (/&% 4 (@) AR A 7l), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 9 April 1996 as Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics
Co., Ltd. and renamed as Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. in 1998, and a
controlling shareholder of our Company;

Shanghai Huahong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (E/8ZE I E X ER A7), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 28 October 2011 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Huahong Technology Development;

Shanghai Huahong Technology Development Co., Limited (/&R EER
7~ A]), a connected person of our Company, a company incorporated in the PRC on
10 May 2010, and a company 50% held by and consolidated with Huahong Group
and 50% held by HHNEC;

the independent non-executive director(s) of our Company;

INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (E/8&SE () BRA7A]), formerly known as INESA
Holding Group (£ /8 & & & & (% E) & R 2 7@l), a state-owned company
incorporated in the PRC in December 1993, and a controlling shareholder of our

Company;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended
or supplemented from time to time;

the merger of Grace Cayman and Hua Hong Semiconductor (Cayman) Inc., an
exempted company established by the Company in the Cayman Islands;

NEC Corporation, a company incorporated in Japan and founded in 1899 as
Nippon Electric Company, Limited;

the non-executive director(s) of our Company;

QST Corporation (_E/E¥WERHEERAF]), a company incorporated in the PRC on
13 September 2012 and a connected person of our Company;

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;

Shanghai Alliance Investment Ltd (L/88AI & BR A7), a company incorporated
in the PRC on 26 September 1994, and a controlling shareholder of our Company;

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time;
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DEFINITIONS

“Shanghai Huali” Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd (/&% HMETFHR2AA]), a company
incorporated in the PRC on 18 January 2010 and a connected person of our
Company;

“Shareholders” holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company; and

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

4 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED



KEY FINANCIALS

2016 2015 2014

US$ million US$ million US$ million

Revenue 7214 650.1 664.6
Gross profit 220.3 201.4 197.8
Gross profit margin 30.5% 31.0% 29.8%
Net profit 128.8 1125 93.1
EPS (US$) 0.12 0.11 0.11

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
US$ million US$ million US$ million
Net current assets 476.8 519.9 5715
Net assets 1,488.7 1,490.7 1,465.5
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A group photo of members of the Board and the Secretary to the Board of the Company

(From left to right) Yuchuan Ma, Jianbo Chen, Kwai Huen Wong, Takayuki Morita, Suxin Zhang (Chairman & Executive
Director), Long Fei Ye, Stephen Tso Tung Chang, Jun Ye, Yu Wang (President & Executive Director) and Daniel Yu-
Cheng Wang (Secretary)
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Dear Shareholders,

The growth of the global semiconductor market continued 2016, In particular, China’s integrated circuit industry
exhibited especially rapid expansion, driven by thriving markets, the availability of capital and favorable government
policy. Hua Hong Semiconductor improved performance by successfully exploiting the resulting opportunities, and
achieved record results with the support and relentless attention of all shareholders, as well as the achievements of all
Group employees.

In terms of performance and accomplishments, our revenue and net profit reached record levels. Revenue grew to
US$721 million, an increase of 11% over 2015. Gross margin was 30.5% and net profit reached US$129 million, an
increase of 14.5% over 2015. The Group has been profitable for 24 consecutive quarters. Regarding capacity, we
brought the output of the three fabs up to a record high, exceeding our annual expansion target, reaching a total
capacity of 155,000 wafers per month.

With respect to breakthrough and innovation, we strengthened R&D in multiple fields such as embedded Non-Volatile
Memory (eNVM), power discrete, RF, analog and mixed signal and power management integrated circuits (IC). The
Company reaped double harvests in both technological achievements and patent grants. For example, our bank
card security chip, which we jointly developed and produced together with our customers, earned the chip security
authentication of EMVCo, certification of Common Criteria EAL5+, and the MasterCard Card Quality Management
(CQM) certificate. And in creation of intellectual property, we've joined — as the only semiconductor company — the elite
group of the top ten mainland Chinese enterprises with the highest number of invention patents granted.

Our strategy of cooperation and win-win, based on our rich process and technology offerings, powerful design
capabilities and excellent customer service, earned us the accolade “Most Recognized Foundry” as a part of the 2016
Greater China IC Design Awards, organized by EETimes China. The fact that we are the only wafer foundry to win such
an award significantly enhances our brand recognition and influence. We accelerated implementation of our strategic
landscape and gave prominence to key sectors like financial IC cards, Micro Controller Units (MCU), LED lighting,
new energy automobiles and the Internet of Things. Much of this was done in cooperation with and in response to
customers, which has laid a solid foundation for the future success of the Group.

Looking ahead to 2017, based on the government initiatives “Made in China 2025” and “Internet+”, China’s
semiconductor industry will enter an era of golden development that will provide more space and more opportunities
for the Group. Benefitting from the stimulus of the semiconductor industry by the Chinese government and “Mass
Entrepreneurship and Innovation”, the number, size and revenue of IC design enterprises in China have grown very
rapidly, and especially design houses that focus on the communication, consumer and multi-media electronics
markets have achieved the highest sales figures. Additionally, as new-energy automobiles develop, the demand for
semiconductors in the automobile industry will grow extensively, particularly for MCU and power discrete products. We
will directly benefit from these trends and emerging opportunities as we have an excellent competitive advantage due
to our long track record of success in these applications.

Opportunity belongs to a prepared pacesetter. As a leader in China’s semiconductor industry, we’ll maintain
sustainable innovation of our differentiated process technologies, and expand our worldwide leading position in eNVM,
power discrete and power management. We will focus on increased market share, lean management, cost control,
efficiency, safety, energy conservation and low emissions. The Company will comprehensively strengthen product,
service, quality, supply chain and manufacturing operations. We will continue to expand our share of the China
market while maintaining a balanced global presence. We will remain a high-technology, high-growth and high-profit
enterprise.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

We hereby report our achievements in 2016 to our respected shareholders. We genuinely express our sincere gratitude
and best wishes to all of you. We'’re counting on your continued exceptional support. We'll stay true to our mission and
diligently strive to create more value for you.

As a Chinese proverb says, reaching extended goals requires overcoming resistance and persistent forward progress.
We strongly believe the best times are still ahead of us.

Mr. Suxin Zhang Mr. Yu Wang
Chairman and Executive Director President and Executive Director
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Culture

Mission

Creating value for shareholders, customers and

employees through collaboration, innovation and
being a good corporate citizen
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Suxin Zhang (Chairman) (appointed on 11 March 2016)
Wenbiao Fu (resigned on 11 March 2016)

Yu Wang (President)

Non-Executive Directors
Jianbo Chen

Yuchuan Ma

Takayuki Morita

Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Long Fei Ye

Company Secretaries

Xiaojun Wang (solicitor)

Rao Fu (resigned as Joint Company Secretary on 20
June 2016)

Authorized Representatives

Yu Wang

Xiaojun Wang (solicitor) (appointed as
Authorized Representative on 20 June 2016)

Rao Fu (resigned as Authorized Representative
on 20 June 2016)

Audit Committee

Stephen Tso Tung Chang (Chairman)
Long Fei Ye

Jun Ye

Remuneration Committee

Kwai Huen Wong, JP (Chairman)
Long Fei Ye

Jianbo Chen

Nomination Committee

Suxin Zhang (Chairman) (appointed on 11 March 2016)
Wenbiao Fu (resigned on 11 March 2016)

Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Long Fei Ye

Website
www.huahonggrace.com

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong
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Herbert Smith Freehills
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15 Queen’s Road Central
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Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Shanghai Branch
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Shanghai, PRC

China Construction Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 900, Lujiazui Ring Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai, PRC

Bank of Communications Shanghai Branch
No. 188, Yincheng Middle Road
Shanghai, PRC

China Development Bank Shanghai Branch
No. 68, Puming Road
Shanghai, PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation Hong Kong Branch
28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road, Central
Hong Kong

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
20 Pedder Street, Central
Hong Kong

Share Registrar

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Room 2212, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road, Central
Hong Kong

Principal Place of Business and Head
Office in China
288 Halei Road

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park
Shanghai 2012083, PRC

Stock Code
1347



As of the date of this report, the Board consisted of nine Directors, including two Executive Directors, four Non-
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 53, was appointed on 11 March 2016 as an Executive Director and chairman of our Company
and a member of and chairman of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang is currently chairman and
secretary of the communist party of Huahong Group. He is also chairman of Shanghai Huali. Mr. Zhang has extensive
experience in hi-tech strategic development, energy strategy research and the power equipment industry. Mr. Zhang
held various positions, including president of Shanghai Turbine Co., Ltd., executive vice president of Shanghai Electric
Power Generation Group, chairman of Siemens Gas Turbine Parts Co., Ltd., executive director of Shanghai Electric
Group Company Limited, vice president of Shanghai Electric (Group) Corporation, secretary of the communist party
and general manager of Shanghai Jingiao (Holdings) Limited, chairman and secretary of the communist party of
Shanghai Jingiao Export Processing Zone Development Co., Ltd. and deputy director of both the Shanghai Municipal
Development and Reform Commission and the Administration Commission of Shanghai Hi-Tech Industrial Parks. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor's degree in engineering, and is a professor-level senior
engineer.

Mr. Wenbiao Fu, aged 62, was an Executive Director and chairman of our Company from July 2009 to March
2016. On 11 March 2016, Mr. Fu resigned as an Executive Director and chairman of the Company and ceased to
be a member of and the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company. He has led many manufacturing
enterprises throughout his career. Mr. Fu served as factory chief of Shanghai Electrical Appliance Plastics Factory,
Shanghai Electrical Engineering Mechanics Factory, Shanghai Compressor Factory and Shanghai Cable Factory, and
as the general manager of Shanghai Wire and Cable Group Co., Ltd. In 1997, Mr. Fu joined HHNEC as vice general
manager (Chinese Representative) and led the construction and operation of the first 200mm wafer semiconductor
production line in Mainland China. Mr. Fu was the deputy director and director of Shanghai Municipal Commission
of Informatization from 2001 to 2008. During the same period, he was also the director of the Shanghai Radio
Administration Bureau. From 2009 to March 2016, he was appointed as chairman of Huahong Group. Mr. Fu received
his bachelor’'s degree in engineering from the University of Shanghai for Science and Technology (previously known
as Shanghai Mechanical Engineering Institution) and further obtained his master's degree in economics from Fudan
University. He was qualified as a senior engineer in industrial automations in 1993.

Mr. Yu Wang, aged 44, has been an Executive Director and president of our Company since February 2012. He started
his career at Shanghai Hua Hong Microelectronics Co., Ltd. in 1997. From January 1998 to October 2003, he served
as the financial department manager and director of HHNEC. From October 2003 to March 2010, Mr. Wang served as
vice president and chief financial officer of HHNEC, during which period he contributed to the setup from construction
to production of the first 200mm wafer semiconductor production line in Mainland China. In March 2010, Mr. Wang
joined Grace Shanghai as first vice president and was subsequently appointed president in September 2010. As
president, he was instrumental in the successful consummation of the Merger and restructuring. Mr. Wang holds a
bachelor's degree in international trade and a master's degree in international finance from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics.

Mr. Jianbo Chen, aged 52, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since February 2012. Mr. Chen is also
vice president of Huahong Group and vice chairman of Huahong Technology Development. Mr. Chen has over 15
years of experience in electronics engineering. Mr. Chen held various positions, including deputy general manager of
Shanghai Science and Technology Investment, the general manager of Shanghai Zhangjiang (Group) Co., Ltd., and
office manager of Zhangjiang Innovation Park, president of the Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research & Development
Center Limited and chairman of Shanghai Huahong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. (300330.SZ). Mr. Chen obtained
a bachelor’s degree in electronics engineering, a master's degree in electromagnetics and microwave technology,
a doctorate degree in communications and electronics systems from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, and a master’s
degree in business administration from China Europe International Business School.
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Mr. Yuchuan Ma, aged 51, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since May 2014. Mr. Ma has over 20
years of experience in the electronics and information industry. Mr. Ma is currently vice general manager of Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd. and also serves as a director of the following companies: Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (600171.
SH), China Electronics Corporation Holdings Company Limited (00085.HK), Nanjing Weimeng Electronics Co., Ltd.,
CEC Huahong International Co., Ltd. and Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Technology Co. Ltd. Mr. Ma held various
positions in CEC, including vice general manager of the integrated circuit business group and the deputy general
manager of the planning, science & technology department. Mr. Ma graduated from Zhejiang University with a
bachelor’s degree in semiconductor physics and devices.

Mr. Takayuki Morita, aged 57, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since July 2009. Mr. Morita joined
NEC in April 1983. From 1983 to 2011, he held various positions in NEC, including manager of the international
planning division, and senior vice president and executive general manager of the corporate business development
unit. Mr. Morita is currently the executive vice president and the chief global officer at NEC and has held this position
since April 2016. He had a board representation in NEC. He also served as an auditor at Japan Aviation Electronics
Industry Ltd from 24 June 2008 to 26 June 2012. Mr. Morita graduated with a bachelor's degree in law from the
University of Tokyo.

Mr. Jun Ye, aged 44, has been a Non-Executive Director of our Company since February 2012. Mr. Ye has 20 years of
experience in finance and investment. Since 1996, Mr. Ye has held various positions within the business development
and investment banking divisions of SAIL. In December 2009, he was promoted to his current position as vice
president. Mr. Ye is also a director at Huahong Group, Shanghai Huali, Bank of Shanghai and Sino-US United MetLife
Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Ye also serves as the chairman of Shanghai Zhaoxin Semiconductor Ltd. and Sino
Therapeutics Inc. Mr. Ye obtained a bachelor’s degree in industrial and international trade and a master’s degree in
business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang, aged 68, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Chang has
extensive experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He was a certified public accountant in Hong
Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants from 1978 to the end of 2003 when he retired. Before
his retirement, Mr. Chang was also a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since January 1983, and he held various positions at Ernst & Young starting in 1976. He became a management
committee member of Ernst & Young in 1989 and was actively involved in establishing and monitoring the firm’s
internal control and risk management policy and procedures. Prior to his promotion in 2000 to managing partner of the
professional services department, he was chairman of Ernst and Young’s audit and advisory business services for four
years. Additionally, he was a partner of Ernst and Young and the chairman of Ernst and Young China and Hong Kong.
He was formerly an independent non-executive director of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock codes:
601601.SH and 2601.HK), a listed company in Hong Kong and Shanghai. Presently, he is a member of the Investment
Committee of Shanghai Fudan University Education Development Foundation and Fudan University Education
Development Foundation (overseas). He is also an independent non-executive director of three Hong Kong listed
companies, China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1359.HK), Kerry Properties Limited (stock code:
683.HK), and China Life Insurance Company Ltd. (stock code: 2628. HK). Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’s of science
degree in food science and chemistry from the University of London.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED



Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, BBS, JP, aged 65, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Wong
was admitted to practice as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 1985 and in England & Wales in July 1989. He was
admitted as a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in June 1999 and was the chairman of the Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre, and is currently a senior member of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators. Mr.
Wong has been a council member of the Law Society of Hong Kong since 2000. From December 2011 to November
2013, he was the chairman of the Copyright Tribunal. He has been a council member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and the deputy chairman of the Inland Revenue Board of Review since 2011. He was a board member of
the Hong Kong Airport Authority and is currently a board member of the Hong Kong Hospital Authority, Competition
Committee and the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited, and he has been the president of the Inter Pacific
Bar Association and a member of the Competition Commission since 2015. He was appointed as the managing
partner for China operations of Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson from November 2006 to February 2011, and
has held the position of managing partner to that firm since March 2011. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director of China International Marine Containers (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock codes: 000039.SZ and 2039.
HK), China Qilfield Services Limited (stock codes: 2883.HK and 601808.SZ), Vinda International Holdings Limited
(stock codes: 3331.HK) and PICC Asset Management Co. Ltd. Since December 2015, Mr. Wong has been serving as
honorary consultant for Financial Reporting Council. Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor’s degree in arts from Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a bachelor’s degree in Law and a solicitor certificate from the University of London and
British Law School, and also with a certificate in PRC Law issued by the China Law Society.

Mr. Long Fei Ye, aged 75, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of our Company. Mr. Ye held various positions
in the Shanghai Municipal Government. Mr. Ye was relocated to Hong Kong in 1991, and served until 1995 as the
chief executive of the “Shanghai Desk”, which was a cooperation arrangement for promoting Shanghai between the
Shanghai government and Arthur Andersen & Co. He then joined Kerry Holdings Limited in 1995, and served as the
chairman and deputy chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited from October 2000 to August 2003 and August 2003 to
March 2007, respectively. He has been an advisor to Shangri-La Asia Limited since March 2007. Mr. Ye obtained a
bachelor's and master's degree, both in physics from Fudan University.

As of the date of this report, the Company’s senior management includes:

Mr. Suxin Zhang, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director and Chairman of our Company on 11 March 2016.
For more information about Mr. Zhang’s past experience and academic background, see the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management — Directors”.

Mr. Wenbiao Fu, aged 62, was an Executive Director and the chairman of our Company from July 2009 to March
2016. On 11 March 2016, Mr. Fu resigned as an Executive Director and chairman of the Company. For more
information about Mr. Fu's past experience and academic background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management-Directors”.

Mr. Yu Wang, aged 44, is an Executive Director and the president of our Company. For more information about Mr.

Wang's past experience and academic background, see the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
-Directors”.

Annual Report 2016



Mr. Wei Xu, aged 59, is an executive vice president of our Company and is responsible for manufacturing and
engineering, human resources, administrative, and security management of our Group. Mr. Xu participated in the
startup of HHNEC in July 1997 and made significant contributions to the set-up of the first 200mm wafer semiconductor
production line in Mainland China. He has since held various positions at HHNEC in manufacturing, technology and
quality control. From June 2012 to October 2013, Mr. Xu was the acting president of HHNEC. Prior to joining HHNEC,
Mr. Xu worked with Wuxi Huajing Electronics Group. Mr. Xu graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University majoring in
semiconductor physics and devices. He further enrolled in post-graduate studies at Tsinghua University.

Mr. Heng Fan, aged 55, is an executive vice president of our Company and is responsible for Sales and Marketing.
Prior to joining our Group at the end of 2014, Mr. Fan was director and president of Shanghai Huahong Jitong Smart
System Co. Ltd from 2003 to 2014. Before this, he held various positions including research analyst/deputy director
of Shanghai Institute of Microsystem and Information Technology, Chinese Academy of Science, and vice president
of Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co. Ltd. Mr. Fan received his bachelor’s degree in microelectronics from
the Electronic Engineering Department of Fudan University and his master’s degree in Semiconductor Physics and
Semiconductor Device Physics from Shanghai Institute of Microsystem and Information Technology, Chinese Academy
of Science.

Mr. Daniel Yu-Cheng Wang, aged 54, is an executive vice president of our Company and oversees finance, information
technology, listed company affairs, and international human resources for our Group. He joined Grace Shanghai in
April 2001 and played a central leadership role in each stage of Grace Shanghai’s development and in the preparation
for and implementation of the Merger and the successful initial public offering of the Company. Mr. Wang has been
secretary of the Board of the Company since February 2012. Prior to joining Grace Shanghai, Mr. Wang worked at LSI
Logic Corporation in Silicon Valley, U.S. from August 1995 to March 2001 as the division controller in the broadband
entertainment division. Before joining LS| Logic Corporation, Mr. Wang was employed by Franklin Templeton
Investments in the U.S. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s of science degree in industrial engineering and operations
research from College of Engineering, University of California, Berkeley, and a master’'s of business administration in
finance and banking from the University of San Francisco.

Dr. Cheng Fu, aged 38, was an executive vice president of our Company and was in charge of legal and compliance
until his resignation in May 2016. He joined Grace Shanghai in May 2006 and was instrumental in setting the strategic
direction of the Company. Dr. Fu has also held various positions at SAIL, starting from September 2005, where his
primary responsibilities include investments in the technology sector. Dr. Fu earned a bachelor’s of engineering degree
in computer science and technology and a doctorate degree of engineering in computer software and theory from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Dr. Weiran Kong, aged 53, is an executive vice president of our Company and is in charge of technology
development. He joined Grace Shanghai in March 2003 and has 20 years’ experience in the semiconductor industry,
with a proven track record of driving innovations in the area of NOR Flash, Logic and embedded Flash. Before joining
Grace Shanghai, Dr. Kong was based in the U.S. and has worked for Sun Microsystems, Inc., LSI Logic Corporation
and ISSI. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics from Nankai University in Tianjin and graduated with a master’s
of science degree in electrical engineering and a doctorate degree in applied physics from Oregon Graduate Institute
of Science & Technology in the U.S. Dr. Kong holds 13 U.S. patents, 34 PRC patents and co-authored over 20
technical papers.

Dr. Qi Li, aged 54, is a vice president of our Company and is currently responsible for purchasing, logistics, testing,
quality assurance, and planning. Dr. Li has over 20 years of professional working experience and joined Grace
Shanghai in January 2003. Prior to that, he was the senior engineering manager at Applied Materials, Inc., in the
U.S. from 1995 to 2002. Dr. Li received a bachelor’'s degree in physics from Peking University and his master’s and
doctorate degrees in physics from the University of Maryland.
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Mr. Tony Chen, aged 58, is a vice president of our Company and currently responsible for regional sales and customer
support. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in the semiconductor industry and joined Grace Shanghai in
March 2006. Prior to that, he worked for Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Ltd (which was later acquired by
GlobalFoundries) from January 1994 to February 2006 and was the chief representative for Chartered Semiconductor
Manufacturing Ltd.’s China Representative Office from August 2002 until February 2006. Mr. Chen received his
bachelor’s degree in semiconductor physics from the Sun Yat-Sen University. He obtained his master's degrees of
Science (M.Sc.) and University Administration (M.U.A.) from the University of Glasgow.

Dr. Steven Lin, aged 55, is a vice president of our Company and currently leads regional sales for North America and
Japan. He worked in various non-volatile memory technology development roles at several leading semiconductor
companies in the U.S. and joined Grace Shanghai in August 2006. Dr. Lin received his bachelor's of science and
master's of science degrees in electrical engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a doctorate
degree in electrical engineering from the California Institute of Technology.

Mr. Bill Lin, aged 48, is a vice president of our Company and is currently responsible for our Fab 3 operations. He
has over 20 years of working experience in the semiconductor industry and joined Grace Shanghai in August 2000.
Before joining Grace Shanghai, he worked for Texas Instruments-Acer Inc. (later merged with Taiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Company Limited) from 1995 to August 2000. Mr. Lin received his master's degree in chemical
engineering from the National Taiwan University of Science and Technology (previous known as National Taiwan
Institute of Technology in Taiwan).

Mr. Mirko Sonntag, aged 40, is a vice president of our Company and is currently responsible for the Company’s sales
operations, customer service and European sales. His expertise encompasses demand and supply chain planning
and business operations, with a strong foundation in business development. Mr. Sonntag joined Grace Shanghai in
October 2008. Prior to that, he worked at Infineon Technologies AG in Germany. Mr. Sonntag obtained a diploma in
process engineering and economics from the University of Applied Sciences Berlin and School of Economics Berlin,
Germany.

Ms. Ying Chen, aged 44, is a vice president of our Company and currently responsible for general administration,
scientific and technological projects, market communications and listed company affairs. Ms. Chen joined Grace
Shanghai in April 2001 and has 20 years of administrative experience. Prior to this, Ms. Chen worked at Shanghai
Fudan Forward Science and Technology Co., Ltd. Ms Chen graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor degree in
law, and subsequently obtained a MBA degree from Renmin University of China.

Mr. Guangping Hua, aged 50, is a vice president of our Company and is currently responsible for our Fab 1
operations. He has over 20 years of working experience in the semiconductor industry and joined HHNEC in July
2007. Before joining HHNEC, Mr. Hua has worked for Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing Limited (Singapore)
and Advanced Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited. Mr. Hua graduated from Tsinghua University with a
master’s degree in microelectronics engineering.

Mr. Liang Yao, aged 52, is a vice president of our Company and is currently responsible for our Fab 2 operations. He
has nearly 30 years of working experience in the semiconductor industry and joined HHNEC in August 1997. Before
joining HHNEC, he worked for China Huajing Electronics Group Co., Ltd. from 1987 to October 1996. Mr. Yao received
his bachelor's degree in metal materials studies from Nanjing Institute of Technology.
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Mr. Xiaojun Wang, aged 62, is our Company Secretary and was appointed in June 2014. He is a practicing solicitor
admitted in the PRC, Hong Kong and England and Wales. He joined The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
1992 and worked at Richards Butler, Peregrine Capital Limited and ING Barings Securities (Hong Kong) Limited. In
2001, he established X. J. Wang & Co. that was merged with Jun He Law Offices in 2009. He is currently a partner
of Jun He Law Offices. From 2011 to 2012, Mr. Wang was a managing director of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited. He was an independent non-executive director of Guangzhou Shipyard International Company Limited (stock
codes: 317.HK and 600685.SH) from 2005 to 2011. From 2008 to 2014, Mr. Wang served as an independent non-
executive director of NORINCO International Company Limited (stock code: 000065.5Z). Mr. Wang also serves as an
independent non-executive director of OP Financial Investments Limited (stock code: 1140.HK), Yanzhou Coal Mining
Company Limited (stock codes: 1171.HK, 600188.SH and YZC), China Aerospace International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 31.HK), and Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. (stock codes: 1513.HK and 000513.SZ). Mr. Wang obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in laws from the Renmin University of China and a master of laws degree from the Chinese Academy
of Social Sciences.

Ms. Rao Fu, aged 39, was our joint Company Secretary from June 2014 until she resigned in June 2016. Prior to
joining the Company in 2007, Ms. Fu worked at International Information Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. This company
was subsequently acquired by Lenovo and renamed Lenovo Information Products (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Ms. Fu
graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in economics from Jilin University of Finance and Economics (previously known as
Changchun Taxation College) and obtained her Juris Master’s degree from Fudan University School of Law and also
her master of laws degree from Columbia Law School, the United States.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to promoting good corporate governance and has set up procedures on corporate
governance that comply with the principles in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules.

Compliance with the Code Provisions

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company complied with the Code.

Director’s Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all of the Directors, each of whom has confirmed that he
has, throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, complied with the required standards set out therein.

Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of managing the Company’s business and affairs and the
ultimate responsibility of the day-to-day management of the Company which is delegated to the chairman and the
management.

The Board currently comprises a total of nine Directors, with two Executive Directors, Mr. Suxin Zhang (chairman)
(appointed on 11 March 2016) and Mr. Yu Wang (president); four Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Jianbo Chen, Mr.
Yuchuan Ma, Mr. Takayuki Morita and Mr. Jun Ye; and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso
Tung Chang, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. Mr. Wenbiao Fu was an Executive Director and chairman
of the Company from July 2009 to March 2016, when he resigned. More details of the Directors are disclosed on pages
11 to 13 of this annual report. The Company publishes and maintains on its website and on the Stock Exchange’s
website an updated list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to
re-nomination and re-election by the Company in general meetings unless previously terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. All Directors are given the opportunity to put items on the agenda
for regular Board meetings. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary to ensure that all Board procedures
and rules and regulations are followed. Full minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
are available for inspection on reasonable notice. Any Director may, in furtherance of his duties, take independent
professional advice where necessary at the expense of the Company.
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The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising management.
Some functions including, inter alia, the monitoring and approval of material transactions, matters involving a conflict
of interest for a substantial shareholder of the Company or a Director, the approval of the quarterly, interim and final
results, other disclosures to the public or regulators and the internal control system are reserved by the Board, and the
decisions relating to such matters shall be subject to the decision of the Board. Matters not specifically reserved to the
Board and necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to management under the supervision of
the respective Directors and the leadership of the chairman.

The chairman is responsible for formulating business strategies and providing leadership to the Board, ensuring
effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and all Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information.

The roles of the chairman and the president are separate. The chairman is responsible for the overall management and
operations of the Company and for proposing and reviewing the corporate directions and strategies of the Company.
The president is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company’s business and operations as well as the
implementation of the Company’s business strategies.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times complied with Rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board; one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is required to possess appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. Each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Company has been arranged by
the Company.
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Board Operation
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held five Board meetings. The attendance record of each
member of the Board at the Board meetings, the audit committee, nomination committee, remuneration committee

meetings and general meetings is set out below:

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board committee committee committee General

meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Suxin Zhang (Note 1) 4 N/A 0 N/A 1
Wenbiao Fu (Note 2) 1 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Yu Wang 5 N/A N/A N/A 1
Non-Executive Directors
Jianbo Chen 5 N/A N/A 1 1
Yuchan Ma 5 N/A N/A N/A 1
Takayuki Morota 5 N/A N/A N/A 1
Jun Ye 5 5 N/A N/A 1
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Stephen Tso Tung Chang 5 5 N/A N/A 1
Kwai Huen Wang, JP 5 N/A 1 1 1
Long Fei Ye 5 5 1 1 1

Note 1: Mr. Suxin Zhang was appointed as the chairman of the Board, an Executive Director and chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company on 11 March 2016.

Note 2: Mr. Wenbiao Fu attended the Board meeting held on 2 February 2016. On 11 March 2016, Mr. Wenbiao Fu resigned as an
Executive Director and chairman of the Company and ceased to be a member and chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company.

In place of physical meetings, the Board may circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of the
Board except for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest that the Board has

determined to be material in compliance with Code Provision A.1.7.

The Board having considered the attendance records of the Directors is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient
time performing his responsibilities.
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Directors shall keep abreast of their responsibilities as Directors of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Under Code Provision A.6.5 the Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
programs to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors were provided with timely updates
on the Company’s performance, financial position, prospects, and materials on new or salient changes to laws and
regulations applicable to the Group, to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
Internally-facilitated briefings for the Directors will be arranged in the next financial year, and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to the Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) currently comprises one Non-Executive
Director, Mr. Jianbo Chen, and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP and Mr. Long
Fei Ye. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP. The roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, and the making of
recommendations to the Board in connection with the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as the salaries paid by comparable companies, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. A copy of the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is available from the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. The
Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held to review the share
option scheme of the Company which was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 1
September 2015.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the Financial Statements.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) currently comprises one Executive Director,
Mr. Suxin Zhang (appointed on 11 March 2016), and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Kwai Huen Wong,
JP and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Suxin Zhang (appointed on 11 March
2016). Mr. Wenbiao Fu was appointed as a member and chairman of the Nomination Committee on 22 September
2014. On 11 March 2016, Mr. Wenbiao Fu ceased to be a member and chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
role and function of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, with due
regard to the board diversity policy, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assess the independence of
Independent Non-Executive Directors and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and the president, and monitor the
implementation of the board diversity policy and review such policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee has established a specific written committee charter which deals clearly with its authority and
duties. A copy of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available from the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was held.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), any person appointed as a Director to fill a
casual vacancy of the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the relevant general meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the relevant general meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and shall be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles. The Articles also allow for removal of a
Director by an ordinary resolution.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid and payable to the auditors of the Company, Ernst
& Young, for the provision of the Company’s audit services and non-audit related services was US$0.50 million and
US$0.07 million respectively. Details of significant non-audit related services include tax and risk management advisory
services.

At least one of the members of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee was a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors
within one year immediately prior to the dates of their respective appointments. All members have appropriate skills
and experience in reviewing financial statements as well as addressing significant control and financial issues of
the Company. The Board expects the members of the Audit Committee to exercise independent judgement and
delegates the responsibilities of the corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee in order to comply with the
requirement of the Code.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises one Non-Executive Director, Mr. Jun Ye, and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang and Mr. Long Fei Ye. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the reviewing of
the Company’s financial reporting system, the nature and scope of audit review as well as the effectiveness of the
system of internal control procedures and risk management. The Audit Committee is also responsible for making
recommendations in relation to the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and the
reviewing and monitoring of the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. In addition, the Audit Committee
discusses matters raised by the external auditors and regulatory bodies to ensure that appropriate recommendations
are implemented. A copy of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available from the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website. The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Reference is also made to
the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee dated 29 December 2015 which came into effect on 1 January
2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee held five meetings and all committee members were
present at the meetings. In these meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed and approved the Company’s financial
statements for each of the four quarters of 2016, the six months ended 30 June 2016 and for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in compliance with Code provision A.5.6 on 22 September
2014,

The Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and does not apply to diversity in relation to
the employees of the Company, nor the board and the employees of any subsidiary of the Company. The Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity will be considered from several aspects, including
without limitation, differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience, background, gender, age and
other qualities of the members of the Board, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of talents, skills,
experience and background on the Board. In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree on the measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any given time, the Board may seek to improve one
or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in provision D.3.1 of the Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company maintains a website at www.huahonggrace.com with information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, list of Directors and their role and function, constitutional documents, terms of
reference of the Board and its committees, procedures for nomination of Directors for election, Shareholder rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports released to the Stock
Exchange and other information. Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time to time.

The Company Secretary, Mr. Xiaojun Wang, is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures are
followed and the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. He is also responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully appraised of the relevant legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the
Company and facilitating the induction and professional development of Directors. Ms. Rao Fu resigned as the joint
Company Secretary on 20 June 2016.

The Company Secretary reports to the chairman and the president of the Company, plays an essential role in the
relationship between the Company and its Shareholders, and assists the Board in discharging its obligations to
Shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Xiaojun Wang attended relevant professional seminars to update his

skills and knowledge and has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules to take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
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Shareholder Rights

The Company uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of
its performance and activities. These include quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company are a primary forum for communication between the Shareholders and the
Board. The Company encourages its Shareholders to attend and participate in general meetings to ensure a high
level of accountability and to keep Shareholders informed of the Company’s strategy and goals. The chairman of the
Board, other Board members and the chairmen of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, are available to answer any questions from the Shareholders.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the Directors on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company or by such Shareholder(s) who made the requisition (the
Requisitionist(s)) (as the case may be) pursuant to sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). The objects of the meeting must be stated in the requisition
which must be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in sections 580 to 583 of the Companies Ordinance for
convening an extraordinary general meeting.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings and Directing
Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their written requests, proposals, enquiries and concerns to the Company for the
attention of chairman of the Board or the Company Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

288 Halei Road, Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Shanghai 201203, China
Tel: (86) 21 38829909

Fax: (86) 21 50809999

Email: IR@hhgrace.com

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.
Risk Management and Internal Monitoring

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Objectives

Risk Management Objective

From a compliance perspective, the Stock Exchange revised the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)

with respect to risk management, effective from 1 January 2016. The Company made commensurate adjustments to
relevant processes to ensure the compliance with the revised CG Code.
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From the perspective of operations, the Company’s management team well understands the potential for risks to
be confronted by the Company as it undertakes future development. Therefore, the Company’s risk management
objective is to first constantly be on guard to identify and assess risks, and then take appropriate countermeasures
to evade the risk entirely if possible, otherwise to manage these risks to reduce their impact and keep them under
control. The Company has constructed a robust risk control system, built up a solid risk management framework,
clarified risk management mechanisms and established a risk management system. We have developed a concise,
scientific, practical and efficient risk management and control model in line with the Company’s specific, evolving
circumstances.

Internal Control System Objective

The Company’s internal control system has fully implemented the requirements for a risk management framework as
set out by COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) as well as the guidelines
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for risk management. We formulated our control framework
by considering the Company’s ongoing operational circumstances and business characteristics. The objective is to
evaluate the effectiveness and applicability of our internal monitoring system, and provide reasonable guarantees for
the effectiveness of the Company’s operating activities, the reliability of financial reports, and compliance with laws and
regulations.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring System

To ensure our risk management work develops efficiently and forms into a long-term mechanism, the Company has
established a risk management monitoring system comprising “three lines of defense”. It covers the roles and duties of
many different aspects as follows:

° Establish and maintain various departmental risk management mechanisms;

° Ongoing collection of risk data while performing day-to-day department
tasks;

° Assist Risk Management Level (see below) in carrying out risk management

work, including providing necessary documents and samples, identify major
risks related to the department, and determine major risk countermeasures;

° Formulate/revise the Company’s risk management systems and provisions,
and submit them to the Company’s business management team and the
Audit Committee for deliberation;

° Set/update standardized risk management language terms to assure
common understanding of the risk management process, with timely
acceptance and implementation among relevant risk management
departments;

° Based on annual risk assessment results, define the major risk factors and
relevant response responsibilities, organize and guide each department in
making and implementing response plans for major risks in its area, and
follow up on the implementation.
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° Independently inspect and supervise risk management activities conducted
by the Business Departments and the Risk Management Level, and evaluate
whether the Company’s risk management mechanism is implemented
effectively and efficiently;

° Urge departments or agencies to rectify problems discovered during the
auditing process, and monitor the ongoing status of the rectification work;

° Report the auditing results to the Company’s Audit Committee.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring Statement

The Board designated the Internal Auditing Department to perform the internal auditing function, and granted it
full independent responsibility and authority. The internal auditors audited the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal monitoring system according to the approved auditing scope and in accordance with the
provisions in C.2 of the Corporate Governance Code, and no material deficiency was found.

Based on audits by the Internal Auditing Department, the Board believes that the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring system is trustworthy and operates effectively. However, one must recognize that the Company’s
risk management and internal monitoring framework can perforce only manage rather than completely eliminate risks
that may affect the Company’s ability to accomplish its business objectives. Therefore, it provides a reasonable but not
an absolute guarantee for the avoidance of serious risk-related impact.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing the Company’s financial statements for each financial
period to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 155 to 162 of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman
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The Directors present herewith the annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (the “Financial Statements”).

Principal Activities

The Company is a pure-play 200mm wafer foundry. We primarily focus on manufacturing semiconductors for specialty
applications. The activities of our principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements.

Business Review

Revenue Analysis

Revenue of the company in 2016 was US$721.4 million, a historical high, an increase of 11.0% from 2015. The large,
growing demand for products based on our differentiated technology platforms resulted in consistent quarterly growth
of revenue throughout the year. 2016 was also the fifth consecutive year of increasing gross profit.

Revenue by Service

2016 2016 2015 2015 YoY YoY

US$000 % US$000 % Change Change

US$000 %

Wafers 704,510 97.7% 631,736 97.2% 72,774 11.5

Others 16,918 2.3% 18,395 2.8% (1,477) (8.0)

Total revenue 721,428 100.0% 650,131 100.0% 71,297 11.0

e 97.7% of our revenue was from the sale of semiconductor wafers.

Revenue by Customer

2016 2016 2015 2015 YoY YoY

US$000 % US$000 % Change Change

US$000 %

Systems and Fabless 551,614 76.5% 489,179 75.2% 62,435 12.8

IDMs 169,814 23.5% 160,952 24.8% 8,862 55

Total revenue 721,428 100.0% 650,131 100.0% 71,297 11.0

e Revenue from systems and fabless companies was US$551.6 million in 2016, an increase of 12.8% compared to

2015.

e Revenue from IDMs was US$169.8 million in 2016, an increase of 5.5% compared to 2015.

28 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Revenue by Geography

2016 2016 2015 2015 YoY YoY

US$000 % US$000 % Change Change

US$000 %

China 378,030 52.4% 358,896 55.2% 19,134 53
United States 141,186 19.6% 123,716 19.0% 17,470 141
Other Asia 91,175 12.6% 52,844 8.1% 38,331 72.5
Europe 68,468 9.5% 61,648 9.5% 6,820 111
Japan 42,569 5.9% 53,027 8.2% (10,458) (19.7)
Total revenue 721,428 100.0% 650,131 100.0% 71,297 11.0

China remained our largest market in 2016, with revenue of US$378.0 million contributing 52.4% of our total
revenue, up by 5.3% from 2015, The growth was primarily due to increased demand for discrete, LED lighting,
MCU and Logic & RF products.

Revenue from the United States was US$141.2 million, an increase of 14.1% compared to 2015, mainly due to a
higher demand for MCU and discrete.

Revenue from Other Asia was US$91.2 million, up by 72.5%, mainly due to higher demand for MCU, Logic & RF
and discrete products.

Revenue from Europe was US$68.5 million, an increase of 11.1% compared to 2015, mainly due to expanded
demand for smart cards and discrete.

Revenue from Japan was US$42.6 million in 2016, a decrease of 19.7% compared to 2015, mainly due to lower
demand for MCU.

Revenue by Technology Platform

2016 2016 2015 2015 YoY YoY

US$000 % US$000 % Change Change

US$000 %

eNVM 265,425 36.8% 284,948 43.8% (19,523) (6.9)
Discrete 197,168 27.3% 146,802 22.6% 50,366 34.3
Analog & PM 139,969 19.4% 106,097 16.3% 33,872 31.9
Logic & RF 93,996 13.0% 77,541 11.9% 16,455 21.2
Standalone NVM 22,740 3.2% 31,102 4.8% (8,362) (26.9)
Others 2,130 0.3% 3,641 0.6% (1,511) (41.5)
Total revenue 721,428 100.0% 650,131 100.0% 71,297 11.0

Revenue from eNVM was US$265.4 million, a decrease of 6.9% compared to 2015, mainly due to decreased
demand for smart cards, partially offset by increased demand for MCU.

Revenue from discrete was US$197.2 million, an increase of 34.3% compared to 2015, mainly due to strong
demand for vertical trench super-junction MOSFET, IGBT and MOSFET.
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e Revenue from Analog & PM was US$140.0 million, an increase of 31.9% compared to 2015, mainly due to strong
demand for analog and LED lighting products.

e Revenue from logic & RF products was US$94.0 million, an increase of 21.2% compared to 2015, mainly due to
increased demand for audio codecs and bluetooth technologies.

Revenue by Technology Node

2016 2016 2015 2015 YoY YoY

US$000 % US$000 % Change Change

US$000 %

<0.13um 242,690 33.6% 241,620 37.2% 1,070 0.4
0.15um & 0.18um 120,644 16.7% 111,299 17.1% 9,345 8.4
0.25um 17,702 2.5% 15,933 2.5% 1,769 11.1
>0.35um 340,392 47.2% 281,279 43.2% 59,113 21.0
Total revenue 721,428 100.0% 650,131 100.0% 71,297 11.0

e Revenue from 0.13um and below technology nodes was US$242.7 million, slightly up from 2015, largely due to
increased demand for MCU, bank IC and Logic & RF products, offset by lower demand for SIM cards.

e Revenue from 0.15um & 0.18um was US$120.6 million, an increase of 8.4% compared to 2015, due to high
demand for MCU.

e Revenue from 0.25um was US$17.7 million, an increase of 11.1% compared to 2015, largely driven by mobile
phone and automotive products.

e Revenue from 0.35um and above technology nodes was US$340.4 million, an increase of 21.0% compared to
2015, primarily due to demand for discrete and LED lighting products.
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Revenue by End Market

2016 2016 2015 2015 YoY YoY

US$000 % US$000 % Change Change

US$000 %

Consumer Electronics 474,200 65.7% 364,773 56.1% 109,427 30.0
Communications 117,645 16.3% 149,926 23.1% (32,281) (21.5)
Industrial & Automotive 83,359 11.6% 86,677 13.3% (3,318) (3.8)
Computing 46,224 6.4% 48,755 7.5% (2,531) (5.2)
Total revenue 721,428 100.0% 650,131 100.0% 71,297 11.0

Revenue from Consumer Electronics was US$474.2 million, an increase of 30.0% compared to 2015, driven mainly
by higher demand for discrete, MCU, LED lighting and Logic & RF products.

Revenue from Communications was US$117.6 million, a decrease of 21.5% compared to 2015, mainly due to
lower demand for SIM cards.

Revenue from Industrial & Automotive was US$83.4 million, a decrease of 3.8% compared to 2015. The decline
came from smart card and MCU.

Revenue from Computing was US$46.2 million, a decrease of 5.2% compared to 2015, primarily due to less
demand for NOR flash and Logic & RF products.

Capacity and Capacity Utilization

Fab 2016 2015 YoY
(in thousands of wafers per month) Change
Fab1 56 56 -
Fab2 57 50 7
Fab3 42 40 2
Total monthly wafer fabrication capacity 155 146 9
Capacity utilization 97.6% 90.0% 7.6%

The utilization rate increased from 90.0% in 2015 to 97.6% in 2016 because of increased demand over capacity
expansion.
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2015 YoY Percent
Change

Wafer shipments 1,441.9 24.0%

e We shipped total 1,787.2K wafers in 2016, a significant increase of 24.0% compared to 2015, resulting from our
expanded capacity and improved utilization rate.

Research and Development:

In the 1st quarter of 2016, our 90nm embedded flash process platform achieved successful mass production of highly
competitive chips featuring small die size, low power and high performance. It can deliver technical solutions with
excellent price-performance ratio for smart cards and security IC products such as SIM cards, USB keys, bank cards,
social security cards, and MCU.

Through years of dedicated efforts, MCU has become our biggest business segment. For high-end MCU, Hua Hong
Semiconductor has its advanced eFlash/eEEPROM (embedded Electrically Erasable Programmable Read-Only
Memory) process platform, while our cost-effective OTP/MTP (One-Time Programming/Multiple-Time Programming)
process platform provides superior entry-level MCU. Echoing the growing market demand from emerging applications
like loT, cloud computing, big data, smart city and virtual reality (VR), we continue innovating our MCU platforms to
provide customers with leading solutions, featuring lower power, higher performance, security and reliability at an
excellent price-performance ratio. In addition, we have the ability to mix and match our leading embedded memory
techniques with integrated CMOS RF and/or high voltage technologies, greatly expanding the number of available
MCU solutions in response to the diverse requirements of our customers.

We will continue to enhance the competitive edge of our specialized technologies. The total shipment of financial
IC card chips achieved 200 million in 2016. Bank card IC products from our customers obtained three significant
certifications: (i) the EMVCo security certificate, (ii) the CC (Common Criteria) EAL5+Security Certificate, and (iii) the
Card Quality Management (CQM) certification from MasterCard. These certificates prove that the Company’s process
for chips for financial IC cards and our security management system have reached an internationally advanced
level and gained worldwide recognition. These achievements lay a solid foundation for the Company to tap the high
potential in the local and international financial markets.

As the LED driver IC foundry with the largest shipments in China, Hua Hong Semiconductor is well-prepared for
the strong momentum in the market due to our introduction of a full range of power management IC solutions. The
company shipped approximately two billion chips built on the ultra-high voltage 700V BCD process platform in
2016, leading the LED lighting market. We also successfully developed an ultrahigh voltage junction field effect
transistor (JFET) based on the 700V LDMOS for switching mode LED drivers, which also contributed to our success
in the market. The 700V BCD process platform has an excellent performance-price ratio, tailored for LED IC AC-DC
converters. We will continue R&D investment to expand this platform to cover more applications such as motor drives.
For example, we have an enhanced 700V BCD technology under development to further expand its competitiveness.
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We are proud to announce some very encouraging news, namely that the accumulated shipments of wafers from
our discrete platform have crossed the 5 million mark. This is an amazing milestone. As a global leading pure-play
200mm foundry with more than 10-year’s proven track record in stable volume production of power discrete, we are
the first 200mm foundry in the industry with vertical trench SINFET and field-stop IGBT process platforms. Working
toward even more high-end discrete technology solutions for customers, our third-generation vertical trench SUNFET
process platform has been launched, providing customers with a production solution featuring lower on-resistance,
lower footprint and switching loss, and faster switching speed. The key device parameters have reached world-class
standard. Of special note, Hua Hong Semiconductor is the only foundry in China possessing a complete set of IGBT
backside processing technologies providing a full spectrum of solutions ranging from low to high voltage for green
energy applications, and having the ability to tailor power devices according to customers’ various requirements.

The Company is the only IC company appearing in the Top10 Invention Patent Grant List 2016, published by the
State Intellectual Property Office (SIPO) of China, This is a new milestone for the Company’s technical innovation and
intellectual property expansion. This achievement would have been impossible without the Company’s constant pursuit
of excellence in technical innovation and intellectual property protection. In future, we will remain on track to deliver
more stunning technical innovations.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws and
regulations having a significant impact on the Company.

Outlook for 2017

Due to stimulation by China’s semiconductor policies and the government’s encouragement of startups to expand
innovation, the number of semiconductor design houses in China has been expanding rapidly, resulting in a
commensurate rapid growth of design house sales volume, especially in discrete, bank card, and MCU applications,
where the Company has technology strength. We will continue to benefit from this trend.

We plan to expand our capacity in 2017 to be able to better serve the growing demand for our products, especially
MCU.

Following the successful development of our 90nm embedded NVM technologies, exhibiting competitive memory size
and superior reliability performance, an increasing number of smart card products will migrate to 90nm in 2017, which
will further enhance our strength in smart card markets.

Due to the growing volume of smart phone shipments and the future development and adoption of 5G cellular
communications, the demand for RF components in mobile devices will keep expanding. To target such applications
and to keep pace with the demand, we will continue to develop RF related technologies, including RF SOI.

Looking forward, our roadmap focuses on the further reduction of the size of memory units and IP modules and

optimization of our advanced differentiated technologies, all to deliver efficient and cost-effective value-added solutions
to our diverse customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Performance

2016 2015 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Revenue 721,428 650,131 11.0%
Cost of sales (501,080) (448,705) 11.7%
Gross profit 220,348 201,426 9.4%
Other income and gains 34,761 42,717 (18.6)%
Fair value gains on an investment property 72 58 24.1%
Selling and distribution expenses (6,814) (7,292) (6.6)%
Administrative expenses (97,404) (104,855) (7.1)%
Other expenses (666) (9) 7,300.0%
Finance costs (3,873) (7,754) (50.1)%
Share of profits of an associate 7,056 961 634.2%
Profit before tax 153,480 125,252 22.5%
Income tax expense (24,648) (12,703) 94.0%
Profit for the year 128,832 112,549 14.5%

Explanation of items with fluctuation over 5% in 2016

Revenue

Revenue reached US$721.4 million, an increase of 11.0% over 2015, primarily due to strong demand for MCU,
discrete, analog and power management IC, and logic and radio frequency products, partially offset by lower demand
for smart card IC and standalone NVM products.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales was US$501.1 million, 11.7% higher than 2015, primarily due to increased wafer shipments.

Gross profit
Gross profit was US$220.3 million, an increase of 9.4% compared to 2015, primarily due to higher wafer shipments,
partially offset by increased depreciation and amortization expenses.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains were US$34.8 million, a decrease of 18.6% compared to 2015, primarily due to lower interest
income, general subsidies and foreign exchange gains.
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Fair value gain on an investment property
Fair value gain on an investment property reflects a gain in valuation on the investment property. As the appraised
value in 2016 remained stable compared to 2015, the fair value gain was relatively small.

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses were US$6.8 million, a decrease of 6.6% over 2015, primarily due to currency
translation differences arising from RMB depreciation in 2016.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses were US$97.4 million, a decrease of 7.1% over 2015, primarily due to (i) a lower impairment
provision, and (ii) increased R&D grants.

Other expenses
Other expenses increased to US$0.7 million in 2016.

Finance costs
Finance costs were US$3.9 million, down by 50.1% from 2015, mainly due to lower bank borrowings.

Share of profits of an associate
Share of profits of an associate increased from US$1.0 million in 2015 to US$7.1 million in 2016, mainly due to higher
profit realized by said associate.

Income tax expense
Income tax expense was US$24.6 million, an increase of 94.0% from 2015, primarily due to (i) increased taxable
income, and (ii) a reversal of dividend withholding tax in 2015.

Profit for the year

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, profit for the year increased to US$128.8 million from
US$112.5 million in 2015. Net profit margin increased from 17.3% in 2015 to 17.9% in 2016.
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Financial Status

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 Change
US$’000 US$'000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 656,517 629,180 4.3%
Investment property 169,074 180,542 (6.4)%
Investment in an associate 45,121 40,833 10.5%
Available-for-sale investments 203,330 217,214 (6.4)%
Other non-current assets 37,828 46,134 (18.0)%
Total non-current assets 1,111,870 1,113,903 (0.2)%
Current assets
Inventories 95,199 107,081 (11.1)%
Trade and notes receivables 106,078 103,822 2.2%
Other current assets 46,715 34,690 34.7%
Restricted and time deposits 125,547 41,796 200.4%
Cash and cash equivalents 341,255 510,441 (33.1)%
Total current assets 714,794 797,830 (10.4)%
Current liabilities
Trade payables 64,790 66,280 (2.2)%
Other current liabilities 171,281 168,896 1.4%
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 1,874 42,750 (95.6)%
Total current liabilities 237,945 277,926 (14.4)%
Net current assets 476,849 519,904 (8.3)%
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 90,757 137,871 (34.2)%
Deferred tax liabilities 9,276 5,246 76.8%
Total non-current liabilities 100,033 143,117 (30.1)%
Net assets 1,488,686 1,490,690 (0.1)%
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Explanation of items with fluctuation over 5% from 31 December 2015 to 31 December 2016

Investment property
Investment property decreased from US$180.5 million to US$169.1 million, primarily due to currency translation
differences arising from RMB depreciation in 2016.

Investment in an associate
Investment in an associate increased from US$40.8 million to US$45.1 million, primarily due to profit shared from the
associate in 2016.

Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments decreased from US$217.2 million to US$203.3 million, primarily due to the currency
translation difference arising from RMB depreciation in 2016.

Other non-current assets
Other non-current assets decreased from US$46.1 million to US$37.8 million, primarily due to decreased advanced
payments for equipment, and amortization of intangible assets and prepaid land lease payments in 2016.

Inventories
Inventories decreased from US$107.1 million to US$95.2 million, primarily due to faster inventory turnover.

Other current assets
Other current assets increased from US$34.7 million to US$46.7 million, primarily due to increased trade receivables
from related parties resulting from higher revenue from certain related parties in 2016.

Restricted and time deposits
Restricted and time deposits increased from US$41.8 million to US$125.5 million, largely due to increased time
deposits.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$510.4 million to US$341.3 million, mainly due to (i) capital investments
of US$172.6 million, (ii) repayments of bank borrowings of US$85.5 million, (iii) investments of US$85.0 million for time
deposits, (iv) dividend payments of US$35.9 million, and (v) interest payments of US$3.9 million. This was offset by (i)
US$211.9 million generated from operating activities, (i) US$20.7 million of government grants for fixed assets, and
(i) US$3.5 million of interest income. Additionally, there was a negative adjustment of US$22.4 million due to RMB
depreciation.
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Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Total Interest-bearing bank borrowings decreased from US$180.6 million to US$92.6 million, mainly due to repayments
of bank borrowings.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities, largely comprising withholding tax accrued for dividend distribution, increased from US$5.2
million to US$9.3 million, primarily due to the accrual of dividend withholding tax in 2016, offset by the tax paid for
2015 dividends.
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2015 Change

US$'000
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 187,777 12.9%
Net cash flows used in investing activities (207,658) 12.4%
Net cash flows used in financing activities (88,693) 41.3%
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (108,574) 35.2%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 646,773 21.1)%
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (27,758) (19.5)%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 510,441 (83.1)%

Net cash flows generated from operating activities
Net cash flows generated from operating activities increased from US$187.8 million to US$211.9 million, mainly due to
higher revenue.

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities were US$233.4 million, primarily attributed to (i) US$172.6 million for capital
investments, and (i) US$85.0 million for time deposits, offset by (i) receipts of US$20.7 million of government grants for
fixed assets, and (ii) receipts of interest income of US$3.5 million.

Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net cash flows used in financing activities were US$125.3 million, including (i) repayments of bank borrowings of
US$85.5 million, (i) US$35.9 million for dividend payment, and (iii) an interest payment of US$3.9 million.

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, cash and cash equivalents decreased from US$510.4 million
as of 31 December 2015 to US$341.3 million as of 31 December 2016.
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Foreign currency risk

We are exposed to foreign exchange risks. Such exposures arise primarily from sales or purchases by HHGrace in
US$ rather than in the subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. As of 31 December 2016, if the US dollar had
strengthened/weakened against the RMB by five percent, with all other variables held constant, our profit before tax for
the year would have been approximately US$6.9 million higher/lower.

Interest rate risk
Our exposure to risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to our interest-bearing bank borrowings with a
floating interest rate. Our policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts.

As of 31 December 2016, if interest rates on bank loans had been one percent higher/lower, with all other variables
held constant, our profit before tax for the year would have been approximately US$0.6 million lower/higher.

Credit risk

We trade only with recognized and creditworthy third parties and related parties. It is our policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and our exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets are: the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties and pledged and time deposits included in the consolidated statement of financial
position. We have no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

To meet liquidity requirements in the short and long term, our policy is to monitor regularly the current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that we maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions.

Capital management
Our primary objectives of capital management are to safeguard our ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios to support our business and maximize shareholders’ value.

We manage our capital structure and make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To do this, we may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. We are not subject

to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

Details of the gearing ratio are set out in note 36 to the Financial Statements.
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Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state of affairs at that date are set out in the
Financial Statements on pages 163 to 251 of this report.

Final Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.30 per share for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM, the proposed final dividend will be payable on Friday, 16
June 2017 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 22 May
2017.

Dividend Policy

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders and the requirements of law, it has been decided that the Company
will pay dividends to the Shareholders for the year of 2015 and onwards if the Group is profitable, the operations
environment is stable and there is no significant investment made by the Group. It is intended that the average of
dividends paid in three consecutive years will be no less than 30% of the average distributable net profit of these three
years. The remaining net profit will be used for the development and operations of the Group.

This dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any amount for any given period. In the event that the Board recommends a dividend, the form and amount
will depend on the assessment by the Directors of the factors affecting the Group from time to time.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 25 to the
Financial Statements.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 252. This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Use of Proceeds from the Initial Public Offering

After deducting share issuance expenses, the net proceeds from the initial public offering of the Company’s shares
in October 2014 amounted to approximately US$320.2 million. As of 31 December 2016, the Group had used
approximately US$263.3 million for expansion of our manufacturing capacity, specifically in investments in equipment,
tools and facilities, approximately US$56.9 million for our working capital, technology and intellectual property, and
other general corporate purposes. The remaining balance of the net proceeds from 2015 was applied fully in 2016 in
the manner set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 October 2014.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of additions and other movements during the year ended 31 December 2016 in the property, plant and
equipment and investment property of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the Financial Statements.

In addition, details of the investment property are set out below:

Location Type of Use Term of Lease Group’s Interest Gross Floor Area
(sq.m.)

Portions of 9 buildings Industrial use Held under a land use 100% 91,563.11

No. 818 Guo Shou Jing Road right for a term expiring

Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park on 8 March 2051

Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Share Capital and Share Option Scheme

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note
28 to the Financial Statements. The movements include the automatic inclusion of the amount standing to the share
premium account into the share capital as from 3 March 2014 in accordance with section 37 of Schedule 11 to the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), as part of the transition to the no-par value regime.

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved by an extraordinary general meeting of the

Company held on 1 September 2015. A summary of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain and provide
incentives to the Participants (defined below), to provide them with the
opportunity to obtain Shares of the Company and to link their interests
closely to the operating results and share performance of the Company
with the view to increasing the value of the Company.

Participants: The participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Participants”) include
(1) existing Executive and Non-Executive Directors of any member of
the Group; or (2) senior management and key managerial and technical
personnel having a direct impact on the results of operations and
sustainable development of any member of the Group, subject always
to any limits and restrictions specified in the Share Option Scheme, but
shall not include any Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant:

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised:

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the Share Option and the
period within which payments or calls
must be made or loans for such purposes
must be paid:

Remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme:

If the total number of Shares allotted and which may fall to be allotted
upon exercise of all the share options (“Share Options”) granted and

to be granted (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding Share
Options) to a Participant in any 12-month period in aggregate exceeds
1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time, no further
grant of Share Options shall be given to such Participant. Share Options
may be granted to a Participant in excess of the individual limit of 1%

in any 12-month period only with the approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting. No Share Option shall be granted to any person who
holds over 5% of Shares which carry voting rights on the Grant Date (as
defined in the Share Option Scheme) unless such grant is approved by
shareholders in general meeting.

Two years unless otherwise stated in the grant notice of the Share
Option.

HK$1.00 is to be paid by each grantee as consideration for the grant of
Share Option within 28 days from the date of offer.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
seven (7) years commencing on the date of adoption and will expire on
1 September 2022.

Details of the Share Options granted are as follows:

Date of grant:

Exercise price of options granted:

Number of options granted:

Validity period of the options:

Vesting period of the options:

4 September 2015
HK$6.912

30,250,000 (representing 2.93% of the issued shares of the Company as
at the date of this report).

From 4 September 2015 to 3 September 2022 (seven (7) years), both
dates inclusive.

One third of the options shall vest on each of 4 September 2017,
4 September 2018 and 4 September 2019.

The exercise price of HK$6.912 per Share represents a premium of 0% over the higher of (i) the closing price of
HK$6.87 per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the“Stock Exchange”) on the date of the grant; or (ii) the average closing price of HK$6.912 per Share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.
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Details of the movements in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Number of share options

Cancelled  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Exercise
Name or category of Grantedat  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the Exercise period of price of
participants 04.09.2015 year 2015 year 2016 year 2016 year 2016 At 31.12.2016 share options share options
Directors
Mr. Yu Wang 869,000 - - - - 869,000 04.09.2017-03.09.2022 HK$6.912
Mr. Takayuki Morita 119,000 - - - - 119,000 04.09.2017-03.09.2022 HK$6.912
Other employees
In aggregate 29,262,000 (130,000 - (1,458,000 - 27,674,000 04.09.2017-03.09.2022 HK$6.912

30,250,000 (130,000) - (1,458,000 - 28,662,000

The Company has not granted any additional share options or adopted any share option scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 167 of this report.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 October 2014 a series of continuing connected
transactions relating to Huahong Zealcore, QST, NEC Management Partner, Ltd. (NEC Management), INESA, Shanghai
Huali, Huahong Real Estate and Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (Huajin Property Management).
Certain details of the transactions are summarized in the table below. The Company has applied for and the Stock
Exchange has granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance with the announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement (as the case may be) in respect of such continuing connected transactions. Details
of the continuing connected transaction of the Group are as follow:

Unit: US$'000
Actual Proposed
Parties to the Transaction  Annual Caps
Transaction  Transaction Date Transaction Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2016 2016
(1) 1 July 2014 Huahong Zealcore  Huahong Zealcore is 90.66%  Sales agreement between 9,397 13,900
(as purchaser) held by and a subsidiary the Company as seller
of Huahong Group, the and Huahong Zealcore
The Company (as Company’s controlling as purchaser in relation to
seller) shareholder. the sales of IC and other

semiconductor products to
Huahong Zealcore.
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Actual Proposed
Parties to the Transaction  Annual Caps
Transaction  Transaction Date Transaction Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2016 2016
2) 1 November QST (as purchaser) QST was 36.36% held Sales agreement between 2,393 16,000
2013 by SAIL, the Company’s the Company as seller and
The Company (as controlling shareholder, of QST as purchaser in relation
seller) which 27.27% interest was 1o the sales of IC and other
held directly by SAIL and semiconductor products to
9.09% interest was held QST.
directly by the Company."
(3) 18 May 2014 QST (as receiver of QST was 36.36% held Service agreement between 417 500
services) by SAIL, the Company’s QST as receiver of services
controlling shareholder, of and the Company as provider
The Company (as which 27.27% interest was ~ of services in relation to the
provider of services)  held directly by SAIL and provision of services to QST.
9.09% interest was held
directly by the Company.”
4 1 July 2014 Huahong Zealcore  Huahong Zealcore is 90.66%  Purchase agreement between 433 900
(as seller) held by and a subsidiary Huahong Zealcore as seller
of Huahong Group, the and the Company as purchaser
The Company (as  Company's controlling in relation to the purchase
purchaser) shareholder. of materials used in the
manufacturing process of
the Group's semiconductor
products.
(5) 1 July 2014 NEC Management ~ NEC Management is a wholly-  Purchase agreement between 575 1,300
(previously known  owned subsidiary of NEC NEC Management as seller
as NEC Purchasing  Corporation, the Company's  and the Company as purchaser
Service, Ltd.) substantial shareholder. in relation to the purchase of
(as seller) materials and parts used for the
Group’s processing equipment.
The Company
(as purchaser)
(6) 23 September INESA (on behalf INESA is the Company's Purchase agreement between 305 1,400
2014 of itself and its controlling shareholder. INESA as seller (on behalf of

subsidiaries) (as
seller)

The Company
(as purchaser)

itself and its subsidiaries) and
the

Company as purchaser in
relation to the purchase of
goods and services.
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Actual Proposed
Parties to the Transaction  Annual Caps
Transaction  Transaction Date Transaction Connected Relationship Transaction Amount 2016 2016
(7) 25 February 2010 Shanghai Huali (as  Shanghai Huali is 50.23% Lease agreement between 12,518 14,893
(together with  lessee) owned by SAIL, the Shanghai Huali as lessee and
Supplemental Company s controlling the Company as lessor in
agreements The Company (as shareholder. relation to the factory premise
dated 10 June  lessor) situated at Hill 2, 13th street,
2011 and 25 Zhangjiang HiTech park,
July 2014) Pudong New Area, Shanghali,
PRC leased by the Company to
Shanghai Huali for their 300mm
wafer production line. The total
gross floor area leased was
96,099.2 square meters.
(8) 10 January Huahong Real Estate  Huahong Real Estate is a Lease agreement between 1,522 1,522
2013 (as lessor) wholly-owned subsidiary Huahong Real Estate as lessor
of Hua Hong Technology and the Company as lessee
The Company (as Development, a company in relation to the dormitory
lessee) 50% held by and premises situated at Hua Hong
consolidated with Huahong  Innovation Park, Nong 2777,
Group, our controlling Jinxiu Road East, Pudong
shareholder, and 50% held ~ New Area, Shanghai, PRC
by HHNEC. (Dormitory Premises) rented by
the Company from Huahong
Real Estate for use as staff
quarters for the Company’s
employees. The total gross
floor area rented was 17,412.87
square meters.
9) 10 June 2014 Huajin Property Huajin Property Management  Property management 189 196

Management
(as property
manager)

The Company (as
contractor)

is a whollyowned subsidiary
of Hua Hong Technology
Development, a company
50% held by and
consolidated with Huahong
Group, our controlling
shareholder, and 50% held
by HHNEC.

agreement between Huajin
Property Management as
property manager and the
Company as contractor in
relation to the engagement of
Huajin Property Management
by the Group to provide
property management service
for the Dormitory Premises.
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Notes:
(1) This reflects the position as at 31 December 2016.

The agreement for Transaction (2) above expired on 1 November 2016, while the agreements for Transactions (1), (4), (6) and (9)
above expired on 31 December 2016. On 1 January 2017, the Group entered into agreements with the relevant parties to renew
such agreements. Accordingly, the Company has proposed new annual caps for Transactions (1), (2), (4) and (6) above for the
three years ending 31 December 2019, and a new annual cap for Transaction (9) above for the year ending 31 December 2017.
The agreement for Transaction (3) will expire on 31 March 2017 and the Company has proposed a new annual cap for such
transaction for the year ending 31 December 2017. Details of the parties, key terms and proposed annual caps for the relevant
continuing connected transactions stated above are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 December 2016 and
supplementary announcement dated 9 January 2017.

The Board (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) has reviewed the continuing connected transactions as described
above and confirmed that such transactions did in fact continue in 2016:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of 2016:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Company’s Board;

(ii) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes the
auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(iii) nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
causes the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual value disclosed in the Prospectus in respect of each of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “related
parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements. Save as disclosed
in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report, the other related parties transactions
disclosed in note 33 were not regarded as connected transactions or were exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholder approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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The AGM will be held on Thursday, 11 May 2017.

For determining eligibility of Shareholders to attend and vote at the 2017 AGM

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 4 May 2017
Closure of Register of members 51to 11 May 2017

(both dates inclusive)
Record date 11 May 2017

For determining entitlement of Shareholders to the proposed final dividend

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration 4:30 p.m. on 17 May 2017
Closure of Register of members 18 to 22 May 2017

(both dates inclusive)
Record date 22 May 2017
Payable date 16 June 2017

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, and the entitlement of the aforementioned
proposed final dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure all share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later
than the aforementioned latest time.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Suxin Zhang (Chairman) (appointed on 11 March 2016)
Mr. Wenbiao Fu (Chairman) (resigned on 11 March 2016)
Mr. Yu Wang (President)

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Jianbo Chen

Mr. Yuchuan Ma

Mr. Takayuki Morita

Mr. Jun Ye

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang

Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye

Each of the Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term of three years and is subject to re-nomination

and re-election by the Company in general meeting unless previously terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the relevant letter of appointment or director’s service contract.
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Mr. Jianbo Chen, Mr. Yuchuan Ma and Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP will retire by rotation from office as Directors at the
Annual General Meeting, and Mr. Jianbo Chen, Mr. Yuchuan Ma and Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the Annual General Meeting has a service contract which is not
terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the existing Independent Non-
Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

Profiles of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 16 to this report.

Highest Paid Individuals and the Remuneration of the Directors and Senior
Management

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five individuals with highest emoluments are set out in notes 8 and 9
respectively of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Interests of the Directors and the Chief Executive in Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO), as recorded in the register kept under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules.

Number of underlying shares Approximate
Name of Director Capacity held in long position (Note 1)  percentage of interests
Mr. Yu Wang Beneficial owner 869,000 0.08%
Mr. Takayuki Morita Beneficial owner 119,000 0.01%

Notes:

(1) Long position in the underlying shares of the Company under share options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
Interests of Directors in Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors of the Group had any interests in a business which competes, either directly, or
indirectly, with the business of the Company or the Group.

Interests of Directors in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance
No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates

was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 December 2016 or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has devised its own code of conduct regarding Directors dealing in the Company’s securities (the
Company Code) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors,
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Company Code and the Model Code throughout

2016.

Indemnity and insurance

The Company provides director and officers liabilities (D&QO) insurance for the Directors and Officers. The D&O

insurance covers day-to-day management liability and is renewed every year.

Director(s) of the Subsidiaries

The names of Directors who have served on the Boards on the Company’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31

December 2016, or during the period from the end of the year 2016 to the date of this Report, were as follows:

Name of the Subsidiaries Place of Incorporation

Name of the Director

Grace Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Cayman Islands
(“Grace Cayman”)

Shanghai Huahong Grace Semiconductor Shanghai, PRC
Manufacturing Corporation (“HHGrace”)

Global Synergy Technology Limited (“GST”) Hong Kong, PRC
HHGrace Semiconductor USA, Inc. CA, USA
(*HHGrace USA”)

HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan
("HHGrace Japan”)

Shanghai Huajie IC Technology Service Co., Ltd. Shanghai, PRC
(“Shanghai Huajie”)

Mr. Suxin Zhang
Mr. Wenbiao Fu (resigned)
Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Suxin Zhang

Mr. Wenbiao Fu (resigned)
Mr. Yu Wang

Mr. Jianbo Chen

Mr. Yuchuan Ma

Mr. Takayuki Morita

Mr. Jun Ye

Mr. Stephen Tso Tung Chang
Mr. Kwai Huen Wong, JP

Mr. Long Fei Ye

Mr. Daniel Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

Mr. Daniel Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

Ms. Maki Nakamura
Mr. Daniel Wang
Mr. Cheng Fu

Mr. Heng Fan
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, persons other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, having interests of 5% or
more or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Group, were as follows:

percentage of
aggregate interests

Number of in issued
Substantial shareholders Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital*
Shanghai Hua Hong International, Inc. Legal and beneficial owner 350,401,100 33.89%
(Hua Hong International)®
Huahong Group® Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,1001" 33.89%
CEC®@ Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,1001" 33.89%
INESA® Interest in a controlled corporation 350,401,1001" 33.89%
Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Legal and beneficial owner 237,449,769 22.97%
(Sino-Alliance International)
Sino-Alliance International, Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 34,919,354(0 3.38%
(Sino-Alliance International)
SAIL Interest in a controlled corporation 622,770,223 60.24%
NEC Corporation Legal and beneficial owner 99,038,800t 9.58%
AllianceBernstein L.P. nvestment manager 24,860,826" 2.40%
AllianceBernstein L.P. Interest in a controlled corporation 27,796,174 2.69%

Notes:

(1) Long positions in the shares of the Company.

(2) Hua Hong International is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huahong Group. As at 31 December 2016, Huahong Group was 47.08%
owned by CEC, and 47.08% owned by SAIL. In addition, SAIL controlled 51.83% of the voting rights of Huahong Group by virtue
of its 47.08% equity interest in Huahong Group and an additional 4.75% voting rights pursuant to a voting bloc from INESA to
SAIL. Therefore CEC, SAIL and INESA were deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Huahong Group is interested in

by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

(3) Including 3,084 shares held in escrow by Sino-Alliance International pursuant to an escrow arrangement. Sino-Alliance
International transferred 892,647 shares to another shareholder on 22 February 2017.

(4) In addition to the 350,401,100 Shares (33.89%) it indirectly held through Hua Hong International, SAIL indirectly held interests in
the Company through four wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Sino-Alliance International.

*  The percentages are calculated based on the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2016, i.e.,

1,033,871,656 shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any of the Directors and chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2016, no other person or corporation other than a Director or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 were rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less
than 30%, and the total turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than 30%.

Emolument Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 3,938 employees. The Group recruits and promotes individuals
based on merit and their development potentials. The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating

results and individual performance. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

For the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association, or the laws of Hong Kong,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance standards to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report in this annual report.
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Compliance with Deed of Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal

Huahong Group, SAIL and INESA, being controlling shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of
noncompetition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) dated 23 September 2014, details of which have been set out in the
paragraph headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Company'’s prospectus dated 3 October 2014 (the “Prospectus”). In addition, Huahong Group and SAIL also entered
into a deed of right of first refusal (the “Deed of Right of First Refusal”) dated 10 June 2014, details of which have been
set out in the paragraph headed “Deed of Right of First Refusal” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus. The Company has reviewed the written declaration from each of the controlling
shareholders mentioned above on their compliance with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition and the
Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Independent Non-
Executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition and the Deed of Right of First Refusal (as the case may be) have been complied with by the relevant
parties.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the

date of this report, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum public float
under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Suxin Zhang
Chairman

28 March 2017
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Introduction

Our concept of sustainable development and the pursuit of long-term performance is to achieve these under
consideration of economic, environmental and social aspects, as these aspects interact with and support each other,
enabling long-term, sustainable performance. As a listed company operating internationally, we strictly comply with
local applicable laws and meet social expectations in our operations, and we align our standards for environmental
protection to those of the leaders in international industry. We devote ourselves to sustainable cities and communities.
We have complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. In following our corporate vision of Continuous Innovation and
Empowering the Future for Global Customers, we promptly respond to stakeholders, including customers, employees,
investors, communities and countries where we operate, toward the goal of the sustainable development of enterprises
and society.

1 Social Responsibility Management System

1.1 Concept and Management

We believe the fulfillment of corporate social responsibility first and foremost requires pro-active adherence to and
implementation of the highest international standards of business and social ethics while creating value for and sharing
value with all stakeholders. To this end, our Company incorporates environmental and social responsibilities directly
into our business strategies and operations. We take a prudent approach to manage our environmental and social risks
by perfecting our management system, improving supply chain performance and reducing resource consumption and
environmental emissions. We encourage innovation-driven development and recruit and foster diverse talents, thereby
promoting social harmony.

Effective social responsibility management also requires the ongoing attention of senior management and the
involvement of all employees. We established a CSR working group to set up a CSR organization system that enables

management to participate in and coordinate with the functional departments horizontally and member companies
vertically. The working group comprises responsible officers from various functional departments.

CSR Decision Maker Vision
Continuous Innovation, Empowering
[ Board of Directors ] the Future for Global Customers

[ Management j

CSR Executor

[ CSR Working Group]

General Office, Publicity Department, CSR Planning
General Affairs Department, Compliance “New” Profits for Shareholders
Department, Internal Audit Department, Empowering the Future for
Purchase Department, QC Department, Global Customers, “Heart-felt” Value for
Human Resources, EHS, Finance Employees
Department, Marketing Department, “Prosperous” Environment for Society
Labor Union

Structure for CSR Management
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The following four aspects summarize the social responsibility of the corporate vision Continuous Innovation and
Empowering the Future for Global Customers as provided by the Board of Directors as CSR Decision Maker:

Empowering the Future Expanded Profits for Shareholders
Development through Innovation
Consolidate Operations with Integrity
Sharing the Benefits of China’s growth

for Global Customers
Providing Quality Products
Guaranteeing Rights &
Interests of Customers
Booming Industrial Economy

Prosperous Environment for Society
Promoting Green Development
Utilizing Resources Jointly
Promoting Social Harmony

Heart-felt Respect

for the Value of Employees
Caring about Career Development
Protecting Occupational Health

Implementation Focuses of CSR Planning of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
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1.2 Involvement of Stakeholders
Based on the business and operational characteristics of our Company and leveraging the experience and practices
in the industry at home and abroad, we have determined the following to be our stakeholders: our shareholders,
customers, employees, government agencies and regulators, partners, communities and the public. Our Company
actively communicates with all of these stakeholders via various channels and methods, including websites, media,
meetings, reports and other business and social activities.

Shareholders

Customers

Employees

Government and
regulators

Partners

Communities and the public

Expectations and Responses of Stakeholders

Domestic and foreign
investors holding equity
and debt investments in our
Company

IDMs, systems and fabless
semiconductor companies

Our employees and contract
personnel who serve our
Company on a continuous
basis

Industry, tax, environmental
protection, security and
other departments, local
governments, SFC and
other governmental or
regulatory authorities

Suppliers, research
institutions, industry
associations, etc.

Communities in which we
operate, the public, media
and non-profit organizations

Corporate governance
system, business strategy
and performance, stable
profitability and return on
investment

Product quality, service
value, and protection of
customer information

Employee interests and
benefits, compensation
systems, training and
development, working
conditions, health and family
care

Compliant operation,
regulatory transparency,
full tax payment, carbon
emission reduction,
resource conservation

Business ethics and
creditworthiness, fair
competition, compliant
operation, strategic
alliances with mutual
benefits

Community development,
social welfare,
environmental protection,
business ethics

Shareholders’ meetings,
financial reports,
performance reports, results
road shows, etc.

Product exhibitions,
customer research,
technical seminars, B2B
(such as E-tapeout systems,
WIP report and WAT report,
etc.), customer service
hotlines and complaints,
customer satisfaction
surveys, etc.

Employee activities,
Employee Representatives
Congress, Intranet,
trainings, self-service
systems and employee
manuals, internal
publications, etc.

On-site visit, official
correspondences, policy
enforcement, information
disclosure, etc.

Public tender conferences,
strategic cooperation
negotiations, exchanges
and visits, etc.

Community activities,
employee volunteer
activities, public welfare
activities, social cause
campaigns, etc.
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1.3 Risk Management and Identification and Analysis of Substantive Issues

Risk Management

We continuously improve our system of risk management by upgrading relevant processes and policies, thereby
effectively enhancing our capabilities in comprehensive risk management. In 2016, the Company established
procedures for risk management through an internal audit department. It issued the guideline “Rules about
Comprehensive Control of Risks” and launched related projects. The department compiled an index of risk information,
designed a questionnaire about risks and carried out related interviews, recognizing and evaluating key areas of risk.
As a result, the 2016 Risk Control Report was published and special risk control trainings were carried out to enhance

awareness of risks and how to control them.

Key ESG Risks and Countermeasures

Finance Cash flow

Exchange fluctuations

Environment and Safety Environment

Project evaluation

Safety check

Occupational health

Post-evaluation of
projects

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

Prepare cash flow statements on a monthly basis to
record cash flows and dispatch the same to relevant
departments for follow-up actions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
settled in foreign currency whenever possible to reduce
the need for foreign currency exchange, thus reducing
risks arising from exchange rate fluctuations

We design management procedures based on our
observation, assessment and control of environmental
factors, and list major environmental factors

Prior to the commencement of each project, we perform
a comprehensive assessment of the possible impact the
project may pose to the environment and occupational
health and safety

Safety checks focusing on troubleshooting and fault
diagnosis are carried out on a continuous and regular
basis

We have developed the goals, indicators and

program management forms of our environmental and
occupational health and safety programs in accordance
with the Company’s established goals, indicators and
program management procedures for health, safety and
environment (“HSE”)

Post-evaluation and analysis of projects (their purpose,
the process, benefits, roles and influence regarding
risks) are conducted in a comprehensive manner to
provide scientific data for improving the benefits of
investments
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Risk Category Content Countermeasures

Production Structure of customers Strategy about optimizing structure of customers is
provided by the Marketing Department and Sales
Department, thus facilitating regular evaluation of
customer structure and promoting smooth operations

Products Information security Based on our Management Rules about Information
Security, the Company established a framework for
information security, and management carries out an
evaluation of information security every year to maintain
the optimal interests of the Company, shareholders,
customers, suppliers and employees

Cash flow Prepare cash flow statements monthly to record cash
flows, and dispatch the same to relevant departments
for follow-up actions

Identification and Analysis of Substantive Issues

We check social responsibility issues on a regular basis, and identify the more substantive ones on which to focus
our operations, reporting and disclosures through periodic identification, evaluation and screening. We consider both
internal and external factors such as our strategic and operational direction, stakeholders’ concerns and expectations,
as well as national and international standards and policies.

In 2016, we continued the Sustainable Development Report Guidelines GRI4 and updated the questionnaire
concerning substantial topics with both internal and external stakeholders. Compared with the questionnaire last year,
the stakeholders within the Company are more aware of product/service safety, communication with customers and
satisfaction of customers, showing a tendency of giving more emphasis to products and customers. Regarding the
stakeholders outside the Company, issues related to compliance with rules and integrity in operation are now being
emphasized, representing social awareness and focus on integrity of enterprise.

? Q Economy
S/

?? iﬁ ? o Products

Environment

High Economic performance

Corporate governance and risk management
Corporate Strategy and planning
Compliance and honesty

Industry development

Supply chain management

MmO O m >

e

Product/service safety

Product/service innovation

Customer communication and satisfaction
Customers’ interests and information protection

«—I®

Reduction in impact on environment
Responses to climate change

siep|oyayels o} eouenodw)|
— X

Employee interest and benefits
Employee training and development
Occupational health and safety
Labor standards

Employee assistance

0DUVvozxZ

R Community involvement
S Anti-corruption

Low Importance to the Company High Community
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2 Environmental Responsibilities

We take “Zero Accidents” and sustainable operation as our goal, and devote ourselves to clean production and
continuous improvement. In 2016, we undertook seven projects related to environmental protection and technological
reform, investing more than RMB2 million into these projects, and participated in work with respect to the “Carbon
Emission Trading of Shanghai Environment and Energy Exchange”. We prioritize improving energy savings,
reducing emissions and controlling waste. At the same time, we continue to focus on laws and regulations related to
environmental protection. By the end of 2016, the Company had received no complaints or fines due to environment
issues, and no environmental contamination had occurred.

Review of environmental responsibilities-related laws and regulations

Areas Names of main laws and regulations Number of laws identified

Environmental protection Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s

Republic of China on Prevention and Control

of Atmospheric Pollution, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control

of Air Pollution Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Evaluation of Environmental Effects, Regulations
of Shanghai Municipality of Environmental
Protection, etc.

109 laws and regulations

2.1 Environmental Management System

With the upgraded 1ISO14001 Management System, our environmental management concept gradually shifted from
a model advocating production and management to a mechanism focusing on control of product life cycles and risk
control. Our Company is devoted to improving environmental performance every step of the process, including the
entry of raw materials, production and waste management.

Entry of Raw Materials Production and Waste Management

Manufacturing

e The first priority is

qualification examination
and compliance of
suppliers.

On-site management and
emissions compliance is
reexamined, adversities
recorded,with emphasis
on improving the
environment.

conducted in accordance
with permissible sewage
discharge and the project
for reducing use of
materials is implemented.

60 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

e Management shall be .

Regarding recycling
resources, waste gas and
chemicals are distributed
between different systems
in factory, reducing the
need for external
resources.

The project for recycling
water resources is carried
out to increase the overall
recycling rate and the
pressure of water
resources supply from
pipe network is lowered.
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2.2 Action and Achievements in Environmental Management

Energy Management

We always regard clean production, energy savings and emission reduction as important annual tasks. We worked out
the “Procedure of Resource and Energy Management”, specifying the principles of resource and energy management
to enable continuous improvement. We increase production rates based on the principle of saving energy, reducing
consumption and wastes. When lowering production costs, we avoid affecting the environment as much as possible by
implementing sustainable and environmentally harmonious development.

In January 2016, we were awarded “Excellent Enterprise” of the Energy Saving and Emission Reduction Activity
Team in Shanghai 2014-2015, jointly issued by the Instruction Committee of Energy Saving and Emission Reduction
Activity Team in Shanghai, the Shanghai Federation of Industrial Economics, and the Shanghai Federation of Economic
Organization. One hundred of our employees participated in and passed the training and tests held by the Energy
Saving and Emission Reduction Activity Team. With the help of the Project of Environmental Protection, Energy Saving
and Technology Reform in 2016, more than 10,000 tons of water were saved annually and electricity and gas with a
value equaling to 1,200 tons of standard coal was saved every year.

Major Project and Measures for
Saving Energy in 2016 Achievements

Cold pure water system based on water pump control 140kWh of electricity is saved every hour, and total energy
and the reform of variable frequency operation saved is equal to 495.5 tons of standard coal

New-type drying machine is adopted on CDA system  697,000kWh of electricity is saved each year, equaling to
to reduce operation cost 281.6 tons of standard coal

Reform of BTSPTAO8 Pump by eliminating Roots Pump 8,000kWh of electricity is saved each year, equaling to 2.4
tons of standard coal

Chiller is eliminated from BIILMAOS, the water cooling About RMB400,000 of gas is saved, equaling to 111,000
is reformed square meters of gas or 147.6 tons of standard coal

Warm pure water of WPA/WSA rinse tank is reformed 222,000 square meters of cooling water was saved, equaling
into cold pure water 295 tons of standard coal

Humidifier is reformed RMB32,750 is saved each year, equaling to 65 tons of
standard coal

Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
Total Energy Consumption (tons of standard coal) 65,253 67,746 73,771
Total Electricity Consumed (ten thousand kWh) 41,274 44,063 48,183
Electricity Consumed in Unit Production (kWh/8 inches wafer) 291 297 271
Volume of Gas Consumed (ten thousand m?) 707.65 604.38 658.00
Gas Consumed in Unit Production (m3/8 inches wafer) 5.00 4.07 3.70
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Water Resource Management

The Company mainly uses tap water supplied by Shanghai Municipal Administration. In addition, some of our water
comes from recycled water from our production facilities and condensate water from air-conditioning. Through
technological reform and recycling, we actively seek ways of improving efficiency in saving water and utilizing water
resources. We also promote saving water in our industry. We sponsored the “Seminar about Technological Reform
for Saving Water by Large Industrial Enterprises” held by the Shanghai Water Supplies Bureau in 2016. During
the seminar, municipal leaders and approximately 40 representatives from key water users in Shanghai discussed
strategies and measures for saving water.

Measures of Improving Water Utilization

Efficiency in 2016 Achievements

RO Water Recycling Project 430,000m3 of water saved/year

Saving Water by Local Scrubber 21,000m3 of water saved/year

Project for Expanding High-power MOS Integrated Increase of municipal water quota by 940,000 tons

Circuit Production Line

Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
Total Water Consumed (ten thousand tons) 454.5 472.2 504.5
Water Consumed in Unit Production (ton/8 inches wafer) 3.2 3.2 2.8
Volume of Recycled water (ten thousand tons) 251.4 235.5 258.0
Total Volume of Waste Water Discharged (ten thousand tons) 409.1 415.2 454.0

Prevention and Control of Pollutants

In prevention and control of pollutants, we follow the rules and regulations related to environmental protection and
relevant matters, meeting all emission requirements. We organized workshops analyzing the newly revised Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution in order to carry out emissions
control according to the new regulations. The waste discharged during production includes sulfuric acid mist,
hydrogen chloride, nitric oxide, ammonia and volatile organic compounds. We established a system for processing
waste gas that meets new requirements for controlling emissions. This system can eliminate over 90% of the VOCs
generated.

Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
Total Volume of Waste Gas Emitted (ten thousand m?) 1,200,000 1,210,151 1,060,281
Volume of NOx Discharged (ton) 15.169 20.364 26.260
Volume of SOx Discharged (ton) 0.066 0.055 0.050

62 HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED



Greenhouse Gas Management

The emission of large amounts of greenhouse gases such as CO2 is the main contributor to global warming, therefore
it is of great importance to us to reduce emission of such gases, as slowing down global warming is advantageous
to the whole world. In 2016, with the start of the control over carbon emission by Shanghai Municipal Development
& Reform Commission, we actively took part in relevant work to cut greenhouse gas emission to reduce the pace
of global warming. At present, we have established Procedures for the Control Carbon Emission Credit Trading and
completed work related to opening accounts for enterprises to safeguard and facilitate smooth trading of carbon
credits in 2017.

Statistics related to emissions will be reported in “Examination Report of Annual Emission and Inspection Report” in
accordance with requirements of Shanghai Municipal Development & Reform Commission. It is expected that the first
inspection shall be carried out in the first half of 2017.

Waste Management

Wafer production generates dangerous wastes, including acid, isopropanol and others. We authorized a qualified
company for treatment of these wastes. At the same time, we strive to cut the volume of waste and worked out annual
plans for eliminating dangerous wastes. In 2016, we planned to cut 84.10 tons of waste photoresist, waste stripping
liquid, waste sulfuric acid, waste isopropanol and waste phosphoric acid. We exceeded our plan, and the actual
amount of wastes cut was 85.02 tons.

Volume of Dangerous Wastes Discharged (ton) 3,597.00 4,073.40 4,323.70
Volume of Dangerous Wastes in Unit Production

(ton/8 inches wafer) 0.0025 0.0027 0.0024
Total Volume of General Wastes (ton)

Note: General wastes are usually calcium fluoride 2,455.80 2,786.00 2,108.00
Volume of General Wastes in Unit Production

(ton/8 inches wafer) 0.0017 0.0019 0.0012
Total Volume of Packaging Materials for Finished Products (ton) 48.92 51.18 71.33
Volume of Recycled Packaging Materials for

Finished Products (ton) 8.01 9.78 12.91

2.3 Green Products

Control of Hazardous Substances

In accordance with the regulation Restriction of Hazardous Substances (RoHS) concerning the Registration, Evaluation,
Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals (REACH) as formulated by the EU, as well as customer requirements,
we worked out standards for control of hazardous substances, established a system to do so and carried out risk
evaluation for raw materials in production, thus guaranteeing that products are in compliance with requirements of
customers regarding control of hazardous substances. The Company entrusted Societe Generale de Surveillance
S.A. (SGS) to conduct tests for hazardous substances, and realized 100% compliance in investigation of hazardous
substances in 2015 and 2016. All manufacturing devices of the Company are verified to comply with the standards
and requirements of QC 080000 reduction of reducing hazardous substances in electronic elements and apparatus
and products.
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Energy Saving of Electronic Products

There is an increased awareness of the need for environmental protection, and the need to save energy and reduce
emission becomes increasingly urgent. Reducing the high energy consumption of electronic products is one of the hot
topics of today. The emerging markets and products under this spotlight, e.g. new energy automobiles, intelligent grids
and LED drives, have all been focusing on manufacturing platforms for green chips with lower consumption, higher
efficiency and smaller size. In response to the supply-side reform of China advocating products with higher quality,
we implemented related craft solutions to provide mobile devices with longer stand-by times, faster battery charging
and lower energy consumption. We also provide stable and diverse drive circuits for LED lighting, supply battery
charging devices and adapters for next generation mobile devices with higher efficiency and smaller size, and supply
motor-driven modules for new energy automobiles with higher intelligence, higher efficiency and stability.

2.4 Green Culture

We persist in promoting environmentally friendly business concepts and undertake external and internal environmental
protection measures. In terms of routine operation and administration, the Company implements a sustainable
development concept using science and technology and by adopting good practices. For example, we adopt web-
connected printing and use office automation equipment intensively to control paper consumption, and we also
encourage the use of recycled paper to support recycling. The Office Application System for General Affairs and
Food Management System was developed for online use which makes it convenient to handle relevant work, improves
work efficiency and saves consumption of paper. At the same time, the Company strongly supports the use of electric
vehicles, and uses them in its own vehicle fleet. In 2016, the Company was awarded the “Five-star of Sustainable
Development in Jingiao Industrial Park of Pudong New Area” and donated all the bonus to the Shanghai Non-profit
Foundation for Environmental Protection.

Participation in Environmental Protection

° We took part in recycling wastes activities organized by alahb.com to prevent second contamination of
environment while recycling wastes

Awards

o 2016 Five-star of Sustainable Development in Jingiao Industrial Park of Pudong New Area
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3 Employee-Related Responsibilities

We always strive to provide our employees with an environment that is equal, healthy, safe and comfortable. We strictly
follow related laws and regulations and have established human resource systems to protect all legitimate rights
and interests of employees. We established a safe working environment and stipulated a detailed index for safety
inspections to facilitate our regular training and emergency exercises for employees. No infringement of the rights and
interests of employees occurred in 2016, and we were not subject to any employee-related complaints or penalties.

Sorting of employee-related responsibilities-related laws and regulations

Areas

Names of main laws and regulations Number of laws identified

Employee interests and benefits

Employee Health and Safety

Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Employment
Contracts, Employment Promotion Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Special Rules on
the Labor Protection of Female Employees,
Regulations of Shanghai Municipality on the Trade
Union, etc.

168 laws and regulations
Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Shanghai Regulation on the Safety
Management of Hazardous Chemicals, etc.
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3.1 Rights and Benefits

Employment

We insist on fair, equal and open recruitment and employment, and are committed to providing equal opportunity in all
our human resources activities such as employee selection, recruitment, promotion, transfer, and remuneration. We do
not implement or engage in discriminatory policies or injurious actions for any reason, in particular nationality, region,
color of skin, ethnicity, religion, age, family conditions or other factors. We have formulated and follow the guidelines
described in “Employment Procedures and the Management Procedures for Trainees”. We strictly check the identity
information of our employees, and do not employ children or adolescents under the age of 16 years. Meanwhile, we
resolutely prevent all compulsory labor practices.

Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
Type Group
Sex Male 2,548 2,647 2,772
Female 1,130 1,140 1,166
Type of employment Labor contract employees 3,678 3,787 3,938
Contract outsourcing employees' 167 160 225
Age < 30 years 1,919 1,878 1,922
30-50 years 1,686 1,827 1,936
> 50 years 73 82 80
Region Mainland China 3,669 3,777 3,928
Overseas 9 10 10
Management Female 9 9 11
Male 66 63 61
Employee turnover New recruits 815 606 885
Turnover 508 509 681
Mainland China/overseas employee 507/1 507/2 681/0
turnover
Turnover of employees under 30 380/128/0  385/110/14 518/148/15
years/30-50 years/over 50 years
Rate of Signing of Labor Contract (%) 100 100 100
Rate of Insurance Coverage of Employees (%) 100 100 100
Proportion of Employees Covered by Agreement of Collective Negotiation 100 100 100
(%)
Number of Cases of Employees Complaints (case) 0 0 0
Number of Cases of Discrimination against Employees (case) 0 0 0

! Includes security personnel and logistical personnel
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Remuneration and Benefits

To attract and retain talent, we provide our employees with competitive remuneration and comprehensive benefit
plans; we also pay full statutory social insurance, purchase commercial supplemental coverage for our employees,
including accident insurance and major-illness medical insurance, and provide free supplemental medical insurance
to children and spouses of those employees in financial distress. We guarantee the rights of our employees to rest and
off-duty days in compliance with national statutory requirements, and also allow supplemental annual paid leave. For
the Mid-Autumn Festival and New Year’s Day, the Labor Union arranges to send gifts to the employees. In addition,
in order to help those employees from remote areas to be recorded in their local census register, the Company has
formulated “Measures for Employees from Other Provinces or Cities on Application for Registration in the Census
Register of Shanghai” to help solve related worries of employees. In 2016, the Company introduced a total of 62
professionals.

Mechanism of Democratic Communication

A smooth communication channel and sincere concern are important to establishing harmonious labor-capital
relationship. We worked out Rules on Management of Reasonable Suggestions of Employees, we established a trade
union and convened regular seminars of employee representatives to invite employees into the daily management
of the company and establishment of systems. At the same time, we listen to employees through various means,
including round-table luncheons, and attend promptly to reasonable suggestions.

In August 2016, a platform for gathering suggestions was formally established. As of the end of 2016, altogether 169
reasonable suggestions had been submitted, covering areas such as administration, personnel, safety, trade union
and IT. We implemented sixty of them. The platform has become a rapid and effective channel for communication with
and suggestions from employees.

Care and Support for Employees

We have established a supporting mechanism and a “home” for employees to provide long-term assistance to
employees with difficulties. For example, we organize activities for the retired during Spring Festival and Double Ninth
Festival, and we cover all our retired employees of the Shanghai municipality with a mutual-support supplemental
medical insurance, and renew their insurance every year. For female employees, we assisted the Trade Union of
Shanghai Municipality in organizing activities “Mom with Love” and equipped all nursing rooms of various factories with
refrigerators, workbenches, electric power and deck chairs. The activity aims to provide space and lactation service
for the female employees during their suckling period. The space is private, clean, comfortable and safe, thus settling
any potential worries.

Fund supporting impoverished and needy employees

(in ten thousand yuan) 20 26 30.70
Number of benefited employees with difficulties 80 81 228
Wedding congratulation and funeral consolation (in ten thousand yuan) 12.10 13.30 19.11
Condolences for employees (in ten thousand yuan) 110 270 348.87
Amount donated by employees (in ten thousand yuan) 510 15.00 5.21
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3.2 Health and Safety
Occupational Health and Safety Management

To guarantee health and safety of our employees, we established mechanisms for occupational health and safety
in compliance with requirements of OHSAS18001. We clearly stipulate the guidelines about professional health and
safety, and strictly follow laws and regulations on safety, health and environmental protection, advocating clean
production and continuous improvement. We create a safe, healthy and comfortable working environment, strenuously
pursuing the highest goal of “zero accidents” and sustainable operation, and work hard to become a model citizen of

the world.

In 2016, two major laws were amended: The Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases and the Shanghai Regulation on the Safety Management of Hazardous Chemicals. Thereafter,
we conducted a thorough study of these amended laws and regulations and reevaluated and adapted positions with
potential occupational harm, and promoted information management regarding entry and exit of dangerous chemicals.

Measures for Protecting Health and Safety of Employees in 2016

Improving Safety and Responsibility System

Upgrading System for Identification of Hidden
Dangers and Emergency Plan

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED

Internally, the Safety Responsibility Statement for the
President, Executive Vice President, Vice President, Factory
Director (Director), Department Chief and Section Chief and
the Commitment Statement of Guaranteeing Safety shall

be signed level by level, thus improving and perfecting the
safety responsibility system that covers all departments and
employees

Externally, we signed Safety Management Agreement and
Commitment Statement for Contractors on Safety Education
with all units and contractors that handle field operation which
provide on-site service in the Company

Identifying hidden dangers and 12,306 omissions of 5S

132 projects for safety reform and investment of
RMB24,667,000

Contingency plan is improved based on the system
“1+12+1782” (i.e. 1 comprehensive plan, 12 special plans and
on-site treatment plans), and nearly 100 contingency treatment
cards for equipment was added

The CPR + AED (cardio-pulmonary resuscitation + automatic
external defibrillation) team was expanded, and 172
employees participated the rescue team, and trainings of
2,176 person-time was organized. The golden 4-minute rescue
standards and 3-minute rescue standards for initial disaster
were realized within the factory

171 activities for contingency were conducted
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Measures for Protecting Health and

Safety of Employees Main Content
Safety training is standardized and ° Considering that the site is highly risky, the Department
examination for performance is done of Safety Control worked out a question database

about engineering safety education in order to promote
standardization of safety training and enhance training results.
° In 2016, we organized 55 safety trainings, with 4,770

attendances
Safety Examination for Outsource ° We conducted collective examination for TGCM and bulk
Service Provider gas suppliers for 5 companies and identified 24 items to
be modified in order to promote their amending plans and
reforming
We organize competitions to activate o We activated awareness of safe production and capability
awareness of safe production of safety and protection of employees by awarding them

“ANKANG" labor competitions and special contribution awards

Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
Occupational Checkups for employees designated for
special positions/completion rate (%) 100 992 993
Occupational disease occurrence rate (%) 0 0 0
Occupational Mortality 0 0 0
Number of days absent from work due to injury (days) 83.0 149.5 201.0
2 person was subject to pre-employment restrictions, and 1 person was subject to employment restrictions, both of which were
re-designated.
3 people were subject to employment restrictions, who were re-designated.

Full Coverage for Health, Food, Lodging, Transportation

The Company pays ongoing attention to the health of its employees. In terms of medical treatment, we provide annual
physical examinations for all employees. Additionally, we offer employees designated for special positions that may
have occupational hazards, occupational disease checkups before they start in said position, during performance of
their duties in that position, and after leaving such positions. We arrange more specialized physical examinations for
female and veteran employees. In 2016, we fully completed the development of standard healthcare service centers
and health management systems, created employee health status profiles, and constantly improved the corresponding
management capabilities.

In terms of food, the Company operates its own cafeterias and cafes in factory zones, ensuring a safe, nutritious, and
healthy diet for all employees. We established a model for management of centralized food procurement and qualified
supply chains, providing an assured and reliable system for safe sources of food. Employees and departmental
representatives are invited to provide supervision. In addition, we strengthened the promotion of a “healthy diet”
concept to help employees develop a proper diet and we began implementing the mindset of “green restaurant,”
advocating food security, low carbon, environment protection and integrity.
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Regarding lodging, the Company provides its employees with excellent lodging conditions, adding 105 beds in 2016.
Our accommodation capacity fully satisfies current lodging requirements, and each room has its own bathroom facility.
Within the lodging area, we also provide libraries, computer rooms, pool tables, laundry rooms, TV rooms, direct
drinking water dispensers, and other supporting facilities with 24-hour water heating and WiFi services, ensuring that
our employees feel comfortable and “at home”.

Regarding transportation, we provide a travel allowance for employees as part of their benefits. We also provide shuttle
buses between Jingiao or the factory and the subway, as well as regular buses between dorms, and shuttle buses
for those living in areas where transportation is inconvenient. Also, we provide extra shuttle buses for those working
overtime on weekends.

3.3 Training and Career Development

Employee development is the source of energy of an enterprise. Therefore, we care about employee career
development and help our employees work out their career plan by designing their individual career development
roadmap within the three categories of management, technology and functional positions. We provide training for
employees based on our published Courses of Training, and offer training schemes specifically targeted to medium
and senior level managers, grass-roots managers, tier-one managers, newly-employed university students and tier-one
employees. In 2016, the training attendance was 87,706, with an investment of RMB1,294,000. At the same time, we
support continuing education of our employees and provide education allowances. In 2016, four of our employees
received allowances for masters and doctoral degrees in engineering.

Per-capita Time Length of Training Attendance of Employees (h) 64.7 78.5 101.8
Including: Per-capita Time Length of Training Attendance of
Junior Employees (h) 65.0 65.8 103.7
Per-capital Time Length of Training Attendance of
Managers (h) 8.0 3.6 9.3
Per-capital Time Length of Training of Attendance of
Female Employees (h) 65.1 77.6 126.2
Per-capital Time Length of Training of Attendance of
Male Employees (h) 65.0 79.2 91.4
Rate of Employees Receiving Training (%) 100 100 100
Including: Rate of Junior Employees Receiving Training (%) 100 100 100
Rate of Managers Receiving Training (%) 100 100 100
Rate of Female Employees Receiving Training (%) 100 100 100
Rate of Male Employees Receiving Training (%) 100 100 100
4 Average number of employees, apart from junior employees and managers, includes the number of interns and employees
dispatched.
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We keep track of international treaties, local and foreign laws and regulations relevant to our products and customers in
places where our business operates, strictly comply with laws and regulations related to our products and intellectual
property, regularly update our management policies governing products and services in terms of health, safety, labels,
privacy, and other areas, and establish quality assurance systems and customer service systems. As of the end of
2016, the Company had not been involved in any litigation regarding infringement of the interests of customers, nor did
the Company receive any litigation from customers regarding product quality.

Review of laws and regulations related to products and customer responsibility

Product Quality  Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality

Information Respect the property Patent Law of the People’s Republic of
Security rights China, Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Trademark Law of the 74 laws and regulations

People’s Republic of China

Security management Archives Laws of the People’s Republic of
China, Cybersecurity Law of the People’s
Republic of China

4.1 Product Liability

Quality Control

Based on the philosophy of “Quality is a Lifeline of an Enterprise”, we formulated and implemented our Quality
Management Policy. We promote a comprehensive quality management model, and we endeavor to guarantee product
quality and reliability by means of quality assurance, failure analysis, reliability assurance, customer quality engineering
and quality system, supplier management and raw materials analysis. To reduce human error, we established multiple
management systems such as personnel management, equipment management, environment management, systems
management, process management and customer quality control. With these reliable management systems, we are
able to achieve real-time monitoring and testing over our entire production processes, forecast anomalies that may
arise during production through failure analysis, and make corresponding adjustments on a timely basis. Pursuant to
the recall system of the Company, if our products fail to meet the applicable warranties due to reasons attributable
to us, our customers may return such non-conforming products to us within the warranty period and we shall repair
or replace such products free of charge. Our sound system-based management provides further assurance that
products manufactured by us are free from defects in material and workmanship and in conformity with the customer
specifications.
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Product Quality Management System Certification

Date of passing

Certification the certification
ISO 9001 Quality Management System June 5, 2014
ISO/TS 16949 Quality Management Systems for Automotive Industry June 5, 2014
IECQ QC 080000 Hazardous Substance Process Management System December 12, 2014
Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
Product return rate (%) <0.1 <0.1 <0.1
Percentage of products recalled due to safety and health issues (%) 0 0 0

Technological Innovation

“Innovation is the core, the source of energy and the only way towards development.” We advocate scientific
innovation and continued research, and apply intensive efforts in R&D of eNVM, power discrete, radio frequency,
simulation and mixed signal, and power management, thus achieving fruitful results both in scientific areas and patent
fields. By the end of 2016, we have acquired 2,451 issued patents, including 103 issued US patents.

During the “2016 Summit Conference on China Information Technology Industry Development” jointly held in Beijing
by the China Information Technology Industry Federation, the China Electronics Chamber of Commerce and the China
Software Industry Association, we were named as one of the “Top 50 Innovative Enterprises of 2016 China Information
Technology Industry”. In 2016 our workstation of academician experts received the “2016 Model Workstation of
Academician Experts in China” award and was named one of the “Top 30 Excellent Workstation of Academician
Experts in Shanghai”. In the past two years, three projects of our workstation produced hard benefits worth over
RMB50 million. The Huahong Grace Enterprise Association for Science and Technology and the website for the
Association and Training for Professionals promote our development as an innovation-driven enterprise, as well as the
communication and exchange of scientific information and services to scientists. In addition, we applied the project
“Key Technology and Application of Power High Voltage MOS Device” together with University of Electronic Science
and Technology of China, and as a result were awarded the “First Prize of Scientific Progress of Sichuan Province
2016”.

Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
R&D investment (in US$ million) 36.5 51.0 47.6
R&D investment as a percentage of revenue from principal

operations (%) 55 7.8 6.6
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Intellectual Property Protection

As a science-oriented enterprise, we advocate independent innovation and respect intellectual property rights in
our research and development of application-specific integrated circuits, including intelligent chips and information
security chips. We stipulated a System for the Management of Intellectual Property, actively filed applications for
patents and investigated responsibility of any potential breaches of intellectual property rights. At the same time, we
promised that we will never infringe upon intellectual property rights of any enterprise or individuals, and will keep
confidential all technological information of products of upstream and downstream partners.

To reduce the risk of claims of infringement of third-party intellectual property rights against our manufacturing of
semiconductor devices or end products, we only accept orders from reputable customers with no known potential risk
of infringement. We have entered into several technology licensing agreements with major technology companies.

4.2 Customer Service and Protection of Customers’ Interests

Customer Service System

Adhering to the idea of “providing customers with more convenient and safer services”, we established a sound
customer service system and provide services to our customers through customer service hotlines, website systems,
regular and ad-hoc conferences, technical seminars, trainings and other means. We established procedures and
standards for contacting customers, setting out the basic requirements of our customers in respect of inquiries,
transactions and complaints. We established the Customer Complaints Handling Procedures, which set out the
processes for handling customer complaints, the responsible office and key techniques. They require that preliminary
survey results and responses should be given within 48 hours upon receipt of a general customer complaint.
Furthermore, we sort out and analyze the information reflected in customer complaints on a regular basis, and
require relevant departments to develop improvement plans based on the results and oversee and assess the effects
of relevant rectifications. Our Customer Satisfaction Measurement Procedures require us to carry out a customer
satisfaction survey once every six months and to develop an improvement scheme based on the scores given and
any dissatisfaction expressed by customers. In 2016, we transformed E-tapeout customer service system. Engineering
Notice and customer product demand delivery management system. In the same year, we also streamlined business
flow, reduced probability of error, improved work efficiency and cut short business cycle.

Customer satisfaction score 8.39 8.49 8.38
Complaint cases (case) 16 11 11
Percentage of customer complaints addressed (%) 100 100 100

Protection of Customer Information

We always pay great attention to maintaining the security of customer information. We established an information
security control system, which is ISO27000 certified. The Information Security Committee within the Company clarified
the responsibility of information security to control information security risks and guarantee information security from
such areas as information asset management, human resources security, physical access management and logic
access management. At the same time, we audited our photomask partners, ensuring the security of their data
management and storage. In 2016, all our employees completed training and tests regarding online information
security. In 2016, no incidents of infringement of laws or regulations concerning customers’ privacy occurred.
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We keep track of international treaties and laws and regulations relevant to compliance in places where our businesses
operate, and regularly update management policies governing supply chain management, risk control, corruption and
bribery prevention, business fraud, and other aspects. In addition, we are in strict compliance with such laws and
regulations with respect to compliance in business operation as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Anti Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China, thereby deepening the implementation of supplier review work and proactively engaging in the promotion of
clean and honest industrial practices and anti-corruption governance. As of the end of 2016, the Company had not
been involved in any litigation with respect to any commercial bribery or corruption.

5.1 CSR Value Chain

It is a long-term development strategy for the Company to progress forward together with enterprises in the entire
supply chain with our CSR value chain. To this end, we established a CSC Procurement Review Committee, and
implemented an open bidding process as our main procurement approach to guarantee an equitable, open
and fair procurement process. As a member of ECOVadis in France, we monitored the environmental and social
risks of suppliers. By entering into the Undertakings against Commercial Bribery with suppliers, we eradicate all
unfair competition activities. At the same time, we worked out rules about supply chains management including
comprehensive evaluation of environment, security and health of suppliers while requiring that products from suppliers
must satisfy the laws and regulations regarding Hazardous Substance Free (HSF) in order to guarantee all products
supplied to customers meet requirements about hazardous substances in related international and domestic laws and
regulations. Our Company always encourages our suppliers to become members of the Electronic Industry Citizenship
Coalition (EICC) and follow the EICC Code of Conduct and obtain 1ISO14001 certifications, thereby further promoting
our green value chain. Meanwhile, we undertake to refuse the purchase of conflict minerals, while proactively
eliminating the metals derived from the supply chain that uses illegal mining areas, conflict minerals, or poor mining
environment. We continuously update our investigation report about the production of conflicted mines.

With the expansion of our production capacity, the Company has increased its purchases of raw materials, equipment,
and utilities. Currently, we have more than 1,000 domestic and overseas suppliers. In addition to ensuring continued
quality amid lower costs, we proactively support the growth and development of our domestic suppliers, and
constantly assist suppliers in improving their management capacities. In addition, we also proactively encourage
small- and medium-sized enterprises to participate in the localization of key raw materials, including gas, chemicals
and silicon wafers.

Localization of raw materials procurement® (%) 19.6% 20.0% 22.0%

o Raw materials purchased include: silicon slice, quartz, target material, gas, chemicals and other raw materials for production.
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5.2 Anti-corruption
The Company established a compliance department to supervise the overall compliance management. All major
departments have compliance officers to implement internal control management systems, policies, and measures. We
improve our compliance management systems based on the capital market requirements each year, including reviews
over compliance management. In 2016, we modified and launched the Rules about Management of Commercial
Bribery (3rd Version).

The Company has long-term commitments to provide training and education on clean and honest practices for
customers and manufacturers, management cadres, and employees in major positions. By constantly promoting
the execution of the Undertakings against Commercial Bribery and the Undertakings to Refuse Commercial Bribery,
as of the end of 2016, the Company entered into Undertakings against Commercial Bribery agreements with 126
manufacturers and Undertakings to Refuse Commercial Bribery with 61 management employees and employees in
major positions.

The Company constantly promotes clean and honest practices and organized training programs with respect to
anti-corruption and clean and honest initiatives. We staged twelve “clean and honest initiative” seminars with members
of management with a total of 2,982 participants. The participation rate was 100%. Altogether, 428 section managers
and above watched the TV Play “Always on Road” (literally translated name). We organized activities of Chinese
calligraphy show themed as “Fight against Corruption and Display Chinese Calligraphy” and collected 32 pieces
of art. The “Measures about Complaints and Management by Employees” was worked out, stipulating channels of
reporting through emails, telephones and mailbox, to encourage employees to report suspicious breaches of law with
our Company. In 2016, to the best knowledge of the Company, no breaches of law and regulations and no reporting
took place.
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6 Social Welfare Causes and Public Communities

We focus on the needs of the community and regard mutual development with the community as an important part
of our social responsibility. With regard to investment in the community, we focus on jointly building of the sense of
community and providing volunteer service.

We continually advocate joint efforts between government agencies and local populations to promote community well-
being, and we provide neighborhood firefighters with beverages, towels, items for showering and other articles for
daily use, to express our solicitude towards all first-line firefighters. We conducted pairing and supporting activities with
Yougiao village of Chongming County to expand and enhance our service to more people with difficulties in Yougiao
village. In 2016, all those living in poverty that met the requirements of serious illness medical insurance received
allowances. In addition, we actively took part in the Employees Library project organized by Trade Union of Zhangjiang
Park in 2016, and donated more than 170 books to the Library, supporting the goal of sharing and recycling books.

Regarding volunteer service in community, we encourage our employees to serve the local community and express
their solicitude. To this end, we established a Volunteer Association consisting of 260 volunteers. Our voluntary
activities in Meixin Nursing Home have lasted for 11 years.

Key performance indicators 2014 2015 2016
Accumulated Time Length of Volunteer Activities (h) 240 480 560
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7 2016 Social Recognitions

No. Awards
Awards of State and Industry Level

1 2016 Golden Ant Award of National Golden Card Project

2 Five-star Site by National Evaluation for Site Management

3 National Model Academician Expert Workstation

4 Top 50 Innovative Enterprises in Chinese Electronics Information Industry

5 Five-star Enterprise of the Third Star Awards for Chinese Industrial Enterprises’ Fulfillment of Duty in 2016

6 Most Recognized Foundry of Greater China IC Design Achievements in 2016

7 2016 China Top Ten Semiconductor Manufacturers

8 The 10" China Semiconductor Innovative Products and Technology Award

9 2016 CITE Innovative Products and Application Award

10 TOP 10 Domestic Enterprises with Most Patents in 2016

11 One of Ten New Cases of Internet Plus in Industrial Application Field in 2016
Provincial Awards

12 Shanghai Top 100 Industrial Taxpayers

13 Award of Shanghai “Quality Standard”

14 Shanghai Outstanding Intellectual Property Rights Holders

15 Shanghai Top Ten Performers of Economic Yield in the IC Industry

16 Top Five Enterprises with Best Sales Results in Integrated Circuit Industry in Shanghai

17 Shanghai Excellent Academician Expert Workstation

18 Shanghai “Five-star Enterprise with Integrity”

19 Excellent Team in National “ANKANG” Award Competition (Shanghai zone)

20 Technological Innovation Award for Outstanding Contribution

21 First Class Award for Scientific Technology in Sichuan Province

(Joint Application of “Key Technology and Application of Power High Voltage MOS Device” with
University of Electronic Science and Technology of China)

Annual Report 2016
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Report Overview

This 2016 CSR Report of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (hereinafter referred to as “this Report”) explains its
principles in fulfiling CSR and the work carried out in 2016. It mainly addresses to our stakeholders the sustainable
development regarding economic, environmental, and social issues concerned

Reference Basis
This Report adopts the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the “Sustainability Reporting Guidelines (G4)” of the Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI”) as its

reference basis.

Scope of Report
Organizational scope: This Report covers Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited, including all subsidiaries of the Group.

Reporting period: From 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.
Release cycle: This is an annual report.
Data Descriptions

Data and cases in this Report originate from the Company’s original records in day-to-day operation or financial
reports.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED
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(Sino-Alliance International) RAEHLEEE R 34,919,354 3.38%
labisyiy | YRR EE R 622,770,223 60.24%
NEC Corporation EERERERA 99,038,800" 9.58%
AllianceBernstein L.P. RELIEA 24,860,826(" 2.40%
AllianceBernstein L.P. YRR EE R 27,796,174 2.69%
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(3) Sino-Alliance Internationali% 218 & HEE ZHEM A A4 53,0848% %10 » Sino-Alliance International R —ZE—+F_-_F-+=
H15:%892,647/ T 5 —RH -

(4) BriBiBET R EEEH350,401,10080% 15 (33.89%) 51 + EIFHEFIAE BIIR 2 & F2 A8 1ESino-Alliance International E# £
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2016F1 A » KB TH EEMERREE VRS EEREE  LETITEREH AN LM EE R A S

AN
MEM2014-2015F E LEMEIRREE MEESE) [BE LXK - 1008 B T2 MNIEB T E R EBE N BB ZH - B
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2016 F X EHigeEH MiEiE RE

R AR RGOKRIE S5 N R B SRE TEE F/\EEI LI E140kWh - BRI EEREA 495 5HEIZE o

CDARFIE IR A IR AR (K E T8 FESLREL.7EKWN » 374281 6HEIEH -

BTSPTA08 PumpZ=FrRoots Pumpziié FEELFAEBO00KWh » &2 4AMEIZ I o

BIILMAO3:Rchiller - BR#G/K /4 Al S BB ELA0BARE  ITEREA111BY K TE

147 BNEIZEH -

WPA/WSAE SR A K 2 A% A7k ENAE R aI7k22. 28 oK - FTE295MRIZ M -

g esekE FEELI32, 750 AREE - PTA65MAIZIE

RRENIEE 20145 20155 20164

feitms (MRIZZERH) 65,253 67,746 73,771
Tz (Bkwh) 41,274 44,063 48,183

BNESAT (kWh/8H~T&El) 291 297 271

MREAE (Bm3) 707.65 604.38 658.00

BuESAR (MY8HE~T&HE) 5.00 4.07 3.70
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BRATSCE - BRAMAELD N BRI REE A FEHKIKERFBEENIRS © b5 - RAILBORHESHTITEREX -
20165 A LIBT/KIERER AR BMA) [FAR TEMXEKBAERMNE] £ BAREESER EEHEHAK
EEAORUARRHABIRT THAE T ELENEKTT RFERE -

2016 F IR A AK M= EIE RE

ROKEIFHIEE Bhk438ms /F

Local Scrubber&fizk fizke.1Eme

KINEMOSEMR BRI+ EGIEETAR BB AR KEEE

REENIEE 2014% 20155 2016
FKEE (BHg) 4545 4722 504.5
BRIESAK (M /8%~ & E) 3.2 3.2 28
&z, BAAKE (BlE) 251.4 235.5 258.0
FEKBERRARE (BmE) 409.1 415.2 454.0
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BRREENIEE 20145 20155 20164
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EE -2016FBEE LSMENRSTMANRERIIENREMEE - RPEBERS B RERZ ZE@ETIED - MEER
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B BERADA  BEEAR - FEBIEL L84 1008 - EFRTEAHIRS5.02ME

BARENIEE 20144 20154 20164
EhEEYREES (M) 3,597.00 4,073.40 4,323.70
BUESTCREBEEDELS
(Mg, 8H~F @A) 0.0025 0.0027 0.0024
—MEEDBEE ()
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et EmAeEmgs () 48.92 51.18 71.33
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2.3 FEBEM
BEEYEEIE

RMBEEES TN (ARRHIEETERRETEMELEERDNES) (RoHS) - LBREM - 56 - FAER
R4]) (REACH)AREFSERE Ry THENHEEEBE - 5 T ASWHEERIEE - 5 2 BI2T 5 M0 REH
EITER  REESFAEANESHEENEERNES - ATEFEARERBHBESGS (Societe Generale
de Surveillance S.A.)%EEHIER#ITEENE R - 2015 - 20165 EE A ENE BB & KE100% « A A
B8R 61 IR B AQC 0800008 FE R T HMEREENERBEBEMSE -
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(BEEETERE) BRZEETIHMNER  THERRI6ABRMNE T  RNEAME —Y)EHSBITANELE -

BRRENIEE 2014%F 20155 20165
k=Rl #8 B
BIERIEI D B TAE B 2,548 2,647 2,772
pegis 1,130 1,140 1,166
ZRAFREHDETAH BEARTIET 3,678 3,787 3,938
BiEREH 8T 167 160 225
BFRBEKE D E TAH NAB0BRE T 1,919 1,878 1,922
30-50E T 1,686 1,827 1,936
AR50 E T 73 82 80
T EE| D B T AE KB 3,669 3,777 3,928
NEEIN 9 10 10
EIEEE T A pegid 9 9 11
B 66 63 61
BT REAEK ¥EE T 815 606 885
HMBET 508 509 681
KBE,/BINBERE S T 507/1 507/2 681/0
305 AT 30E50%%, 380/128/0 385/110/14 518/148/15
508 A FBERR B T
BENE R R (%) 100 100 100
B TIRBBEZER(%) 100 100 100
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BTIREN () 0 0 0
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ETRIER MR (8T) 5.10 15.00 5.21
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

s
EY=x

To the members of Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua
Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 163 to 251, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RS- GRS

BEUXETRARD AR
(REBEBEMELNABRRTF)

=R

EEODERETFEBERAR ([EAA])
FEFAR ([ESE]) HRFE163E251H
MR MBHRE  ERRERZ2E—RF+
A=+ HNKRETBEMRRE  UAKRE
EZHLFEMNGRAESEE  BRA2EKEE
® GEESEHRREERERER MU
MIRAUMBHRENTE  BEEZESTHBER
& o

BERR RERAMBRRCRETES
AEAg ([BEGFMAE]) BHNEE
MBERELER ([BAEMBRSER]) BEE
MAFHRR BEERER-_FT—RF+_A
=+ BNREMBRRN - REBEZAL
FENGEVBRAMGERLRE YT
ERBEERRIGHIZ RRR -

Annual Report 2016 —E—~E£EHE 155



We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Impairment of available-for-sale investment carried at cost

The Group recorded an unlisted
equity investment carried at cost
less impairment amounting to
US$203 million as at 31 December
2016, which was treated as
available-for-sale investment.
The management performed an
impairment assessment on this
investment using equity value model
of the investee, taking into account
assumptions on the perpetual
growth rate, minority interest
discount and liquidity discount rate.
This matter was significant to our
audit because the carrying amount
of the available-for-sale investment
was material to the consolidated
financial statements and the
impairment test process was
complex and involved significant
judgements.

The Group’s disclosures about
impairment of available-for-sale
investment are included in note 3
to the financial statements, which
explains the major judgements
and estimations the management
exercised in the assessment.

Qur audit procedures
included amongst others,
evaluating the assumptions
and methodologies used
by the Group in assessing
impairment of the
investment by focusing on
perpetual growth rate, the
minority interest discount
rate and liquidity discount
rate. We also met the
auditors of the investee,
discussed and evaluated
the impairment assessment
of long term assets
performed by the investee’s
management using the
value in use calculation
based on discounted
cash flow method and
considered the adequacy
of their audit procedures.
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Key audit matter

Fair value of investment property

The Group recorded an investment
property amounting to US$169
million as at 31 December 2016.
The Group measured its investment
property at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and engaged
external experts to assess the fair
value. This matter was significant
to our audit because the carrying
amount of investment property was
material to the consolidated financial
statements and the valuation
process was complex and involved
significant judgements.

The Group’s disclosures about
valuation of investment property
are included in note 3 and note
14 to the financial statements,
which specifically explain the key
assumptions the management used
in the valuation.

Impairment of non-financial assets

As at 31 December 2016, the
management performed an
impairment test on non-financial
assets with a carrying amount of
US$685 million using the value
in use calculation based on
discounted cash flow method.
This matter was significant to our
audit because the balance of non-
financial assets was material to the
consolidated financial statements.
Further, the impairment test
process was complex and involved
significant judgement.

The Group’s disclosures about
impairment of non-financial
assets are included in note 3 to
the financial statements, which
explains the major judgements
and estimations the management
exercised in the assessment.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Qur audit procedures
included amongst others,
evaluating the assumptions
and methodologies
used by the Group’s
external experts. We
also involved our internal
specialists to assist in
our work. We focused on
the reasonableness and
appropriateness in the
estimated rental value, term
yield, reversionary and long
term vacancy rate.

Our audit procedures
included amongst others,
evaluating the assumptions
and methodologies used by
the Group. We also involved
our internal specialists to
assist in our work focusing
on the reasonableness
and appropriateness of the
forecasted revenue growth,
profit margins, discount
rate, projection period,
estimation of disposal
values at the end of the
projection period and
methodologies applied in
estimating working capital
movement and capital
expenditure.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T &85 R A A

BEENER  RUGARBHRREERS T
FHEBENRFFRIERME MM B A RR AL
BREaBERE THAREESERNOEH
A& - B FHREE DR BERPIFE 4051 E
FERRRRE Bt 2 ARREREE M
BH) - BEETERAREN AR AEAEAM
ATE FSEBETRET -

BERERSKFORE  ETERERR
BEBMRRETOEN  EX - EAER
BRI T 1B ARBE B3R - SR RRERAL AT LA FR B
ARSI - MRABAHTMEBNER
ERAEFESEVTRREMBEKBELES
M RERFTELRERTE » RIBRARIEE R
BRI AT IRARAEE K

BPREEBESERETETNTIELZ
— RERBENE  EEEBFARETR
FERIRREE - BT :

o BRI KA A M MR AN IREF R
R EHRHE AR - BEZ
FRBERT MATESERF - WRER
FRMEENETRERBMANERER
HER - HRRFSRAREE B
B MEER REERAKEERA
BBz £ E U oRAE TR &R
B K #5 AR Rt [ B Bb R B B2 3Rl 0 8 AR
MERMEXBRRARBRES -

o TREZHBBEONDEH AR
EMBHIZR  BUESEY HE£H
REEHIE R ERER -

o HEFMAEFEREMNREL  URES
PEHMEtHMEMBERRENSE
Mo



e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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EETERRBER S NEH
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o
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TR BEMEM AREF N EARK) BE
BRERETAE -

BATAEZZESRIBH  HARMD
ETERBYENERER  UHAERE
BRAAEFERMBIMENBERNELE
HIARERRERSR (WER)  BEZEZE
BETER -

BPRBEEZZE SRR  EEWLE
e M MREFT TENREESRE - J
BREEE - BRIDERTOER TR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2 REN R E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LEUNG, WAI LAP, PHILIP.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L\QSS
mEERK

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE-Z—R"F+_A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—E—-XREF —T—FF
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Htat (F=5T) (F=7T)
Revenue HERA 5 721,428 650,131
Cost of sales SHERA (501,080) (448,705)
Gross profit ER 220,348 201,426
Other income and gains E A A R as 5 34,761 42,717
Fair value gain on an investment property  $&& )3t A T E Nz 72 58
Selling and distribution expenses HENRDHER (6,814) (7,292)
Administrative expenses EREA (97,404) (104,855)
Other expenses Hih & (666) 9)
Finance costs BEER 7 (3,873) (7,754)
Share of profits of an associate DIE—KEEE R R A 7,056 961
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BADRR 6 153,480 125,252
Income tax expense FriSfif 10 (24,648) (12,703)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 128,832 112,549
Attributable to owners of the parent BAREA AFEML 128,832 112,549
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEREREA 12
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BiEERET
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT:
Basic =i
— For profit for the year — F A A US$0.12 US$0.11
0.12% 7t 0.11%7T
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — F A& F) US$0.12 US$0.11
0.12% T 0.11%7T

Annual Report 2016 —Z—~FEERE 163



GONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SmEEHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z—RE+-_A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
ZE-RE “T—RHF
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%m) (F=7T)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 128,832 112,549
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2EER
Other comprehensive losses to be reclassified REZBEEFR D EEERAD
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hm2mEEE :
Exchange differences on translation of HMEGINETSE E R INEZHE
foreign operations (98,778) (88,669)
Net other comprehensive losses to be REZBEERDEEEREN
reclassified to profit or loss in Hiv 2 EEFE
subsequent periods (98,778) (88,669)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREM2EER - NKRHE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (98,778) (88,669)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZEW AT
FORTHE YEAR 30,054 23,880
Attributable to owners of the parent SN 2PN T 30,054 23,880
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION
e MR R AR

31 December 2016

T—R"E+=A=+—8
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—F4F
+t=A=t+-8B +=A=+-H
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
HiaE (F=7m) (F=7T)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= KRB 13 656,517 629,180
Investment property REME 14 169,074 180,542
Prepaid land lease payments Taf T EFRIE 15 20,071 22,120
Intangible assets mREE 16 8,176 8,516
Investment in an associate REE RN EIIEE 17 45,121 40,833
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 18 203,330 217,214
Long term prepayments REAFE RIE 3,861 10,806
Deferred tax assets BIETHIBEE 27 5,720 4,692
Total non-current assets IER BB EARE 1,111,870 1,113,903
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories & 19 95,199 107,081
Trade and notes receivables B S IEWGRIA R EWEE 20 106,078 103,822
Prepayments, deposits and FENFHIE - ek
other receivables Hth FEURIA 21 8,963 9,408
Due from related parties JE s G 5 SR IR 33(c) 37,752 25,282
Restricted and time deposits BR & KE EIFR 22 125,547 41,796
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 22 341,255 510,441
Total current assets MENEELRT 714,794 797,830
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B SN RIA 23 64,790 66,280
Other payables, advances from H bR FIE - FEUWERFA KR
customers and accruals &R 24 101,507 84,474
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FPEIRTTER 25 1,874 42,750
Government grants BT D 26 35,863 53,881
Due to related parties JE 1< B Bt 75 SRR 33(c) 9,689 8,965
Income tax payable P15 R 24,222 21,576
Total current liabilities mENBERTE 237,945 277,926
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 476,849 519,904
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,588,719 1,633,807

Continued %&/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MEMBMRRT R

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
+=ZB=+—H +=-A=+—H
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
it (F%m) (F=71)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERRBAR

LIABILITIES 1,588,719 1,633,807
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITIER 25 90,757 137,871
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBRE 27 9,276 5,246
Total non-current liabilities JEmE B ERRE 100,033 143,117
Net assets BEE 1,488,686 1,490,690
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AEGER

of the parent
Share capital A& 7N 28 1,550,164 1,550,164
Reserves s 30 (61,478) (59,474)
Total equity EREE 1,488,686 1,490,690

\u. .%_/
Suxin Zhang JunYe
RED =1} 3
Director Director
EZE EZE
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Year ended 31 December 2016

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEHTRER

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE_ZT—ARFt+_A=1+—HItFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hHF
Notes (US$’000) (US$'000)
Htat E F=
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Tt AT a2 ) 153,480 125,252
Adjustments for: BLAT S IBEH AR -
Finance costs V%ER 7 3,873 7,754
Share of profits of an associate DIE—KBEE R R (7,056) (961)
Interest income FEUWA 5 (5,093) (7,856)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BEAREER
plant and equipment FTis et 5 (16) (401)
Depreciation e 13 80,595 73,879
Changes in fair value of an investment &2 & Y% A (A
property 14 (72) (58)
(Reversal)/write-down of (R, MREEE
inventories to net realisable value ] BRI E 6 (1,810) 2,410
Reversal of impairment of trade Z 5 EUGRIE M EHAb
receivables and other receivables FEWF B R EREE 6 (14) (154)
Impairment of items of property, N YN
plant and equipment 15 B RE 13 4,012 5,162
Amortisation of intangible assets mR B EHE 16 3,819 4,461
Recognition of prepaid land lease TEfS T HbE & FRIEFERR
payments 15 664 708
Equity-settled share option expense EREERNERERS 29 3,872 1,331
236,254 211,527
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /Em) 12,220 (14,563)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and Z SRR IE MR EE
notes receivables (gm),md (4,428) 3,991
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TENFIE e R EAM
deposits and other receivables e FRIER > (38 40) 1,929 (2,414)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due JE L B ESE 75 SRIE
from related parties (gm),md (13,261) 17,896
Decrease in restricted and time deposits 28 4% & 7F BATF 2008 2 1,257 787
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables 2B S FENEIE R,/ #&m (2,848) 2,748
Increase in other payables, advances E b et FIE - FAURBR I
from customers and accruals Ciig el ===hre- ) 13,629 6,556
Decrease in government grants DESEERE) (15,083) (6,799)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to  FE{ EEES T 3KIE
related parties #an, ) 521 (16,041)
Cash generated from operations RETHEENRS 230,190 203,688
Income tax paid BERFTER (18,282) (15,911)
Net cash flows generated from RETHMBRENETHE
operating activities 211,908 187,777
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of items of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Receipt of government grants

Increase in restricted and time deposits

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid to shareholders

Interest paid

Increase in restricted and time deposits

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Net cash flows used in financing
activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Unrestricted time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the statement of financial position and
in the statement of cash flows

REFHRERTRE

EUFE
BEYWZE  BFELREAR

BEENVEERA
HEME - BERRHFEHRE
PSR

YRR AT #E B
BR8N E BFFE N
REZBFARESREFHE

BMEFHRERTRE

AR S A B
EfFE

BR8N BFSE N
FIBIRITEK

Lo

BEIRTTER
RETEARSREFHR

RERREEEY
WD R
FNRE MRS EEY

SNEFE RSB E - FE

FRAEGRAEEEY

RERBRESEEMERIN

Re MIRTTHER
RESRRIHA IR
= (@A HY IR A
B
MEHRRAR LA ERERT
Ao S MIREEEY

2015

—T-hF

Notes (US$'000)
Htat F=
7,809

(181,916)
(1,167)

70
7,546
(40,000)

(207,658)

(7,800)

38,961
(119,854)

(88,693)

(108,574)
646,773

(27,758)

22 510,441

22 202,250

308,191

22 510,441
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS RaR M voeme,

1. Corporate and Group Information

Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 January
2005. The registered office of the Company is located at Room
2212, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of semiconductor
products.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate
parent of the Company are Shanghai Alliance Investment
Ltd. (“SAIL") and INESA (Group) Co., Ltd. (“INESA”"), formerly

known as INESA Holding Group, which are state-owned
companies established in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), supervised by the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission (“SASAC”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company'’s subsidiaries are as follows:

. REAREEEHR

EUFZRERAF ([RARA) B—
AR _TERF-A-_+—BEFBH
M BR AT o RARMEMMHE
RABBHREBBIZFRERITH L
2212% °

ARANEIBERPR/RREER - NF
N ARANFARETEREFERE
an B £ R SHE o

EERA  ARTNEATRBELER
ARB EEMRMRAARAR ([ L8k
M) R ESHE (EE) ARAE ([
TEE] ABLOSEERR (£E) A
RAF) - LEHAREEEESAR
thiE AR AAE ([ B ) B 3 e
HAEEEERZEY (BEE)) &
EMEEAT -

BAFARNESR
RRABBETFRANFBAT -

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  attributable to the
registration and registered share \_Compjliy R
business capital (000) % AEERDE A

Name EauiApe BRTER,/ Direct Indirect Principal activities

£% BB R ERE HftRA (F7) E# B FEXKEE

Grace Semiconductor Cayman Islands US$0.001 100% - Investment holding
Manufacturing Corporation HEHE 0.001%7T REZR
(“Grace Cayman”)*

Shanghai Huahong Grace PRC/Mainland China RMB5,865,538 100% - Manufacture and sale of
Semiconductor Manufacturing  #REl / FBIARE AR 5,865,5387T semiconductor products
Corporation (“HHGrace”)** HERBEFERED

BB RN EERE AR AT
([N

Shanghai Huajie IC Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB41,385 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Service Co., Ltd. RE /hEAR AR#41,3857C semiconductor products
(“Shanghai Huajie”)*** HERBEFERED

BPEEEER RMRB AR A
([ EaEEsE])

Global Synergy Technology Hong Kong HK$10 100% - Trading
Limited (“GST")**** Bt 10/87T g5

HHGrace Semiconductor USA - 100% - Sales office
USA, Inc.* e HENERE

HHGrace Semiconductor Japan Japan JPY10,000 100% - Sales office
Co., Ltd". B 10,0008 HENER
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Information about subsidiaries (continued)

*  No audited financial statements have been prepared for these
entities for the year ended 31 December 2016, as these entities
were not subject to any statutory audit requirement under the
relevant rules and regulations in their jurisdictions of incorporation.

**On 24 January 2013, HHGrace was established to consolidate
the assets and liabilities of Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics
Co., Ltd. (“HHNEC”) and Shanghai Grace Semiconductor
Manufacturing Corporation (“Grace Shanghai”). This consolidation
has been substantially completed. However certain administrative
formalities of HHNEC and Grace Shanghai has not been fulfilled.

Shanghai Huajie is a domestic company established under PRC
law.

kA k

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for an investment property which has
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in United States dollars (“US$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousands except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

FRTLANER (&)

Y ORBEFE—NFLA=F—HIFF
B BERRZEE R EFEEY R
x - BRREA M 8 5% = A
HHEZRERZS  ZEEREREETIT
fAEEEF

“* R-E—=F—H—APH  EFLZRT
KT UBE FHEINECE FEHERA
5] ([EIINEC]) Kk E BRI FEER
ERE([LEER]) EEREE - &
EA LB - BELINECK L)
JEYE FITEFE KR °

o FGEGR IR IR A LB B R AR
al o

o FATEK B AT E BTSRRI ETE
B2 AR AL AP B R FVER o

ZERBEHRRVIBBEABTESIMAE
([FEGMAE]) BHNELENE
BEEA ([BEMBHREER] - B
FBREMBHREER - FE G LR
(IFEEst £ hEE)  FBAR
S EAAREE R AHEDIRS - #1755
BRIRBELKAEGRE - DR
NP EFENRENERI - RFWH
BRUET([E7T)) 25 Mkt 5
BRI MEBECHBREREONT
RIE

REEE
HAMBBRREBEARAREFAA
(RERIAER]) BE T~ R &t
AT HALEFENMBRR . T2
AR ARBEEARBEHNER
(BREBLER) MAKEERE2H
WREDRGMEZRANERRGHENE
HE R EEER - BARENITEERIRE
TRENZEERLE  MAKEEAR
ZERBHEFIE (AR T A% EHE
BRIRETTERABMEES)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T &85 R A A

REEE (H)
HMARFEEAFERBEFORKERDR
SRIELENTEKRFE  AIFHEERAR
AYHRKRETROHRBENR  AEE
SERMAEREEREN - 83

(a) EBZWRESDHMKRZEEEG AN
BRILHE

(b) RBEMAOLEEAZROER
P54
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BRIEFRIE -

BaREMEEBANES RO T HEBR
AEBEREER A MIEERER - A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011)

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

31 December 2016

Br RS aR MY EE

22 BT EMNB B RME

AEBRAFERBHRRAERERAT
FIFTET RAERT BB IS IS A o

BB ISR £

105 - BAEHH
EERF125 T

BB G ERFE28%

(BRI A) (ZF——F)

BB ISR £
F115% (BEFIA)

BRI RS 2R F14%

BB ERNSE 1%
(83TA)

BB ENFE 165 R
BB G ERFE38%
(83TA)

BB ENFE 165 R
BB ERFE415%
(83TA)

BB G ERFE275%
(BFTAR) (ZF——4)

—E——FR-FF
R

REEE
RfitEEAK
#IBISMER

RESEXE
B aI BT

EEETERFP

RETE

ETHER
B3 i

B

BEAEM
&Y

BUHBEHF
e

BB B
HERAEET

Ry D BT RRI S Z F/ B RR M

BEAVBEE -

Annual Report 2016 —Z—~FFEERE 173



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BIASSRRMIAE 0

23Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases’®
Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses’

" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

o No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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While the adoption of some of the new and revised HKFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
HKFRSs is expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position, except the
followings:

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply
to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to
address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition.
The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

BERMED AT REETEBHBR
SHEANSASEHEARRED - EZF
BEMBHREEANBER I EHAEEN
REFBERVPBERNEREATE @ I
ATERSM -

BB GRS ERFE1SFKEY — @A
MAFERN  BERBREREFENELE
RISHEWA - BREBBMBRELERE
155% - SHE WAL R E A
RMABFEZREY IR M ERES
HNRESTERR BEMBREELNE
15 RAAFTE R ERKESIRER
INEBIERTTE - Z2ERITRS| AEZH
TURTERBERT  BEIFHEK
ANBEE - BRERITEE - TREAB M
EHEEREERELEHRNEFARE
ZHEREFTOER - ZEABEIRRE
BEEHREEAIB T A RKNERIEE
WARRE - RZZE—RFARA - &F
SRR AEBEME SV BREERFES
% (BETA) » LS| ABRIBHEME - &
FEA BRI T 0 38 B A R AT O FE R 38 S
MBEREEME - ZFETNEEE
PRERNEBREMNE SV BREERSE
1557 IRy 58— BR &Y JE A 30 B4 1 P FR 22 RIAY
A RAE N - REBTBHR TN
F—RA—BEMNEBYHBRELENFS
5% - B ATIERHE RN E BT WS 2R
F1SRAFTE -

Annual Report 2016 —Z— NEFERE



HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease
liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on
the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the
lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as
change in the lease term and change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided
in the financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.
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Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of an associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associate is included as part of the Group’s investment in an
associate.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment property at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment property), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’'s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Re

lated parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(iy has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(iy the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3.8%
Plant and machinery 9.5% — 19.0%
Office equipment 19.0%
Motor vehicles 19.0%
Leasehold improvements 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

¥ BERRBARTE

WE - BB R&E (EZTIRRERN D
1R AR R At i 8 AR RUE B 1R 5
R W% BEERBEHEBHESER
FIFHEXBHO BN BERFIFHEN
By AN EHEIETIE  MREE
BB REERESRINE - WE - K
FEhERERBNXABHELBEERE
{A] £ B B2 22 BUR (F A 00 I 3t B (F 35k TE R
O ERBMHKA -

VE - BERKERBEANEFKAE
EREFRESEL  —RREELHE
BEm XA - WMEDERIETENE
RKRENRAX  (FRZEENEEEE
FTREARE - W% - BEERBATE
B BMMERRGD - MAKEKZES
NHERSEEREAERFHRNBELE
= - SWHRBHETIE -

FENHERKRAERE  HABMEAIE
RERNKERE K& MESE B 898 A#
HEFIREE - RUMANEEF RN
T

BF 3.8%
= K es 9.5%-19.0%
PR 19.0%
B 19.0%
ek 20.0%

W% - BERERFEEE EFP O
ERFHITR > ZBRBHRAERSGIE
HEESEZEREMN > mMEMHBHHE
FHEITE - RIREE - IEAFHEF
ENEELRESMREEREL TR
BEEELAE -

Annual Report 2016 —Z— NEFERE



Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the assets is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment property

Investment property is interest in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such property is measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Process technology licence and software

Process technology licence and software are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years of
the underlying products, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.
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Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for
loans and in administrative expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income and gains, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income and gains in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the assets have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when
there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in the
statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, advances from customers
and accruals, amounts due to related parties and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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Income tax (continued)

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership and title have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the service has been
rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Interim
dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as
a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences arising on settlement of translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associate are currencies other than the US$. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into US$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
US$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into US$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Classification between investment property and owner-
occupied property

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some property comprises a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease,
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments carried at cost
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for available-for-sale investments carried at cost at
the end of each reporting period. Available-for-sale investments
carried at cost are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset and choose appropriate assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment property

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(a)

current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of
the cash flows.

The carrying amount of the investment property as at 31

De

cember 2016 was US$169,074,000 (2015: US$180,542,000).

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair

val
14

ue measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture
and sale of semiconductor products. Management reviews the
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group.
Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented.

The principal assets employed by the Group are located in
Shanghai, the PRC. Therefore, no segment information based
on the geographical location of assets is presented for the year.

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas based on the
location of customers. Revenues regarding geographical
segments based on the location of customers for the year are
presented as follows:

31 Demﬂm oer 2016

- B 35 R AR B

4, BEHTER

HRERRE  AKEEBE—EXK
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2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE-hfF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=T)
China (including Hong Kong) HE (BIEEHE) 378,030 358,896
United States of America EHERE B 141,186 123,716
Asia (excluding China and Japan) TN (MEERBEEAA) 91,175 52,844
Europe BOM 68,468 61,648
Japan HZR 42,569 53,027
721,428 650,131

Information about major customers EHREEEFHNER

No revenue amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
was derived from sales to a single customer for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ARMEE

H

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA~ B R W=
WAEERIRREREBHINENE

HEEMBERFE -

HIRA - B A RSO DTNT -

2016 2015
—g-xF  —®B-EF
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F=3x) (F=71)
Revenue WA
Sale of goods SHEEMm 721,428 650,131
Other income Hig A
Rental income WA 12,876 13,167
Interest income MBI A 5,093 7,856
Government subsidies NEgiaR 8,228 9,966
Sale of scrap materials SHE R 370 442
Rendering of services IR RS 417 444
Others Hih 664 2,406
27,648 34,281
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE - BEMREEE
plant and equipment FrisUes 16 401
Foreign exchange gain, net HNPEPE H W Z 58 7,097 8,035
7113 8,436
34,761 42,717
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
?T D\@(‘Pmb@r 201‘6 ji&$ﬁ§ BTTA-I

6. Profit Before Tax 6. BiATsF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REE B AR R T BGTA) T
(crediting): P B IBIEEEL
2016 2015
—B-RF —ZE—hF
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Hat (F%5m) (F%=T)
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 501,080 448,705
Depreciation e 13 80,595 73,879
Recognition of prepaid land lease MERTEN T A E FRIE
payments 15 664 708
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 16 3,819 4,461
Research and development costs R AR 41,336 47,512
Minimum lease payments under e HERERENRIE
operating leases 2,978 3,408
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR 2 B 467 498
Employee benefit expense EERFFE (B
(including directors’ and chief EERESTRAR
executive’'s remuneration (note 8)): HOEFEN (FI5E8)) -
Wages, salaries and other benefits I&  HFahEMER 137,962 140,061
Equity-settled share option expense EREER
RS 29 3,872 1,331
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 12,086 11,125
153,920 152,517
Rental income on an investment property, &Y% i S U A EEE
net 5 (12,876) (13,167)
Government subsidies BT 4 R & (8,228) (9,966)
Foreign exchange gain, net HNDE PE H Wz F 58 5 (7,097) (8,035)
Impairment on items of property, Y% - BREMEREEE
plant and equipment A 13 4,012 5,162
Reversal for impairment of trade Z 5 EUGRIE & E At
receivables and other receivables R GRIERE R D (14) (154)
(Reversal)/write-down of inventories to (B&E),/ Mo
net realisable value FEENERFE (1,810) 2,410
Fair value gain on an investment property 3% &2 A Az 14 (72) (58)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B mRMEE

7. Finance Costs 7. A EH
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE-hfF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%5m) (F=T)
Interest on bank loans RITEFFE 3,873 7,754
8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EEREBSITHAENFH M
Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BRI LR B R BB R REAIZE383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (a)~ (b) () RMETR (AR (FHRES
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 FmBER) B FoBBEENAFEE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of ERERTBRABHFMET
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=5x) (FZ=T)
Fees we 225 240
Other emoluments: His -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B REYFE 157 161
Performance related bonuses EAZIR MR IEAT 168 155
Equity-settled share option expense DEREENERERS 117 42
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFT B 6 6
448 364
673 604
In prior year, certain directors were granted share options, in RBEFE BTESREBEAQRANE
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option AR T EI R H M A& BIR a0 iR 75 &
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out Bk - HE— P BER T BEmEN
in note 29 to the financial statements. The fair value of such 29 - MEEAIEREN AT ED LG EH
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit RIBHRER  UTAREABPETAR
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date AEEHBHRERARNSED T AR
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for EERERITBABNHFHMERS -

the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘‘‘‘‘

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

31 December 2016
/\t‘—/“7< \

Br RS aR MY EE

8. EERBEITHAERNF M
(#&)

(a) BYFHTES
FARBIIFATEENNEE

during the year were as follows: LU
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE—hF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%r) (F=mT)
Stephen Tso Tung Chang SR8 Al 75 80
Kwai Huen Wong, JP FHEE - KMt 75 80
Long Fei Ye HEeE 75 80
225 240

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2015:

Nil).

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the

FALEERNTFEBIFERATESD
HpME (T —hF: &) -

(b) BITEE  FUTESERKETH

chief executive AE
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Performance settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
B ORM  ERREYN  UEREEN BihE
e - REWAH ML BRERX Tl Fra
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 US$000 US$’000
EY EY ESH FER EY EY
2016 —TF
Non-executive director ~ 3EH{TES :
Mr. Takayuki Morita REEzEE - - - 14 - 14
Chief executive: Ro1TRAER
Mr. Yu Wang FREE - 157 168 103 6 434
- 157 168 117 6 448
2015 “Z-hfF
Non-executive director  FFH{TEE :
Mr. Takayuki Morita RERz%E - - - 5 - 5
Chief executive: Re1TRALR
Mr. Yu Wang IREE - 161 155 37 6 359
- 161 155 42 6 364

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors received

any emoluments during 2016 and 2015.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

BRATtEEES  MEBEEEN_-F
—NFR TR FWEEREE -

RER BEEEFEHLTHBRESL
[l B AL Hr BN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
P HmRMEE

9. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director, who is also the chief executive, (2015: one director
being also the chief executive), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the remaining four (2015: four) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

. BERSHES

TR hEREHEERE —RES
(MAERITBRAB)(ZFE—H%F: —
FEE (NRRHTBRAR))  EFHH
BN LS - FA - HBRMNE
—T-hF: UR) WHEARAEEN
R EENFMABET -

2016 2015

—EB—NE —E—RF

(US$’000) (US$'000)

(F%=7) (F=T)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind S SEBE R EWRIES 1,120 1,153
Performance related bonuses AR IR BMORTEAL 357 192
Equity-settled share option expense AR A E BB i 256 101
Pension scheme contributions RIREET IR 14 15
1,747 1,461

The number of highest paid employees who are not directors of
the Company and whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FHBRATEBNLIFERNAREEDN
REFEEABLT

Number of employees

EEAE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L 22,500,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7L 24,000,000/ 7T 1 1
4 4

In prior year, share options were granted to four non-director
and non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are included
in the disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.
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Hong Kong profits were subject to profits tax at the rate of
16.5% during the year (2015:16.5%). No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax has been made as the Company and a
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong had no assessable
income during the year (2015: Nil).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated in the Cayman Islands
is not subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) as it does not
have a place of business (other than a registered office) or
carry on any business in the Cayman Islands.

All of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC and
only having operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax on the taxable income as reported in
their PRC statutory accounts adjusted in accordance with
relevant PRC income tax laws based on a statutory rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and
with approval from the tax authorities in charge, one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, HHGrace, is qualified as an enterprise
producing integrated circuits of 0.25um below in width and thus
is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2013 to 2017.

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in Japan
is subject to corporation tax at a rate of 25.5% (2015: 25.5%).

The Company’s subsidiary incorporated and operating in the
United States is subject to federal corporation income tax at a
rate of 34% during the year (2015: 34%), as well as state tax at
8.84% (2015: 8.84%).

The major components of income tax expense of the Group are
as follows:

Current income tax — PRC
Current income tax — elsewhere
Withholding tax on the distribution
dividend from PRC subsidiary TEHR
Deferred tax (note 27)

SR — T E
AR — EtbibRE
BT 2 A IR

EAETIA (FaE27)

RERNFBEMNEBEL165% (ZF—
hF:16.5%) R EBMFGSH - B
RARB R —FKERBEMA LT A
BN A EEVS B AA - B &
REEMNERELRE (T —HF:
&) -

HRARRERSHESEMKIN TR
RAERSHSLEES LXMW (M
MEEGEIN) R EMER - WA
FRABEBMEEREN ([REMEF
Bl e

FEARSEETEEMBEETEAL
LENT AR EHEAREAAR T BT
SHOEHBH P BEIAER B T2 MER
U AIR25%E)EE R R @A B
FTiSHL -

BEFBRAEE LR EE R EREEE
WA E  ANEBE—RFRFELR TN
HEERKAEETERIMHI/NR
0.25uMER BRI EZE  WEEN_-Z
—=FE T FHMARI5%NESR
TG -

AABEBARFEMKIL ML ENTAA
JE1225.5% (ZTE— R4 : 25.5%) 091>
ETREH -

KRB EEBRFMA R EEHNTF AR
JEH34% (ZZF — A F : 34%) W FD
CEFRBHENE84% (ZTE—FHF
8.84%) HyINFLFH REFL o

AN E PS5 X B EAR R ER ) 40
T

2015
—T—RHF
(US$'000)
(F=5T)

14,965
353

(2,615)
12,703
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB ARMEE

10. Fr %L (&)

BARBREREBD TR REEER
ERERAEE R KR25%:1 H BB A&
MEERRERX - BRERREGFE

10. Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates of 25% for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to

the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: BHIBFRZAERNAT
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —E—RF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F3=7t) (F=mT)
Profit before tax AT A 153,480 125,252
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% BRERRO5% T BT IE 38,370 31,313
Lower tax rates for specific provinces BEA M E RBEGH
or enacted by local authority BIERI = (15,180) (12,500)
Adjustments in respect of current tax _E—EAfE B EATH IR R
of previous periods (2,200) (5)
Profits attributable to an associate —KEE N RIS R T (1,058) (144)
Income not subject to tax REFUA (111) (160)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR R 298 495
Tax losses not recognised AERTIEEE 224 299
Temporary differences not recognised AERY R ER 607 127
Additional deduction of research and T S R E M 3R,
development costs (2,368) -
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax VAR iR I8 A A 28
of previous years - (11,560)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% (2015: 5%) REEREFAF]
on the distributable profits of the Group’s A IR F1Z5%
PRC subsidiary (ZZ—FR%F :5%) HE 6,066 4,838
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate RREEERMREGTER
MIERY 24,648 12,703
The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to F A (h B & N B 118 /33,408,000
US$3,408,000 for the year (2015: US$259,000) is included in T (ZFE—FAF : 259,000%7T) © HR
“Share of profits of an associate” in the consolidated statement e Bmk [PE—RKEERARER]

of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ewionntn B IEERAR B EE

11. Dividend 1.2
2016 2015
—E—RF —T—RF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%5m) (F=T)
Proposed final-HK30 cents HARHIRL A — AR @A
(2015: HK27 cents) per ordinary share 0L (ZE—RF : 2784l) 39,963 36,015
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the RNEEEBANAREEFRADARER
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming JEERR BT K FHE -
annual general meeting.
The board recommended a final 2016 dividend of HK30 cents EFgRRERN - —R"ERERES
per share (2015: HK$27 cents), amounting to HK$310,161,497 R30I (ZFE— R F : 278 MW) - &
(2015: HK$279,145,347), which was equivalent to 5 5310,161,4978 L (Z T — A F ¢
US$39,963,000 (2015: US$36,015,000). 279,145,347/ ) 48 & 139,963,000

ET (ZF—N4 : 36,015,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ji&*ﬁ%ﬁ{j.? 3139C9mb@r 20!67‘

12.Earnings per Share Attributable to Ordinary

Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,083,871,656 (2015: 1,033,871,656) in issue
during the year, as adjusted to reflect the rights issue during
the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on:

2. 8RR EERESEARES

iR 2 F

EREARBINDEARAG AL BER
%ﬁAmaimmu KR EFEANE
771,033,871,6560% (= & — & F:
1 033 871,656f%) & ﬁﬂxﬁ’]ﬁﬂﬁ%$i’]%{
AR F A -

BREEERNESBDIRESARER

RERFEAREFRENTHE - quré;Hq
KAz EBRNEFABRFESRE
ABEMERBZFADETEERAKE

N ERRAEBEEEEE BRR BT
FEHRESEBRRSUTRERETZE
BN -

BREARLEERNONFETER

2016 2015
—E—-REF —hF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F3=7t) (F=mT)
Earnings gl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders ~ FA BT @iEzIEE A
of the parent FE(S % F 128,832 112,549
Number of shares
RDER
2016 2015
—E-RE —h#
Shares A 17
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R st E G E R H
in issue during the year used in the basic FREBTLRER
earnings per share calculation hnE 58 1,033,871,656 1,033,871,656

Effect of dilution-weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

Share options B

BRI g E -

3,417,000 945,000

1,037,288,656 1,034,816,656
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eeionoon B EEERAR P EE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. 9% - BERRZE
Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
HERE ik

g% R#E  BORE & VES HRIE &t
(US$'000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000)  (US$'000) (Us$'000) (US$'000)  (US$'000)
(f¥n) (F%n) (FEn)  (F%n) (%) (F%n)  (F¥%n)

31 December 2016 ZE-RE+ZA=1-H

At 31 December 2015and ~ R=E-RE+-F=1-H
B:

at 1 January 2016: RZF—E-A-
Cost AR 313,550 3,603,591 33,024 2,044 4,169 91,334  4,047712
Accumulated depreciation  23HTER
and impairment WiE (148925) (3223611)  (26780)  (1,700) (1,668) (15848)  (3,418532)
Net carrying amount REFE 164,625 379,980 6,244 344 2,501 75,486 629,180

At 1January 2016, netof ~ RZE—7~E-A-H-
accumulated depreciaion B RiHHE

and impairment RRfE 164,625 379,980 6,244 344 2,501 75,486 629,180
Additions B = = = = - 156,606 156,606
Transfers iy 2,918 196,935 3,384 - - (208,237) -
Disposals RE - 8) (34) - - - (42
Depreciation provided EREHR

during the year i (12400) (65543  (1,752) (94) (806) - (805595)
Impairment Bl (691) - - - - (3,321) (4,012)
Exchange realignment B3 0% (10229) (29,899 (585) (17) (134) (3762)  (44620)

At 31 December 2016, netof R=E—A~E+-A=1—-R"
accumulated depreciation ¥ 2 E

and impairment RHE 144203 481471 7257 233 1,561 A,772 656,517
At 31 December 2016: RZE—~F+-A=1+-R:

Cost A 296,301 3,565,396 33,510 1913 3,003 39,821 3,040,844
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE

and impairment R (152,078)  (3,083,925)  (26,253) (1,680) (2,342) (18,049)  (3,284,327)
Net carrying amount REFE 144,223 481471 7257 233 1,561 21,7712 656,517
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B mRMEE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 13.9% - BEKRRE (#)

Plant and Office

Buildings ~ machinery  equipment
¥ k& BRRE
(US$000)  (US§'000)  (US$000)
()  (F%n)  (FF0)

Motor Leasehold  Construction
vehicles  improvements  in progress Total
E
HE NERE fRIE 85
(US§'000) (US§'000) (US$'000)  (US$'000)
(Fx7) (Fx71) (1)  (F%n)

31 December 2015 —“E-F%t-A=t-A
At31December 2014and ~ R-E-M&E+-A=1-AR
at 1 January 2015; RZZ-nE-A-R:
Cost AR 332,393 3,696,100 33,313 2,167 4,268 52217 4120518
Accumulated depreciation  ZitHTER
and impairment Wi (147195) (335914 (27457)  (1585) (859) (15960)  (3,551,892)
Net carrying amount BEFE 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3415 36,317 568,626
At 1 January 2015, netof ~ W-E-RF—A—H"
accumulated depreciation YR EHE
and impairment RRfE 185,198 336,958 6,156 582 3415 36,317 568,626
Additions RE - = = = - 177,564 177,564
Transfers B 346 130773 2,443 2 153 (133717) =
Disposals RE - 22) (47) (1) = = (70)
Depreciation provided EREHR
during the year ik (10653)  (6047%)  (1939) (216) (900) - (13879)
Impairment HE = (4,319) = = = (843) (5,162)
Exchange realignment B A% (10266)  (23,239) (369) (23) (167) (3835)  (37.89%)
At 31 December 2015, netof  R-E—RF+-A=1T-H"
accumulated depreciation B E5HHE
and impairment KkRfE 164,625 379,980 6,244 344 2,501 75,486 629,180
At 31 December 2015: R-E-RE+-A=1+-H:
Cost WA 313550 3,603,591 33,024 2,044 4,169 91334 4047712
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE
and impairment A& (148925)  (3,223,611) (26,780) (1,700) (1,668) (15,848)  (3,418,532)
Net carrying amount EmFE 164,625 379,980 6,244 344 2,501 75,486 629,180

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with a net carrying value of US$557,772,000
(2015: US$507,224,000) were pledged to banks to secure the
Group’s banking facilities (note 25).
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2015

C— R

(US$'000)

(F%7T)

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—H E’Jﬁﬁﬁfﬁ 191,533
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N HEAREE KR 58
Exchange realignment [E WA (11,049)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZHA=+—B0REE 180,542

The Group’s investment property is situated in Shanghai, the
PRC and is held under a medium term lease. The directors
have determined that the investment property is an industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the

property.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on 31 December
2016 based on valuation performed by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, on an open market value basis.
The valuation is based on both capitalisation of income derived
from the existing tenancy with allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the property, and by referring to comparable
market transactions.

Each year, the Group’s property manager and the chief
financial officer decide to appoint which external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s property manager and the
chief financial officer have discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results annually when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment property is leased to a related party under an
operating lease (note 31 (a) and note 33 (b)).

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s investment
property was pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking
facilities (note 25).

AEENREMELRTELE - &F
HEORE EFCERNYENMLEE -
FHMERETRENERIEDE

R-E—ARE+-_A=+—0 A&HE
MRENEERE - KABXRERNE
YA ER P EBITEEFEREAER
NERARATEETTEMR - ZEER
ZTHAHEORATRBEERIERKRA
BHENRARTIS A LR 5
T o

BF  AEENMELENMMBHEER
ERESNBFHEAEAREYENIN
EfAE - BEREREHTISN T
BE BYUMKERELTABREREKE - K
SENMELERMBAENFENS
BREETHER  CREEMSFR
—RIEEEREREES

REYEBELLERAOEA TREE
(Ft#E31(a)FN33(b)) °

RZE—ARER_T—RHF+-_A=+
— B AEBEONEREYPEDETF TR
TUBEAEBNFEITEERE (M
25) °
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Fair value hierarchy

The recurring fair value measurement for the Group’s investment
property, which is an industrial property, was made using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) as at 31 December
2016 and 2015. During the year, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of the investment property:

AFEER

AEEREME (BIEDE) R
—RNF+—A=+—BRZZE—HFT+
— A=+ HMBEBATENENER
BARATAIERE ASIE (F34) B -
RER » F1REFE2R B &N FE
8% AFEFITEEAREL (=T
—RF:E)o

TXREEMEEEMBGEERTNRE
EHABEME

Industrial property

TEMHE

As at 31 December 2016

RZE—XRE+H
=t+—8

As at 31 December 2015
R-—ZE—RE+=A
=+-A

Valuation techniques
fhE R
Term and reversion method

FHRERA

Term and reversion method

FHRERE

Significant unobservable
inputs
BARANA BRI AR
Estimated rental value
(per sg.m. and per month)
hEtHEEE
(BFHAREEA)
Term yield
FHIE =
Reversionary yield
EERERE
Long term vacancy rate
RYPEEX

Estimated rental value
(per sg.m. and per month)
et EEEE
(SFIKREA)
Term yield
FHIE =
Reversionary yield
HERE %
Long term vacancy rate
EHEE®

Weighted
average

I

US$11.6
11.63E7T
7.0%
7.5%

5.0%

Under the term and reversion method, fair value is measured
by taking into account the rental income derived from the
existing lease with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the lease, which is then capitalised into the value at
appropriate rates.

The term value was estimated based on the existing rent,
tenancy period as stated in the lease agreement and the yield
during the term period (tenancy period). The reversionary value
was estimated based on the market rents, market yield and the
reversionary periods.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Investment Property (continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property. A significant increase/(decrease) in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair value of
the investment property. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.

15. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

31 December 2016
F+=-R= \

Br RS aR MY EE

14. REWE ()

RS EER NSRS EEEEEE
KIEEF /(TR BEBANENHA
TEAEEM (AL) - EREEER
BERREBAR LF (THR) H85R
AW EMATEAERD GE) « —
MRS - B E A R
BAK  BeEMERRERE AR
REE - MEHEEXHBRAEE -

15. N L EERE

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—RF

(US$’000) (US$'000)

(F%x) (F=mT)

Carrying amount at 1 January MW—A—BMEREE 22,798 24,914

Recognised during the year FATER (664) (708)

Exchange realignment P& 5 A% (1,431) (1,408)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BHEEE 20,703 22,798
Current portion included in prepayments, FERFIE - e RHEHAEY

deposits and other receivables FRIAH RN ERER {7 (632) (678)

Non-current portion FERNERER D 20,071 22,120

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments with a carrying
value of US$20,703,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
US$22,798,000) were pledged to banks to secure the Group’s
banking facilities (note 25).

NR-ZEBE—-—RNE+-A=+—0" ' KMHE
{8 A&20,703,000% T (Z & — A F :
22,798,000%7T) W AREEE TN T
HWHEENREER FTRITUREREE
RIRITEERE (FizE25) °
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BrEE SRR MY EE

16. Intangible Assets

31 December 2016
—T—X"Ft+=-A=+—8

16. B EE

Process
technology
licence Software Total
TEFMTA LIgus st
(US$000) (US$’000) (US$’000)
(F=x) (F%x) (F%=x)
31 December 2016 —E-R"E+=HA=+—H
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—RF+=A
at 1 January 2016: Zt+—AR=ZT—RF
—A—H:
Cost RN 282,999 102,090 385,089
Accumulated amortisation B ORE
and impairment (282,999) (93,574) (376,573)
Net carrying amount BEmFE - 8,516 8,516
At 1 January 2016, net of RZE—RF—H—A8"
accumulated amortisation kR REHEE S RO E
and impairment - 8,516 8,516
Addition NE = 3,944 3,944
Amortisation provided FAEL
during the year - (3,819) (3,819)
Exchange realignment [& 5 R - (465) (465)
At 31 December 2016, netof ~ AZZ—RF+A
accumulated amortisation =+—H ' BRERF
and impairment B RE - 8,176 8,176
At 31 December 2016: RZZE—RE+=A
= =
Cost B#: 282,999 81,312 364,311
Accumulated amortisation EFHESEMORE
and impairment (282,999) (73,136) (356,135)
Net carrying amount FREVFE = 8,176 8,176
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 /E\j.i%$ﬁ§ B{q%}

—E-RETZA= \

16.Intangible Assets (continued) 16. BLEE (&)

Process
technology
licence Software Total
T BT A] ;i #ET
(US$'000) (US$'000) (US$'000)
(F%=7T) (F=5t) (F=5T)
31 December 2015 —E-AF+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—UFE+=A
at 1 January 2015: =t—HR-Z—RF
—A—H:
Cost BXAR 282,999 109,882 392,881
Accumulated amortisation RETHEEORE
and impairment (282,999) (95,174) (878,173)
Net carrying amount BREFE = 14,708 14,708
At 1 January 2015, net of R-—E—h—HA—H"
accumulated amortisation Bk RETEE S ORE
and impairment = 14,708 14,708
Addition NE = 1,167 1,167
Release of government grants BT # B A = (2,510) (2,510)
Amortisation provided FAEL
during the year - (4,461) (4,461)
Exchange realignment B 2 - (388) (388)
At 31 December 2015, net of R -ZE—RE+_—H
accumulated amortisation =+—H  BRERFT
and impairment B oH NOmE - 8,516 8,516
At 31 December 2015: R—E—RF+_A
= =
Cost AR 282,999 102,090 385,089
Accumulated amortisation ZEFHESEMORE
and impairment (282,999) (93,574) (876,573)
Net carrying amount FREVFE = 8,516 8,516

R—_E—X"E+-_A=+—8 @

Certain of the Group’s intangible assets with a carrying value
of US$6,757,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015: US$6,806,000)
were pledged to banks to secure the Group’s banking facilities
(note 25).

{8 /6,757,000% jt (= & — A F:
6,806,000%7T) WA TASEELEE
EEBTFRITURSAEENRITEER
B E (MIsE25) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ji&*ﬁ%ﬁ{j.? 3139C9mb@r 20!67‘

17. Investment in an Associate

17. REEE DN BINIRE

2016 2015

—RNE —E—hF

(US$’000) (US$'000)

(F%7w) (F=71)

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 45,121 40,833

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

TEBERFFHBENOT

Percentage of

Place and date Paid-in equity interest
of registration and capital attributable to
place of business B the Group
Name of company BroibEn N B Ef RMB’000 AREEEW  Principal activities
NSIER N S B ARBFIT BERDE FEEK
Shanghai Huahong Technology PRC/ 548,000 50% Technology
Development Co., Ltd. Mainland China development and
(“Huahong Technology B, B A investment
Development”) B RIRE

EREIMEERAR AR
(IR RER])

The financial statements of this associate were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst
& Young global network.

The Group’s voting power held and profit sharing arrangement
in relation to Huahong Technology Development are 40% and

50%, respectively.

The Group’s shareholding in the associate is held through a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 Ejﬁ%*ﬁ% Ig{j.%—I

—T—XF+=ZA=+—H

17. REBEEQTNRE ()

TREMASEE 2 RFNTBEER

17. Investment in an Associate (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group’s associate:

2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE-hfF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%5x) (F=T)
Current assets mENEE 165,813 155,597
Non-current assets B EE 88,545 49,675
Current liabilities mEAE (69,978) (43,096)
Non-current liabilities BB E (94,139) (80,510)
Net assets BETAE 90,241 81,666
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFE  TEERE 90,241 81,666
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest REE RIS AR R YR
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s interest REBEREE R AR
in the associate Rz el 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the REBESEBE R A
associate, excluding goodwill BEFE  TRERE 45,121 40,833
2016 2015
ZE-REF “T—RHF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%57x) (F=7T)
Revenue WA 5,302 22,051
Profit for the year FANHF 14,112 1,922
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wz - =
Total comprehensive income 2HEWELBTE 14,112 1,922
Dividend received AR E = -
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31 December 2016

BIRFsRMEE - .

18. Available-for-sale Investments

18. IHHERE

2016 2015

—E—RF —ZE-hfF

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%5) (F=T)

Unlisted equity investments, at cost JEETRERE - IR E 203,330 217,214

As at 31 December 2016, the unlisted equity investments with
a carrying amount of US$203,330,000 (2015: US$217,214,000)
were stated at cost less impairment because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be

HREAEBAFEGBHBEARN EF
REERNTFETETRTE R
—E-XE+-A=+—HIFELTIE
& IR {203,330,000% 7T (ZF—F
F 1 217,214,000 7T)) JEKAEN

measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of BRREZY - AEEMHEENEZSE
these investments in the near future. wE o
19.Inventories 19. 7&

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%7x) (F=1)
Raw materials R 49,571 46,109
Work in progress RS 40,117 40,391
Finished goods RIBK G 15,470 33,082
105,158 119,582

Provision for inventories FERE (9,959) (12,501)
95,199 107,081

20.Trade and Notes Receivables 2. B 5 ERRERERRE

2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—hF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%5m) (F=5T)
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIA 83,173 59,746
Notes receivable FE R 24,372 45,630
107,545 105,376

Impairment of trade receivables B 5 RWRIERE (1,467) (1,554)
106,078 103,822

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit and the credit period is generally 30 to 45 days, extending
up to 60 days for major customers. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.Trade and Notes Receivables (continued)

An aging analysis of the trade receivables, based on the
invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

nroneen AR ERAR MR

2. EZRUREAREBRERE (&)

BEZ A MG B 5 EUEE (R E

) KRB DT T ¢

2016 2015

—E—RE —ET—RF

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%=7) (F=71)

Within 3 months 3fE B LAR 80,165 55,978
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 213 1,623
Over 6 months 6f& B LA E 1,328 691
81,706 58,192

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

B 5 RWFRRERENEEIT

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—RF
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=7T)
At 1 January m—A—H 1,554 1,858
Reversal of impairment VERIEEEAE = (210)
Exchange realignment P& 5 A% (87) (94)
As at 31 December W+—H=+—8 1,467 1,554

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables was a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of US$1,467,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
US$1,554,000), with a carrying amount before provision of

US$1,467,000 (2015: US$1,554,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in interest
and/or principal payments and only a portion of the receivables

is expected to be recovered.

L EZERFBERERERER -
—NE+-A=+—BRERHERE
K& 5 W TE,467,000% T (ZE—
FF 1 1,554,000 7T) fEHAEE - K
BB ERE(E A1,467,0005% 7T (=&
—F 4 : 1,554,000 7T) °

{75 3R E B B 5 M YRR IR T L8 B
MBRERERFE R, IR B
EEAR - mIAHE R E #B0 FE R
15 o
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B sRRMEE -5

20.Trade and Notes Receivables (continued)

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

20 ESRWNARERERERE (&)

48 {8 51| =k L [R) 4% AR AR B HO 5 R UL
B IREDITAOT

follows:
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE-hfF
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%5m) (F=T)
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR B BRI AORE 73,767 53,303
Less than 1 month past due #HR DA 1E A 7,320 2,658
1 to 3 months past due BHEI1 = 3(E A 508 1,590
3 to 6 months past due wEIsE6fE A 55 113
6 to 12 months past due HEIE= 121 A = 464
Over 1 year past due BER1E A £ 56 64
81,706 58,192

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Receivables that were past due
but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ewionntn B IEERAR B EE

21. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Q. BRARE - ZERHEMENR
Receivables MIE

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—2-x% —T-5f
+=A=+-8 +=A=+—§
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%x) (F=mT)
Other receivables H At fERIE 5,170 5,128
Prepayments TEfFRIA 4,063 4,561
Current portion of prepaid land lease A T EFRIE
payments (note 15) R BNERER (D (F45E15) 632 678
9,865 10,367
Impairment of other receivables Hh EUGRIBE R E (902) (959)
8,963 9,408
The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables Hip el BRI ERENE SN T ¢
are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-AF —ThF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=5x) (F=mT)
At 1 January n—A—H 959 941
Impairment losses recognised RBERE (14) 56
Exchange realignment b 5 AR (43) (38)
As at 31 December R+—A=+—8H 902 959
Included in the above provision for impairment of other L EMERRIERERERER -
receivables was a provision for individually impaired other —R"ETZA=+—HREARNLRRE
receivables of US$902,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: B E fth FE U FXTEO02,000% T (=T —F
US$959,000), with a carrying amount before provision of % : 959,000 7T) EH R - NS
US$902,000 (2015: US$959,000). B A BR M 1B A902,000% Tt (ZE —Hh
% : 959,000%7T) °
The individually impaired other receivables relate to debtors 1851 350 (8 B L FE W R IR Ty B 58
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in both MR RS SRHERFE R, A ERD
interest and/or principal payments and only a portion of the B AB R - miEHE 7] Y el 310 fE Uk
receivables is expected to be recovered. FKIE ©
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Cash and bank balances B & MIRTTEE R
Time deposits TE BRfE 3R
Restricted and time deposits: RN THFR

Pledged deposits for letters of credit
Other pledged deposits for payment

of dividends
Time deposits with original maturity of more  FREABZIHE A=1EH
than three months LA £ B9 5E HATF 3R
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to US$239,916,000 (2015:
US$278,840,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between seven days and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Pledged deposits with a carrying value of US$539,000 as at 31
December 2016 (2015: US$1,796,000) were pledged to secure
the issuance of letters of credit.

Other pledged deposits with a carrying value of US$8,000 as at
31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: Nil) were pledged to
secure the payment of dividends to shareholders.

Time deposits with original maturity of more than three months
with a carrying value of US$125,000,000 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: US$40,000,000) will mature within six months.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T 8885 R A 7

FLIE R EEFR
B3 E LA B AR 5K

2015
e
(US$'000)
(F=71)

202,250
349,987

562,237

(1,796)

(40,000)
510,441

RBBEEER  AEENE S RRTEH
URTEHERTIUARE TARE])
i1 - /A239,916,000% T (ZE—F
4 1 278,840,000%70) - AR¥ATTH
AABRABHMER - A RIEFERA
HE) CONEERIEH)) R(EE - EER
NEEERT) AEEEEFRER
ERBIMNEXEBENBITHEARELRA
Hi & -

RITRESDREET B RITERN R
BRI XGE - MENEMERDEFA
SENIRBESFRRBLRE=AA
TF - REEHIE BT7 A0 H R BRERA
B SRITER T ERNEER i B3O
W IR KRR IRTT ©

RZE—XRNE+-A=1+—H ' 2&H
8R M 18 A539,000k T (T — R F :
1,796,000%70) M BT R IAERETT

BB

o
R

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—HBHNEEE
£8,000F% T (ZE—RAF+=-A=1+—
H: & mEMERBEEZT  UAKRE
SRS -

R-E—RF+-_A=+—HRIHH
31E A LA k& BR T {8125,000,000% 7T
(ZZ—TA%F : 40,000,000%7T) FHEF
TR NEARNEIE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ceoeioar o ARG ERAR BT EE

23.Trade Payables 23. E B BRI RKIE
An aging analysis of the trade payables of the Group as at the REREARREZA G - ~*&EE
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as SREMNFIBBRRESITAOT -
follows:
2016 2015
— —T—hF
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F=7t) (F=T)
Within 1 month 1B A AR 38,999 48,588
1 to 3 months 123f@ A 13,284 10,833
3 to 6 months 3%6{E A 4,093 1,154
6 to 12 months 6= 1218 A 506 810
Over 12 months 1218 A LA 7,908 4,895
64,790 66,280
The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and EoRNFBEREER T ER—%K
are normally settled on 30 to 60 days. MB0KREGORALE ©
24.0ther Payables, Advances from Customers 24 Hib B FRIE » MRERRK
and Accruals EHER
2016 2015
— i
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F=7t) (F=5T)
Other payables and accruals A RIARE M ER 52,245 43,084
Advances from customers TEUBR TR 18,329 11,386
Payroll and bonus payables B M4 30,925 30,004
Dividend payable JFEAS BRI 8 -
101,507 84,474
Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and EMEMAFIEERKE, RBERAEREX
repayable on demand. FrERE o
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BrEE SRR MY EE

31 December 2016

—T—RF+=A=+—H
25.Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. st SR ITERK
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
—E-RF+t=A=t-H ZZ-RFE+ZA=1—H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
BERA= Maturity (Us$’000) ERRNE Maturity (US$'000)
(%) L2k ix (%) gl FEr
Current TE
Current portion of REBITETH 1.20 2017 1,874 2.05 2016 42,750
long term bank ENERER (D “E-tE ZERE
loans - secured — HiEA
Non-current e
Secured bank loans BEMRTER 120-2.79  2018-2025 90,757 120205  2017-2025 137,871
—E-N\F ZE—tf
E-ECRE T -RF
92,631 180,621
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —E—RF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=7x) (F=T)
Analysed into: IR
Bank loans repayable: EEEBRITER
Within one year —F R 1,874 42,750
In the second year FEF 60,485 44,752
Beyond third year, inclusive BIBE=F
(BIEERME) 30,272 93,119
92,631 180,621

W_ZE—XE+-A=+—H AE#
IRITERBUAREET{ER36,471,097
ET (ZZT—F 4 : 38,961,439 7T) °
A EME R IAETAHE -

Secured bank loans of US$36,471,097 as at 31 December
2016 (2015: US$38,961,439) were denominated in RMB, all
other loans were denominated in US$.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ewionntn B IEERAR B EE

25.Interest-Bearing Bank Borrowings 25. st S RITER (&)
(continued)

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s bank loans RZE—ARERZE—AF+=A=F
were secured by the pledges of the Group’s assets with —HB AEENRTEFHERELAEEH
carrying values as follows: WEEEER  BENKREEOAT :
2016 2015
—g-xF —2-EfF
Notes (US$°000) (US$'000)
Hat (F%5m) (F=T)
Property, plant and equipment ME -« BEN&EK 13 557,772 507,224
Investment property WEYE 14 169,074 180,542
Prepaid land lease payments A T EFRIE 15 20,703 22,798
Intangible assets M EE 16 6,757 6,806
754,306 717,370
In addition to the assets pledged above, the Group’s secured BRIALEEREEIN  AEER_T—
bank loans as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were secured NERZTE—RAF+ZA=+—HHEAE
by the Company’s 36.23% of equity interest in its subsidiary, BIRRITER AR A RREFARIE
HHGrace. UL 7R 11#936.23% AR AEVEIL IR ©
26.Government Grants 26. BUR 8 BY
2016 2015
—g-xF —2-EfF
(US$000) (US$'000)
(F%5x) (F=7T)
At 1 January n—H—H 53,881 63,885
Received during the year FERUE 13,351 9,707
Paid to subcontractors during the year FRAZMFHEE - (49)
Released to offset cost of sales AR $5 85 B Rk AR (1,449) (2,922)
Released to offset research and LA SE A B
development costs B4 (6,274) (3,479)
Offset with long term assets HIHRAEE (20,711) (10,056)
Exchange realignment & H T (2,935) (3,205)
As at 31 December R+-_A=+—H 35,863 53,881
The Group received government funding for several NEE M Z BT A B IE B 9B SBA
government-sponsored projects focusing on the research and BNESER ZFHEFZINMAEL
development of advanced technologies. R o
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The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities:

R-—ZE—hF—H—H
FRME (FHA) BRED
EIEFRE (M5E10)

As at 1 January 2015

Deferred tax charged/
(credited) to profit or loss
during the year (note 10)

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
Deferred tax charged to
profit or loss during
the year (note 10)
Exchange realignment HEH
n

As at 31 December 2016 N—E—NE+-_HA=+—H

[ H

R_ZE—RF+_-_A=+—H
r=—ZFE—XRE—HF—H

FRMEBZE
RIRERR I (FFFE10)

i

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The applicable withholding
tax rate of the Group is 5% in accordance with the approval
from the local tax authority on a lower rate effective from 2015
to 2017.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T 8885 R A 7

FRBECHIBAEREENZSHNT
BETRIBRE ¢
Fair value
gains on
investment Withholding
property tax Total
REWMERN
N TEHN #st
(US$000) (US$'000) (US$'000)
(F%7T) (F=%7x) (F%7T)
487 11,501 11,988
9 (6,722) (6,713)
(29) - (29)
467 4,779 5,246
11 4,049 4,060
(30) = (30)

REB(PEARKMBEEEMBHE)
R B AR NE DR RN E
ET RN B BRI0%BATEINR
it NEBEARRHBEA KL ZE
FTRAIBZZEZENF A - BEELER
B P 93 Ik H IR B AR TR AR  fii o
M EINRIREEMBREERER A
MEHE - AERARENEINHREK
BREEMWRBHPIMER T —HFE
“EEFAMNBERE - AEER
BB ERABEB5% °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o nionsron RS ERER MY EE

2

27. Deferred Tax (continued) 27. IREBLIE (8]R)
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors BHE-_Z-—RAF+A=T—HILHF
resolved that any undistributed profits of the Company and B BZZATERARFREFAF
its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2014 will not be paid as HE_ZT—NF+_A=+—A8F M
dividends to the Shareholders. Accordingly, the Group reversed AOBEBENMARRZARE - Bt -
withholding taxes on dividends distributable by subsidiaries AEBR-ZZ-—RFHR P E AMK

established in Mainland China of US$11,560,000 in 2015.

32T A A A] o3 K AR 7 B FE A0 B
11,560,000% 7T °

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the RN A A B R SRR T AR B SR B A 1)
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Deferred tax assets:

PISIIER -

EERAEE :

Write-down

of inventories

and

impairment Share

of receivables Accruals option Total
ERRERE EEHER BB IR et
(US$’000) (US$°’000) (US$°000) (US$’000)
(F%Ex) (F%Exr) (FERr) (FER)

As at 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HA—H 1,976 7,215 - 9,191
Deferred tax credited/ FRFA(H08) B
(charged) to profit or loss BRI 1B
during the year (note 10) (FF3E10) 338 (4,436) = (4,098)
Exchange realignment PE 7 S (159) (242) = (401)
As at 31 December 2015and AT —HE+A
1 January 2016 =t+t—HER=ZZT—RF
—H—H 2,155 2,537 - 4,692
Deferred tax (charged)/ FR(38),/5TA
credited to profit or loss BaRRAELETIE
during the year (note 10) (ftsE10) (274) 889 780 1,395
Exchange realignment PE 5 FEE (128) (198) (41) (367)
As at 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF+=A
=+—H 1,753 3,228 739 5,720
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ji&*ﬁ%ﬁ{j.? 3139C9mb@r 20!67‘

27. Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

7 ?Eﬁﬁlﬁ (nlﬁ)

ATIERB W EERRLEHRAEE

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

TE—RF —E—RF

+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H

(US$°000) (US$000)

(F%=7) (F=71)

Unused tax losses REATIAEE 6,062 4,704
Deductible temporary differences AT R =58 404,619 428,109
410,681 432,813

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

The temporary differences are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the temporary
differences as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the above items can be utilised.
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28.Share Capital 28. iR 7K
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
t=A=+—-8 +=A=+—H
(US$'000) (US$000)
(F%r) (F=5T)
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE
1,033,871,656 (2015: 1,033,871,656) 1,033,871,656/%
ordinary shares (ZZ=—hF:
1,033,871,656/%)
TR 1,550,164 1,550,164
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RATIRADEBBMAT -
follows:
Number of
shares Amount of
in issue  share capital
ERITROEE [N
(’000) (US$°000)
(FB) (F%wm)
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 R-F-—RAFER-FT—F
+=ZA=+—H 1,033,872 1,550,164
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including a non-executive director and
other employees of the Group. The Scheme became effective
on 4 September 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 7 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of two to four
years and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016

e mionseon A TEIRARPTEE

29.Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The scheme includes the share options granted to directors
and key management personnel (“Tranche A”) and the share
options granted to other employees (“Tranche B”).

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

29. BIRAEETE ()

BRI SEM AT S B ABBREHK
RER A SRR -

AEBRRTEEREIZEEAEBNGE
Bt (AR ]) RETHMESMNER
# ([BEBfA ) »

KA E DT BE B 3 R AR IR R AT 811 T
1%

2016 2015
ZE-RE —E—NfF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price exercise price
HKS$ per share Number of ~ HKS$ per share Number of
SR E options "000 BimE options 000
FHTREE BREHE 7B BREHE
(B7) (F1) (B7) (F13)
At 1 January n—HA—H 6.912 30,120 6.912 30,250
Forfeited during the year FREIK 6.912 (1,458) 6.912 (130)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 6.912 28,662 6.912 30,120

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RBERRARITEBERENOTEER
TTEHOT

2016 —E-XRE

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

BREHE TEE* 1758

000 HK$ per share

T4 BRET

9,554 6.912 4 September 2017 to 3 September 2022
—E—+FHANRAE=E-—FhA=A

9,554 6.912 4 September 2018 to 3 September 2022
—E-)\FhLAMNBE=ZE=_—_FNA=H

9,554 6.912 4 September 2019 to 3 September 2022
—E-hFHAANRE-ZT-—_FHhA=H

28,662
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2015

Number of options Exercise price*

BhixEE B di
'000 HK$ per share
Fn BRAT
9,953 6.912
10,083 6.912
10,084 6.912
30,120

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company's share capital.

No share options were granted during the year (2015: fair
values of the share options granted of US$2,316,000 (US$0.40
each) and US$9,868,000 (US$0.41 each) for Tranche A and
Tranche B respectively), of which the Group recognised a share
option expense of US$3,872,000 (2015: US$1,331,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used for the scheme:

Exercise period
17 HA

4 September 2017 to 3 September 2022
—E—tFNAANBE=ZE-__FhLH=H
4 September 2018 to 3 September 2022
T \FHALANRE-ZE-—FHhA=H
4 September 2019 to 3 September 2022
—E-hFAANARE-_ZE-_—FHhA=H

Y WEETHRAARET  HARFZ
BRAFEMIFUKE) - RIBREZ TR
1ER] T2

FAMERTERBECZE—RF:
L ERENRQFED R ABASH
2,316,0003 7t (Fi%0.403€7T) LA KBE
19,868,000k JL(FR0.413E7T)) * B
PAEBREE-_T—<"F+_A=1+—
HIEF SRR ER 3,872,000 T
(ZZ—F% :1,331,000%7T) °

RO EnEEBRE 2 AFE - T)
REELBSRA ARG - EE
TP % H B ASL AR 0 MR R B R 1 © TR T
HEFEEEIMARA B AZER

Expected volatility (%) TE AR 18 (%) 49.7 49.7
Risk-free interest rate (%) LR R (%) 1.5 1.5
Annual post-vesting forfeit rate (%) FEFBEIWNE(%) 13 8
Exercise multiple 1TEREE 25 25
Weighted average share price (US$ per share)  JiiEFIRE (FR&3=TT) 0.89 0.89

The annual post-vesting forfeit rate of the options is based
on the historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T 8885 R A 7

BRENFERBRIRETIREBE
=FEMELBIEFE - RO RRATREHR
EETTEER I o TR I8 45 R E 2K
BRRRKEE  BNARCLSERE
B



No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
28,662,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 28,662,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of US$25,546,000 (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 28,450,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 2.8% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 167 of
the financial statements.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, which are applicable to the
Company'’s subsidiaries in the PRC, profits of PRC subsidiaries,
as determined in accordance with the applicable accounting
rules and regulations in the PRC, are available for distribution
in the form of cash dividends to the Company after PRC
subsidiaries have (1) satisfied all tax liabilities; (2) provided for
losses in previous years; and (3) made appropriations to the
statutory reserve funds. The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are required to appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve funds until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of their registered capital.

BEEMDRBEEFENARFER

o

(IS

RS HIR - NQ A% E 28,662,000
B AR M R AR IE R EITTE - RIBAA
A IR RO RR AR GRS - BB TE MARITIE
FE IR HE ] RE 2 B KE /NI 17 28,662,000
A& AN 7] % i Ax K 38 hn A% 425,546,000
Et CGRHBRETER) °

RIEZEMBRERBE  AQRHE
28,450,00017 i A% 4 &) K 1B 3% 5% 51 2
TE - (RZBARREBITRONLY
2.8% o

7R 8 R A 4 B 1 O S PO B 4 A
MEDRTBREB7TARA ESE
BRH 27 -

BEFREEEIINEBECENEE X
B EAREARTNFETAR)  ER
BANTPEETRBERROEENT R
FTRARMGEH - IRPREFAR)ER
FIERGEE  QRBAFEBEEL
BE: RQMETRHESIELBERI
BERBFRABARNTMEE DR » AR
AP EFARIAZB TN DRNEREE
mAMIORIER L ERKES  EERHBE
HERRER HEMEARMN50% ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31.Operating Lease Arrangements 1. REHERH
(a) As lessor (a) FERHHEA

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) to
Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Huali”), under an operating lease arrangement, with a lease
term of 20 years. The terms of the lease generally also
require the tenant to provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenant falling due as follows:

AEERE-BELEHELH
HigEW% (ME14) KT LEE
NBEFERRA ([ LBEAN]) -
THH 205 A A B R — AR TR
ME AR AREE BT EHHE
THRABELERE -

R=B—RE+=A=+—8 &
9 AR T A S BRI T
B 7 AR A B R R RS R A
HERENT

2016 2015

TE—RF —E—RF

(US$°000) (US$000)

(F%=7) (F=71)

Within one year —FR 12,113 12,293
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF (BREEREWE) 46,877 49173
More than five years BiEAE 95,004 113,784
153,994 175,250

The Group was advanced the future rentals from Shanghai
Huali of US$4,773,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
US$5,456,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. Operating Lease Arrangements (continued)

(b) As lessee
The Group leases certain of its office and dormitory
properties under operating lease arrangements, negotiated
for terms of one to twenty years with an option for renewal
after the end of lease terms, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

ceonsen DI RSERER MY EE

. EEeHERH (|

(b) EREBA
AEERBEEEMEZHEAETT
MAEREEVE  KHEENR
—E_AF AREMERETNA
B ERMAGREEINGHE -

W=B—AE+=A=+—H &
S5 BRI A BS540 T AR A T
B3R 1 6 1 5 70 0

R
2016 2015
—E—XRE e
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F%=7) (F=71)
Within one year —FR 1,789 1,912
In the second to fifth years, inclusive BE_ZEANT (BREEEMT) 5,949 6,586
More than five years BBAF 17,463 20,210
25,201 28,708

The Group did not advance any future rentals to Huahong
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Real Estate”), a subsidiary
of Huahong Technology Development, as at 31 December
2016. The Group advanced the future rentals to Huahong
Real Estate of US$1,537,000 as at 31 December 2015.

32.Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
31 (b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

MN-B—RE+-A=+—H &&
kA EEETEEGR AR ([
MEXE] ENREERENTAR) B
MERAKAS R_ZT—RAF+=
A=+—0 AEERFELEEEN
1,537,000 TR AR KL ©

32. A&

B £ SR RE31(b) ATl A & T AR
AEBERREMREATEARARE

2016 2015
AL —ZE—hF
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%5m) (F=5T)
Contracted, but not provided for: DETA) - BAREE
Property, plant and equipment W - B MEE 44,693 26,511
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(a) Name and relationship (a) EBREHF

Name of related party Relationship with the Group
Lyt BEAKENRR
Huahong Group and its subsidiaries
ENEEREFAF
— Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Huahong Group”) Holding company of Hua Hong
— b= (KE) BRAR ([FEIEE]) International Inc.,
AT PR IZ AR A A

— Hua Hong International Inc., ("Huahong International”) Shareholder of the Company
— EMBRBRBERAGF ([FLEE]) RNRABIIER
— Shanghai Huahong Zealcore Electronics Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Huahong Group

(“Huahong Zealcore”) EI LB T QA

— EBETBERERAERAR ([FLR2E])
— Shanghai Hongri International Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Hongri”)  Subsidiary of Huahong Group

— B BEEEFARAR ([HH 1) EIEET AR
— Shanghai Integrated Circuit Research and Subsidiary of Huahong Group
Development Center (“ICRD”) EI £ BT AF

— bBSKERRED L ([RXERFE])
— Shanghai Hua Hong Jitong Smart System Co., Ltd. (“Jitong”)  Subsidiary of Huahong Group

— PBEMGHRERRASROARAR ([FHE]) EIEET AR

NEC Corporation (“NEC”) Shareholder of the Company
RARIRER

— NEC Management Partner, Ltd. (“NEC Management”) Subsidiary of NEC
NECF A 7]

SAIL and its subsidiaries

EBBAREF AR

— Sino-Alliance International Ltd. (“SAIL International”) Shareholder of the Company
PN S

— Shanghai Huali Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Huali”)  Subsidiary of SAIL

— EBENMEFERAR ([ LEES] BT AR

— QST Corporation (“QST”) Subsidiary of SAIL

— PEWERRERAR ([WERE]) FEEAF AR
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(a) Name and relationship (continued)

Name of related party
Lyt

INESA and its subsidiaries

BESERAEFAH

— Shanghai INESA Intelligent Electronics Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai INESA”)

— PEEREEREFARLR ([ I&ES])

— Shanghai Nanyang Software System Integration Co., Ltd.
("Nanyang Software”)

— bEmFARNRGERERAR ([FEFEMF])

— Shanghai Nanyang Wanbang Information
Technology Service Co., Ltd. (“Wanbang IT”)

— bEmABAHRMRMERAR ([EB&F])

Huahong Technology Development

FITRERR

Huahong Real Estate

EIEHE

Shanghai Huajin Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Huajin”)
EEERYEEEARAR ([EHE])

CEC and its subsidiaries
FEEFREFAHE
— China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”)
—HAEEFEREXEEERAR ([FEETF])
— CEC Huada Electronic Design Co., Ltd. (“Huada”)
—IRPEEAREFRABREMERR ([FEKX])
— Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Huahong IC”)
— LEBENSERERBEREELT ([ EEEITENER )
— Beijing Huahong IC Design Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Huahong IC”)
— R EMEREERFEREEAR ([IERELEKERE])
— Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Belling”)
— EBEEROHEBRAR ([ B8R E])
— Hylintek Limited (“Hylintek”)
—BEBERRAR ([HEEE])

(a) BEWREAR (H)

Relationship with the Group
EAKENRR

Subsidiary of INESA
BEEET AR

Subsidiary of INESA
BEEEFAA

Subsidiary of INESA
EEREFRA]

Associate of the Group
REEREE R A

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development
EMRRERT AR

Subsidiary of Huahong Technology
Development
ERRERT AT

Shareholder of Huahong Group
I @R

Subsidiary of CEC
HFEEFFAR

Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFFAR

Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFFAF
Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFFAF
Subsidiary of CEC
HEEFFAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances 33. Bk H X Z R AEER (5E)
(continued)
(b) Related party transactions (b) BEEEA RS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed B 5% 5 B 75 i 2% H M B0 0 PT 3R B8 A2
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the S RERIN REBRFERND HEH
following material transactions with related parties during B THEITATEARRS ¢
the year:
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE-hfF
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F%5) (F=T)
Sales of goods to related parties (note () M@ HESS (FMEE3))
Huada FEKR 24115 25,495
Shanghai Huahong IC BT A E R 9,739 10,953
Huahong Zealcore* FET B 9,397 9,929
ICRD SRR B R A B 8,468 8,140
Shanghai Belling BB 6,200 7,951
QST* BB R 2,393 911
Hongri LN =] 378 526
Purchases of goods from related parties B EE SR ()
(note (ii))
Hylintek BBEE 10,410 5,837
Hongri LIRS 5,969 4,859
NEC Management? NEC Management? 575 726
Huahong Zealcore? FEUT B 433 495
Jitong FTilm 4 4
Service fee income from a related party R B @ RSB IA
(note (i) GED)
QST* WERE 417 445
Service fee charged by related parties RAES 7 WA IR TS &
(note (iv)) (FFEE(iv))
Nanyang Software* FFE 196 25
Huajin* FE SR 189 201
Huahong Real Estate EITEYE 132 2,176
Shanghai INESA? FEEE 109 357
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.Related Party Transactions and Balances
(continued)

31 December 2016

NETZR= f

33. BT X

Br RS aR MY EE

7 Ktk (&)

(b) Related party transactions (continued) (b) BB AR5 (&)
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE-hfF
(US$°000) (US$000)
(F%x) (F=5T)
Rental income from a related party R A BT RS U
(note (iii)) GEID))
Shanghai Huali* gER 12,518 12,793
Rental expense charged by a related party — BEE 5 AR S B2
(note (iv)) =)
Huahong Real Estate* IEUT B 1,522 1,622
Expense paid on behalf of a related party R A
(note (v)) (P (V)
Shanghai Huali EHBESR 25,407 26,327

# The

related party transactions also constitute continuing

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (iii):

Note (iv):

Note (v):

The sales of goods to the related parties were made
according to the prices and terms agreed between the
related parties.

The purchases of goods from the related parties were
made according to the prices and terms offered by the
related parties.

The rental income and service fee income from related
parties were received according to the prices and terms
agreed between the related parties.

The rental expense and service fees charged by related
parties were paid according to the prices and terms
agreed between the related parties.

The expense paid on behalf of the related party is
interest-free and repayable on demand.

# BT XS I ER LT AR E 14A
B REIFEEELS -

f (1)

B (i) -

B & (i) -

B EE(iv) -

MEE(V) -

1] BB 77 ] B B B i T3 AR I B
I 7 1 7 A (B 15 R AR E
o

B BB T 8 B A K an T3 1R 15 B
W e ATETE R KRG EH] -

X G BB B 1 WA R IR
WA TR 15 5 B 77 135 € A9
118 RN

B 7 R 69 1 2 [ % R AR %
B IRIZ LRI 7 15 € 49 1B 15
RAFFHZAT -

BB 5 X VA F X 73 T &
B REBREFER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ERaRMIEE S .

33.Related Party Transactions and Balances B.ABLERZ NGk (&)

(continued)

(c) EREBL 2BH ARG RRE

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

2016 2015
—E—XREF —T—RHF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F%5) (F=5T)

Amounts due from related parties UK RA R 5 SR IE
Huada FEKR 16,107 7,470
Shanghai Huali BER 13,735 8,726
Shanghai Huahong IC BT A E R 4,430 3,171
Huahong Zealcore HEQT B 1,820 2,724
Shanghai Belling BB 1,099 1,265
QST BWERR 482 289
Hongri LN =] a1 90
ICRD SRR E AR 33 9
Huahong Real Estate EAEHE 4 1,537
Shanghai INESA HEEE 1 1
37,752 25,282

Amounts due to related parties JEA~ BB 75 3R
Shanghai Huali EEET 4,773 5,456
Hylintek BAEE 2,239 960
ICRD £ KBRS 1,315 748
Hongri LN =] 904 630
NEC Management NEC Management 108 222
QST BWERH 106 519
Huahong Zealcore FEQT B 106 153
Huahong Real Estate i 920 246
Huaijin P 20 8
Shanghai INESA LEEE 18 19
Jitong Hil 10 4
9,689 8,965

Balances with the related parties were unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and had no fixed repayment terms.
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33.Related Party Transactions and Balances

(continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016

R RF+ZA=1—1

Br RS aR MY EE

33 E%Hyﬁjj-ﬁﬁ% &l“ﬂﬁ/% (nﬁ)

(d) *EEEREBASHME

Group
2016 2015
— N —RF
(US$°000) (US$'000)
(F=m) (F=5T)
Short term employee benefits REREERET 3,205 2,704
Pension scheme contributions RIS EH B 42 36
Equity-settled share option expense N E E R AR 660 212
Total compensation paid to SHTFEEEEAEN
key management personnel i< 42 %8 3,907 2,952
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in BEEHFNZE—FTHBHRT SR
note 8 to the financial statements. EUN TR
34.Financial Instruments by Category M. mEREATHNEMTIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ERERIANBRENRNEEEAE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (N

Financial assets — loans and receivables

EHEE — BEARERIE

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

—2-x% _—T-5f

+=A=+-8 +=A=t-~

(US$’000) (US$'000)

(F%5x) (F=7T)

Trade and notes receivables B 5 RGO K R I R R 106,078 103,822
Financial assets included in prepayments, STATENFRIE - He Rk

deposits and other receivables (note 21) H A EUGRIAR

éﬂé?(%&m) 4,268 4,169

Due from related parties JFE Ui B B 5 OB 37,752 25,282

Restricted and time deposits BR4& &E/Hﬂrm)\ 125,547 41,796

Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEY 341,255 510,441

614,900 685,510
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEE SRR MY EE

34.Financial Instruments by Category

(continued)

Financial assets — available-for-sale financial assets

31 December 2016
—E—RE+=ZHA=+—H

M EREHESNEMTA (&)

EHEE - IR ETHEE

31 December 31 December

Available-for-sale investments

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—1F

+=A=+—8 +=—A=+—8H

(US$’000) (US$'000)

(F%5x) (F=71)

AEfHERE 203,330 217,214

Financial liabilities — at amortised cost

TR & — KB

31 December 31 December

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables, advances from customers and

accruals (note 24)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Due to related parties

2016 2015

—E-AF —T-hHF

+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(FZ=w) (FZ=T)

B S ERTFIA 64,790 66,280

AT AE MM FE

AR R R E G BN

SRBaE (WH:E24) 50,491 41,578

FFRRTTER 92,631 180,621

FE A RAEE 5 5OE 9,689 8,965

217,601 297,444

35.Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

BEMITEANAFERRFE

Financial Instruments [E &%
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEESRMTHE (TREREEREAF
instrument, other than those with carrying amounts that BERXBEENERITR) WEEERA
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: FEHIAT
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AYE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XRF —ZE-hF —E-XRF —E—hF
(US$’000) (US$'000) (US$’000) (US$'000)
(F=75) (F%=mT) (F=z) (F%=5T)
Financial liability
Interest-bearing bank FTESRITER
borrowing 36,471 38,961 30,637 31,627
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Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged and time deposits, trade and notes
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities, trade payables
included in other payables, advances from customers and
accruals, amounts due from/to related parties and the current
portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the chief
financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with
the board of directors annually for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings has been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 was assessed
to be insignificant. Management has assessed that the fair
value of the non-current interest-bearing bank borrowings of
the Group approximates to their fair value due to their floating
interest rates, expect for the loan disclosed above.

EEECDHEREENESEEY 2K
RREMER  EHRUGRAEKREKRE
B FTABRME - 2E RE M EKR
HWERMEE  FFARMENRE - &
WERLEGLHERNESRAE BEHE
RIE - U R AR T TR - R
RITERORBDEBOORFE - BEH
HHEREEMRS  TEEARKE LA
B A EIE o

AEEETUMBEERENT B A
AEFTEMTARFEAENBREE
F-BHBHERAMBAERS - NE&
BEEH MBEELIMERTANEE
EPIEFHETEANETEG AR
& hEAMBREEZRIIE - HE
BIEMERBEFETFam—K 0 N
EITFEMBHR -

TREENBENAFERREANES
AR5 (MIEREHBFREE) F A
RBBERTANESREIIK - At 2 FE
THER AT 8 A RRR

FFRRITERNIERBL DR FEETD
FREAEBEUER - ESRREREF
SREIHAEAMR &) T A /Y30 A | = B4 35 78 B
RKBEREMTH - AEEFHEER
B RZIE-RNFEER_ZE-—RF+_A
= t+t—HEBSMFTEBRITERTELY
FERRIWTK - ARIBZBF KT - iR
Bt RAeANEBIERE T BIRIT
BRHATEREDERS  HLELE
KBRS
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The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans, cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group’s policy is to
manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

Year ended 31 December 2016 Sy

Year ended 31 December 2015 #H

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposure. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by its significant
subsidiary operating in Mainland China in US$ other than the
subsidiary’s functional currency, which is RMB. During the
year, approximately 51% (2015: 49%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the subsidiary making the sale, whilst 60% (2015: 64%) of
costs of sales are denominated in the subsidiary’s functional
currency.

HUA HONG SEMICONDUCTOR LIMITED 4T 8885 R A 7

AEENTIECRMITABRRITER
BekEfER TR TANTE
AR RAEENEESEES - A%
BEZRERAEBLELNEMER
BERAE B NHEMEYRIENL
KB 5 REME I -

AEESRTAMELNTERR ST
RER - SNERR - EREARERBE
TRk EZeREBEEESEZ
FRBHBER - BRABRBEN TX

R 2= B
AEEHBROMSN XSS RARTRE
AREBLF BN R BHEBRITHER
B AEENBER  UEBRZEE
B E 8T N E R SR -

TRETEMBEEMEEESTENE
AT AREB AR (ZFBMRE
RHTE) HHERNESEAREZ SR

+1%/-1% (1,417)11,417

ShiE B B

AEEABRRSIINERE - ZZEKE
HEEEFRAMEENEE TN A
ELETHEE - MIWIELUEEEE
ARBEEIT - RER - AEBEMNHEER
F4951% (Z T — L F : 49%) JHLA#
THENTATNMEEB LI EE
ETE - BRI BEKAT0% (=
T—AF :64%) HATFRARINNEEER
BEETE o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities):

31 Decemb@r 2016
A \

Br RS aR MY EE

B BEEREEEERKE
(&)

TRETEMBEEMEEESTENE

/‘RT RBERRNEEBF RN (B
EREENBERAFEEY) HAR

%EKE’JAIE—I@%Z@JE’JEQ@E :

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit before
USS rate tax
E TR Bian&ER
EFH CRBE) &m0 (ES)
(US$°000)
(F3=78)
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE—_T—R%F
+TZA=+—HLEFE
If US$ weakens against RMB WETHARBEE 5% (6,936)
If US$ strengthens against RMB WmETHARBHE (5%) 6,936
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE—_ZT—1F
+TZA=+T—HILFE
If US$ weakens against RMB it H AREEE 5% (5,170)
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHARBHE (5%) 5,170

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and
notes receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties and pledged and time deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group has no other financial assets which
carry significant exposure to credit risk.

= ARk
AEEERERTREERFNE=T
KABITRS - AEBENBRRTE - A
BRZERTARSNEPYARIBE
ARERRF o 1IN - R ES UK
BEGRETERE  MASERZERRER
WARERX e

HEMBRRKRARE RREEEY
B 5 EUWGRIA & B R R 5t ATER 3R
B R MEMBEYGRENSREE
FE U BA B 77 SR A R B A N i TE K
MR EE S AR B H & B & & A m b
MR AERRER o ANEEIEEMIFE
BEXERRRNEREE

—~EFERE 247
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B ERaRMIEE S .

36.Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

.U BEABEEEEREXK
(%)

RBESERE

AEENBRRASEHEERE RAEHRR
HELFE  UWHERERTHNRSH
BRI ZCHBRERESEANBE A
EEE UERHEEHMERHRDES

==

RBERR  AEESBREBERESD
REERNAROBIREROT -

On Less than 3to 12 1to Over
31 December 2016 demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total
“E-R"EtZA=t-H RER SPR=@EA =EZEt+=f@A ik BENE st
(US$’000) (US$°000) (US$°000) (US$°000) (US$°000) (US$°000)
(F%5x) (F%x) (F%7) (F%x) (F%7) (F%57)
Interest-bearing bank FTERITER
borrowings - 396 3,061 75,777 17,766 97000
Trade payables EC) NN 12,642 52,148 - - - 64,790
Financial liabilities included &t AE A ERTH
in other payables, I8 - EIRER
advances from REEBRM
customers and accruals £ BAE 50,491 — = — — 50,491
Amounts due to related JEft BB/ 20 0R
parties 9,689 - - - - 9,689
72,822 52,544 3,061 75,777 17,766 221,970
On Less than 3to 12 1to Over
31 December 2015 demand 3 months months 5 years 5 years Total
—ZT-RE+ZA=1+-H ®ER  OR=ER =Z+=fEA —ZhE AFUE st

(US$000)  (US$'000)
(F%51) (F%1)

(US$000)  (US$000)  (US$000)  (US$'000)
(F%1) (F%1) (F%1) (F%1)

Interest-bearing bank STEBAER
borrowings - 839 45170 124,287 18,979 189,275
Trade payables BHENFIE 6,859 59,421 - - = 66,280
Financial liabilities included &t AZftfEft 2k
in other payables, ER C G
advances from REHERD
customers and accruals SR AR 41,578 - - - - 41578
Amounts due to related BB S FUE
parties 8,965 - - = = 8,965
57,402 60,260 45170 124,287 18,979 306,098
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and amounts due to related parties, less cash and
cash equivalents. The gearing ratios as at the end of each of
the reporting periods were as follows:

31 December 2016

ot YRR ERAR B EE

B BEEREEEERKE

(%)

aErxER
FEEEAEENEREERR  #EX
SENBELERNRBEFRINER
xR UXFHEXRBRERBRREER
K e

ARG BIRBEBEAN N B B E IR L
AEELSRHBERN TRROKE - @
BRBREERNLETHR - ARETR
EMINEBIEIMAE R BRKAR - NEF
N AKREEREANER  BRIE
Frit S ) -

AEBMUEERBLRERER  BE
BELXZFAERNATRRHEA AR
ERSAEMFRESE - AKEKE
SN RIE - BN RIBREGHE
A FHERITIEK - FEASRERE DT SR
BRRERREEFEMFAFEE - TR
SHMRNEERBLLRMT

2016 2015

—B-AF —ThHF

(US$°000) (US$'000)

(F%m) (F=5T)

Trade payables B S IR 64,790 66,280
Other payables and accruals (note 24) EMEARIEREMER (HiE24) 83,178 73,088
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRRITER 92,631 180,621
Amounts due to related parties FE SR8 5 I 9,689 8,965
Less: Cash and cash equivalents A BeRREEEY (341,255) (510,441)
Net debt FRE (90,967) (181,487)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent & ATIHEA AFEILHEZ 1,488,686 1,490,690
Capital and net debt BARAGFAR 1,397,719 1,309,203
Gearing ratio BEAGBHE (6.51%) (13.86%)

The negative gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016 was mainly
due to the IPO proceeds received in October 2014, which had
not been fully utilised as of 31 December 2016.

R-E—R"F+-A=+—HEEARE
HEABHIERRAA-T—NF+A
REHERABEREMERE - KR
BEE-ZT—A"FT+ZA=+—HHRX
TEEMA
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37. Event After the Reporting Period 3. MEHRER
On 28 March 2017, the directors proposed a final dividend RZZE—tF=A=+N\B EFE=
of HK$30 cents per ordinary share totalling approximately KEHBHE—T—XR"F+-_A=+—8H1
US$39,963,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016, which FREAORNPREBRE BIRI0EN - 42
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the 5T A& #939,963,000% 7T © HWAFTARR]
forthcoming annual general meeting (note 11). IRERREERFBESE KNG CER A E

B (fFE11) -

38.Statement of Financial Position of the 38. 7 B KY B AR =
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the BEARRRHRERROPBARREZER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T -

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
+=A=+-B +-A=+—H
(US$’000) (US$'000)
(F%m) (F=1)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KERFRAT] 1,555,251 1,551,379
Total non-current assets IERENEEARE 1,555,251 1,551,379
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and notes receivables SR FIE R EWRE 5,077 2,510
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERREIE - Ee
R E At FEIFRIR 28 -

Due from a subsidiary A a/NCIE s 998 998
Restricted and time deposits BB R ERTER 8 _
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRSEEY 6,994 6,237
Total current assets MENEEERE 13,105 9,745
CURRENT LIABILITIES RERE
Other payables, advances from Hib eI - AR K

customers and accruals ihE A 131 134
Due to subsidiaries JERFF R RIFRIE 86,890 84,563
Total current liabilities mEBERAHE 87,021 84,697
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFEE (73,916) (74,952)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAEFREBARS 1,481,335 1,476,427
Net assets BEE 1,481,335 1,476,427
EQUITY xS
Share capital R& N 1,550,164 1,550,164
Reserves (note) & (M) (68,829) (73,737)
Total equity ERATE 1,481,335 1,476,427

Suxin Zhang Jun Ye
RE D gk
Director Director
EZE EZE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016 Ejﬁ%*ﬁ% Mq.%—I

—E—RFT-A=+—H

38. AR AW MBMRA R ()

38.Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (continued)

Note: BIEE -

ARFOREEERNT

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Other Share option Accumulated

reserve reserve losses Total
Hitif#E BRERE RitEE #st
(US$’000) (US$’000) (US$’000) (US$’000)
(F%£x) (F%x) (F%£x) (F%£7x)
As at 1 January 2015 R-ZE—R&—HF—H (68,260) (4,997) (73,257)
Loss for the year FAEE = = (1,811) (1,811)
Equity-settled share option A s E R IR L HE
arrangements - 1,331 - 1,331
As at 31 December 2015 and R-Z—RE+—-A
1 January 2016 =t—HRZZ—~F
—A—AH (68,260) 1,331 (6,808) (73.737)
Profit for the year FREF - 36,966 36,966
Final 2015 dividend declared BRERER-_E—RERE - = (35,930) (35,930)
Equity-settled share option DA s E R IR L HE
arrangements - 3,872 - 3,872
As at 31 December 2016 RZT—RF+=A
=+-A (68,260) 5,203 (5,772) (68,829)

39. BRI AL AE

MBBERER-_FE—tF=A-tN\HAH
BEESHERRETIE -

39.Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2017.
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FIVE YEAR FINANGCIAL SUMMARY
AFEHBEHE

TXEINAEER AR B RFEROESE
NREE AENRFERESNRE - 64
AR EE TIREERRI RS -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements is set out

below.
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=1T—HLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RF ZE-RF ZEWNF ZE—=F ZE—=F
(US$’000) (US$000) (US$000) (US$000) (US$000)
(F%r) (F=rx) (F=rx) (F=x) (F=E=ED
RESULTS &
REVENUE SHEWA 721,428 650,131 664,586 584,719 571,480
Cost of sales THERKAR (501,080)  (448,705)  (466,815)  (459,270)  (453,559)
Gross profit EF 220,348 201,426 197,771 125,449 117,921
Other income and gains E AU A R ES 34,761 42,717 23,886 30,605 26,492
Fair value gain on an LB
investment property A EREE 72 58 1,127 2,095 944
Selling and distribution HE&
expenses S iHE R (6,814) (7,292) (7,206) (8,052) (8,831)
Administrative expenses EIREH (97,404) (104,855) (85,053) (69,043) (55,097)
Other expenses HivE A (666) (9) (2,433) (199) (448)
Finance costs HFER (3,873) (7,754) (12,136) (16,479) (16,928)
Share of profits AE—R
of an associate B8N B) 3 ) 7,056 961 4,856 6,437 3,619
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AR 153,480 125,252 120,812 70,813 67,672
Income tax expense FriSHifX (24,648) (12,703) (27,722) (8,964) (7,993)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F AR 128,832 112,549 93,090 61,849 59,679
Attributable to: AN B IR -
Owners of the parent BARIER A 128,832 112,549 93,090 61,849 59,679
Non-controlling interests JEIEALRE RS - = = = =
128,832 112,549 93,090 61,849 59,679
As at 31 December
R+=—H=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
SE-RF ZE-RFE ZTNFE ZT—=F —T——F
(US$’000)  (US$'000) (US$'000) (US$000) (US$000)
(FZ=rm) (F=mx) (F=Em) (F=T) (F=7I)
Total assets BERE 1,826,664 1,911,733 1,990,069 1,647,617 1,607,974
Total liabilities AEEsE (337978)  (421,043)  (524,590) (591,398)  (644,217)
Non-controlling interests IR AE R - - - - -

1,488,686

1,490,690 1,465,479 1,056,219

963,757
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